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Rapidly extending capaci�es, 

capabili�es across the Loca�ons, 

Geographies, Customers, Key 

Markets, User Industries. 

Aspiring to emerge as Fastest 

Growing Company in ERW Steel 

Tube Industry Matrix.
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MISSION

• To be among India’s top ƒive steel tube manufactures

• To create sustainable value for all the stakeholders

• To involve all the employees in company’s overall 

development

• To emerge as a quality manufacture of the en�re 

spectrum of Steel Tubes

• To adopt sustainable environment friendly procedures, 

prac�ces

VISION
To provide customers the

most compelling products,
while leading for sustainable business.

•  Rapidly increasing its presence -extending manufacturing 

footprint to West India

• Focusing on Latest Technology, economies of scale, 

op�miza�on of cost of produc�on

• Increasing its presence in value added branded products 

space, new age applica�ons

We are an ISO 9001: 2015 Cer�fied Company 

which is recognized as Star Export House by 

Government of India and won several EEPC 

Exports Awards from Engineering Export 

Promo�on Council of India.
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FUTURE ASPIRATIONS AND STRATEGIES
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07

Growth
Aspira�on Margin

Accre�ve

New
Products,
Markets

Geographical
Diversifica�on

Corporate
Governance

Strong
Balance 
Sheet

Expansion

Targe�ng above-industry average growth rate. 
Think Tank and Execu�on Team, Manufacturing, 
Opera�ons, Marke�ng plans already in 
place and we are commi�ed to achieve
at-least 35% CAGR growth in
next 5 years.

Going to increase installed
capaci�es by 5 �mes in
next 5 years for achieving
targeted sales. Roadmap 
for capacity
enhancement and 
increased
u�liza�on levels
already in place.

Con�nuously keeping eye on the 
working capital cycle and Capex plan,
and targe�ng to 
keep debt-equity 
ra�o of the Company below 1

Improving composi�on of the Board
to ensure be�er corporate governance
prac�ces, transparency and sustainability.

Commissioned a green field
state of the art manufacturing
plant in western part of India
to extend company's
manufacturing footprint into
emerging market.

Inves�ng in new age technologies, 
products. Expanding its manufacturing
base and recently commissioned a new 
plant in a very strategic loca�on near 
Mumbai to target and serve promising
market exists in western and southern 
part of India

Inves�ng in technology, resources to
further increase EBIDT, Net Margin
per MT and return ra�os thereby
increasing stakeholders value
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ERW TUBES SERVE ALL KEY SECTORS OF THE ECONOMY

JTL Infra is inves�ng on technology for serving 
New Age needs across high-poten�al business 
segments

Strong Government impetus, increasing per-capita 

purchasing power, improving lifestyle dynamics 

provide a boost to all Key Sectors of the Indian 

economy With enormous untapped poten�al 

across all major Sectors and new age applica�ons 

JTL Infra’s business model is well-posi�oned to 

capitalize on all emerging sectoral trends.
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PRODUCTS PROFILE

Photovoltaic moun�ng systems 

(also called solar module racking) 

are used to fix solar panels on 

surfaces l ike roofs,  building 

facades, or the ground. These 

moun�ng systems general ly 

enable retrofi�ng of solar panels 

on roofs or as part of the structure 

of the building (called BIPV).

A solar cell performs the best when 

its surface is perpendicular to the 

s u n ’ s  r a y s ,  w h i c h  c h a n g e 

con�nuously over the course of the 

day and season.

GALVANIZED STEEL
TUBES & PIPES

SOLAR MODULE
MOUNTING STRUCTURES

We manufacture and export 

hollow sec�ons, structural hollow 

sec�ons, hollow steel sec�ons, 

square /rectangular  hol low 

sec�ons, round hollow sec�ons, 

mild steel black ERW square tubes, 

rectangular tubes & round hollow 

sec�on tubes and hot rolled steel 

s e c � o n s  a s  p e r  c u s t o m e r ’s 

requirement. 

These sec�ons are available with 

an�-rust oil coa�ng from inside & 

outside to ensure safe delivery to 

end customers.

HOLLOW SECTIONS

Steel pipes are long, hollow tubes that 

are used for a variety of purposes. 

They are produced by two dis�nct 

methods which result in either a 

welded or seamless pipe. In both 

methods, raw steel is first cast into a 

more workable star�ng form.

These Pipes & Tubes are used in Water 

Gas & Air Pipeline, Automobiles, 

Power & Industrial

Boilers, Transformers, Superheaters, 

Economisers, Heat Exchangers, 

Railway, Electrifica�on and Furniture 

Applica�ons etc.

STEEL
TUBES & PIPES

We have a  large scale  unit 

engaged in manufacturing and 

ex p o r � n g  g a l v a n i z e d  s t e e l 

tubes/pipes and welded black 

pipes/tubes and Electrogalvanized 

Steel tubes/pipes. 

We manufacture steel tubes for a 

range of applica�ons like Mild 

Steel tubes for structural purpose 

a n d  m e c h a n i c a l  &  g e n e r a l 

engineering purpose, ERW Pipes 

for water, gas & sewerage, Steel 

tubes for idlers of belt conveyors, 

water wells and Lancing Pipes for 

various automo�ve & industrial 

applica�ons.

8 9



PROFILE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

MR. MITHAN LAL SINGLA – NON-EXECUTIVE NON-INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

Mr. Mithan Lal Singla is the Promoter of the Company and Non-Execu�ve 

Director on the Board of the Company. He helps the Company in all cri�cal 

situa�ons with his valuable advice. He has more than 35 years of experience in 

steel business. Mr. Singla has been instrumental in se�ng up of the Company’s 

exis�ng manufacturing facili�es. He has been associated with various ventures 

in different capaci�es and is conversant with the latest industrial techniques.

His excellent management skills have contributed to business growth and 

development of the Company.

MR. RAKESH GARG – WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR

Mr. Rakesh Garg is the promoter of the Company and Whole Time Director on 

the Board of the Company and has more than 27 years of experience in steel 

industry. He has been specifically assigned with the trade and commercial 

opera�ons of the company and liaising with various agencies, business 

associates.

Mr. Garg also has wide experience in industrial projects, engineering and
management affairs. He is extensively experienced

MR. MADAN MOHAN SINGLA – MANAGING DIRECTOR

Mr. Madan Mohan Singla is the promoter of the Company and Managing 

Director on the Board of the Company. At the helm of the Company, Mr. Singla 

epitomizes the depth of acumen of the tubes and pipes industry and astute 

business sense. With a rich experience of over 30 years in various steel industry 

segments, Mr. Singla steers the Company with a clear vision of growth in 

context with the changing market scenario. Mr. Singla is known for his business 

finance and strategic abili�es. 

Under his leadership, the Company grew exponen�ally gaining na�onal and 

interna�onal recogni�on.

MS. PREET KAMAL KAUR BHATIA – INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

Ms. Preet Kamal Kaur is an Independent Non-Execu�ve Director on the Board

of the Company. She is a Chartered Accountant by qualifica�on and has around 
10 years of experience in Corporate Finance, Accounts, Taxa�on and other 
related ma�ers. She has always been supervising the accounts and taxa�on 
department of the Company.

Ms. Bha�a is associated with the Company since 2015 as an Independent 
Director and the Board is always benefi�ed from her expert level guidance and 
support.

MR. BHUPINDER NAYYAR – INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

Mr. Bhupinder Nayyar is an Independent Non-Execu�ve Director on the Board of 

the Company. He is M.Com from Delhi School of Economics, LLB from Law Centre, 

University of Delhi, CAIIB. Mr. Nayyar has more than 38 years of vast exposure in 

Banking Industry in different areas of its opera�on, which includes 

working/overseeing in/of various Zones across the Country, several foreign 

assignment besides ac�vely handling Large Corporate Credit, Treasury, 

Interna�onal Banking Division, Human Resource Development Department, 

Merchant Banking Division, Risk Management, Accounts, Compliance, Credit 

Monitoring and Rural Development & Priority Sector etc.

He has been the Execu�ve Director at Oriental Bank of Commerce and General 

Manager at Bank of India. He has rich experience of capital markets, banking, 

regulatory affairs and management and administra�on of investor rela�ons.

MR. SUKHDEV RAJ SHARMA– INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

Mr. Sukhdev Raj Sharma possesses 37 years of experience working as a seasoned 
banker. He started his career in Punjab Na�onal Bank as Management Trainee in 
1977 and gradually moved to the Top Management of the Banking Industry. He 
served as DyGM and GM levels for more than 9 years. He is also enriched with 
Overseas experience, wherein from January, 2009 to August, 2011, he had been 
Managing Director of PNB Interna�onal Ltd. London (UK), a 100% subsidiary bank 
of Punjab Na�onal Bank. His Last assignment, from October, 2011 to May, 2015, 
was as Field General Manager, Delhi & NCR. 

Mr. Sharma was superannuated on May 31, 2015. Currently working as Advisor to 
an Investment Banking Co., for last 5 years and also engaged in various social 
ac�vi�es.
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The management of the Company is pleased to present this 

Management Discussion and Analysis Report in compliance 

with Regula�on 34(2)(e) of the Securi�es and Exchange Board 

of India (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regula�ons, 2015 (as amended from �me to �me).

ECONOMIC REVIEW 

Global Economy The global economic growth so�ened from a 

downwardly revised 3% in 2018 to 2.9% in 2019, its lowest 

level since 2008-09. So�ening of interna�onal trade and 

manufacturing ac�vity, unchanged and elevated trade 

tensions and substan�al financial market pressures 

experienced by some large emerging markets are the factors 

behind weakening. However, on the posi�ve side, market 

sen�ments were boosted by signs of manufacturing ac�vi�es 

and bo�oming out of global trade, a broad-based shi� toward 

accommoda�ve monetary policy, intermi�ent favourable 

news on US-China trade nego�a�ons, and diminished fears of 

a no-deal Brexit towards the end of 2019. While the baseline 

growth projec�ons for 2020 were weaker, there were signs of 

stabilisa�on as the link between s�ll resilient consumer 

spending and improved business spending was reinforcing. In 

January, when the world was slowly recovering, China was hit 

by coronavirus (covid-19), now a pandemic, which gradually 

spread out to other countries. The COVID-19 pandemic 

inflicted high and rising human costs worldwide, and the 

necessary protec�on measures were severely impac�ng 

economic ac�vity. As a result of the pandemic, the global 

economy is projected to contract sharply by -3 % in 2020, much 

worse than during the 2008- 09 financial crisis. However, the 

recovery is likely to be robust, driven by policy s�mulus 

measures in place but lot will depend on the COVID-19 

infec�on curve. As lockdowns get li�ed in H2-2020, 

manufacturing/industrial sector is expected to rebound and 

witness considerable level of re-stocking. 

(Source: World Economic Outlook, April 2020 update)

INDIAN ECONOMY

 India's GDP growth rate for the year 2019-20 is es�mated to be 

4.2% as compared to 6.1% in 2018-19. The GDP growth 

decelerated for the seventh consecu�ve quarter. Sluggish 

growth of consump�on and consequent decline in fixed 

investment led to the decline in GDP growth during the year. 

2019 being a difficult year for the global economy as well, the 

world output growth was seen at its slowest pace of 2.9%. A 

weak environment for global manufacturing, trade, and 

demand adversely impacted the Indian economy. While India 

was ba�ling with its own form of slowdown in form of liquidity 

crisis in NBFCs, poor consump�on, weak investments, and 

consumer sen�ments; a combina�on of fiscal s�mulus and 

financial sector reforms was sought to help boost investments 

and consump�on. Reforms to simplify taxa�on, lighten 

business regula�ons, lending rate cuts and upgrade 

infrastructure together formed India's efforts to support a 

recovery in growth.

The green shoots of a rebound that were observable at the end 

of 2019 have been overtaken by the nega�ve impacts of the 

global crisis. While India's macro-economic fundamentals 

were strong as ever and recovery in growth was expected in 

the next fiscal, the covid-19 casted a long shadow over the 

an�cipated mild recovery. With India observing a na�onwide 

lockdown, corporates, manufacturers, and workforce will 

shoulder the major brunt of the lockdown. To fight this, 

Government of India announced a 1.7-trillion-rupee ($22.6 

billion) economic s�mulus plan providing direct cash transfers 

and food security measures to give relief to millions of poor 

people hit by a na�onwide lockdown over COVID-19. The 

Government also outlined plans for medical insurance cover of 

5 million rupees ($66,000) for every frontline health worker, 

from doctors, nurses, and paramedics to those involved in 

sanitary services. 

(Source: economic�mes.com)

PRESENT INDUSTRY OUTLOOK:

The New Industrial policy opened up the Indian iron and steel 

industry for private investment by (a) removing it from the list 

of industries reserved for public sector and (b) exemp�ng it 

from compulsory licensing. Imports of foreign technology as 

well as foreign direct investment are now freely permi�ed up 

to certain limits under an automa�c route. Ministry of Steel 

plays the role of a facilitator, providing broad direc�ons and 

assistance to new and exis�ng steel plants, in the liberalized 

scenario.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
www.jtlinfra.com

ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20

India was the world's second largest steel producer, as of 2018. 

The country is slated to surpass USA to become the world's 

second largest steel consumer in 2019. In India, as per Indian 

Steel Associa�on (ISA), steel demand to grow by over 7 per 

cent in both 2019-20 and 2020-21. In FY19, India produced 

131.57 million tonnes (MT) and 106.56 MT of gross finished 

steel and crude steel, respec�vely. 

Exports and imports of finished steel stood at 0.72 MT and 1.12 

MT, respec�vely, in FY20P (up to May). India's finished steel 

consump�on grew at a CAGR of 7.5 per cent during FY08-FY19 

to reach 97.54 MT. India's steel produc�on is expected to 

increase from 106.56 MT in FY19 to 128.6 MT by 2021.

The Government has taken various steps to boost the sector 

including the introduc�on of Na�onal Steel Policy 2017 and 

allowing 100 per cent Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) in the 

steel sector under the automa�c route. Between April 2000 

and March 2019, inflow of US$ 113.12 billion has been 

witnessed in the metallurgical industries as Foreign Direct 

Investment (FDI).

The Government has launched the Na�onal Steel Policy 2017 

that aims to increase the per capita steel consump�on to 160 

kgs by 2030-31. The government has also promoted Policy 

which provides a minimum value addi�on of 15 per cent in 

no�fied steel products which are covered under preferen�al 

procurement.

India's per capita consump�on of steel grew to 68.9 kgs, during 

2017-18. Na�onal Steel Policy 2017 aims to increase the per 

capita steel consump�on to 160 kgs by 2030-31.

IMPACT OF COVID-19 ON STEEL INDUSTRY:

The COVID-19 has disrupted opera�ons globally is well-known 

and the Steel Industries is no excep�on. Domes�c steel makers 

are likely to face muted demand and oversupply which would 

lead to suppressed steel prices post-lockdown, according to a 

report by India Ra�ngs (Ind-Ra). The corona factor crisis has 

impacted almost all supply chains dependent on China, which 

includes the steel sector. Therefore, outlook for the steel 

industry includes scenarios regarding the pandemics speed of 

propaga�on, possible recurrence, near-term impact of 

measures being taken to contain the outbreak, and the 

effec�veness of the s�mulus announced by the Governments 

of various na�ons. A�er slower than expected growth in 2019, 

steel demand is es�mated to contract significantly in the 

Financial Year 2020-21. According to the World Steel 

Associa�on (WSA), it is possible that the impact on steel 

demand in rela�on to the expected contrac�on in GDP may 

turn out to be less severe than that seen during the erstwhile 

global financial crisis. In comparison with other sectors, the 

manufacturing sector is expected to rebound quicker though 

supply chain disrup�ons are likely to con�nue. Most of the 

steel producing regions are expected to witness a decline in 

crude steel output due to produc�on cuts amidst ongoing 

lockdowns. However, it is expected that compared to other 

countries, China will move faster towards normalisa�on of 

economic ac�vity as it was the first country to come out of the 

COVID-19 crisis. Governments of different na�ons have 

announced sizeable s�mulus packages which are expected to 

favour steel consump�on through investment in infrastructure 

and other incen�ves for the steel industry. In India, muted 

demand and oversupply is likely to result in suppressed steel 

prices and capacity u�lisa�on in the near term. Since India 

depends largely on migrant labour, restar�ng construc�on and 

infrastructure projects will be a challenge. The demand from 

infrastructure, construc�on, and real estate sectors is likely to 

be subdued in the first half of the Financial Year 2020-21 due to 

the lockdown during the first quarter followed by the 

monsoons during the second quarter. Further, the demand 

from automobile, white goods, and capital goods sectors is 

likely to reduce significantly with consumers deferring 

discre�onary spends in the near term. Effec�ve government 
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The management of the Company is pleased to present this 

Management Discussion and Analysis Report in compliance 
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s�mulus and return of consumer confidence is likely to be the 

key driver for a gradual recovery over the second half of the 

Financial Year 2020-21.

RISK & CHALLENGES  

Risk is the vital factor of every business. The Company has in 

place a Risk management Commi�ee which outlines the 

amount of risk involved in the business and various techniques 

for risk mi�ga�on & Risk minimiza�on. The Company believes 

that managing risks helps in maximizing returns. The 

Company's approach for addressing business risks is 

comprehensive and includes iden�fica�on of Risks, periodic 

review of such risks and measures to for mi�ga�ng such risks. 

Domes�c steel demand in FY21 is likely to drop by around 12-

15 per cent year-on-year with end-use industries being closed 

down and limited demand growth expected over the near 

term. Demand from infrastructure, construc�on and real 

estate sectors is likely to be subdued in 1HFY21 (first half of 

FY21) with the lockdown in 1QFY21 (April-June FY21) and the 

monsoon season over 2QFY21 (July-September FY21.

The biggest barrier, however, is the collapse of demand from 

various industries. As most consumers have postponed 

discre�onary spending, there is muted demand in all 

industries, barring essen�als such as groceries and FMCGs. Be 

it white goods, capital goods, automobiles and a host of others, 

the demand from consumers has plummeted. 

Also, demand bouncing back quickly to pre-COVID-19 levels is 

unlikely soon. As many ver�cals have laid-off workers, placed 

some on furlough or announced salary cuts, the overall 

consumer sen�ment is against any spending, except on 

essen�als. Considering that COVID-19 is expected to stay on as 

a seasonal flu, the prospects of an economic bounce back will 

be tempered accordingly. Consequently, individual and 

ins�tu�onal spending are bound to remain lacklustre for a year 

or so at least. 

The growth trajectory of the steel industry has its own set of 

challenges. We outline the five major challenges to the growth 

prospects discussed in the previous sec�on. The Indian steel 

industry is o�en regarded as uncompe��ve globally. In 2016, 

World Steel Dynamics ranked India second in terms of cost of 

conversion of iron ore to steel, a�er Ukraine. Indian mills were 

found to be more cost efficient in conver�ng iron ore to steel 

than their counterparts in China, Japan or Korea. Most Indian 

integrated steel producers ranked within the top 35 steel mills 

globally.

While the government has recently lowered corporate tax 

rates to 25%, there are certain non-creditable taxes, du�es and 

cesses, specifically paid by the steel sector, which reduce the 

compe��veness of Indian steel products in the global market.

Increasingly, environmental concerns are taking centre stage 

and the Indian steel industry is not immune to this trend. The 

steel industry is energy-intensive and is the second biggest 

consumer of energy globally. This leads to a higher carbon 

footprint and also affects the immediate environment. Using 

energy-efficient methods to produce steel will not only reduce 

produc�on costs but also improve compe��veness. This can 

be achieved through highly developed energy management 

systems and usage of the latest technologies in steel 

produc�on

OVERVIEW OF SOLAR STRUCTURE INDUSTRY 

Your Company is accelera�ng in Solar module Structure 

segment by providing good quality product at Domes�c as well 

on exports. It established a new state of art facility at Mangaon, 

Raigad-Maharashtra is designed keeping in mind the 

geographical and surface data of the land where the farm is to 

be installed. According to analy�cs company Global Data, with 

49% tenders announced and a 75.4% share, India was No. 1 

among all other countries in the region, followed by the 

Philippines (with six tenders and a 9.2% share) and Pakistan 

(with five tenders and a 7.7% share), according to a Saur Energy 

Interna�onal report.

Globally, though, the solar scene was gloomy.

Only 291 power plant tenders were announced during Q4 of 

calendar year 2019, which was a fall of 28% over the last four-

quarter average of 404, according to the report. All top issuers 

of solar tenders for December 2019 in terms of power capacity 

involved in the APAC region were from India. About 85% of this 

equipment has been imported from China, Vietnam and 

Malaysia.
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The December import figure has once again underlined a 

major problem the Indian solar sector faces. Despite the Indian 

government's "Make in India" program, plus heavy du�es 

slapped on imports of these kinds of goods, the industry 

con�nues to bring equipment from abroad.

According to the Indian Express report, the money on imports 

of PV cells & modules in the last five years was about three 

�mes the cumula�ve Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) of India 

at U.S. $4.83 billion that flowed into the en�re renewable 

energy sector.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The Financial statements of the Company are prepared in 

Compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 and significant 

accoun�ng policies used for the prepara�on of financial 

statements are disclosed in the notes to financial statement.

There is decline of 27.89% in total revenue in the financial year 

2019-20 as compared to previous year. The reason for decline 

in sales and margins as compared to financial year 2018-19 is 

low sales volume in government tender business in the State of 

Jammu and Kashmir due outbreak of turbulence over a period 

of more than 6 months in the state on account of abroga�on of 

Ar�cle 370 and 35A of Indian Cons�tu�on. Though in the long 

run Abroga�on of these Ar�cles has created possibili�es of 

development in the state which will increase demand for the 

company's products in the region, as its products are already 

have all the requisite approvals and well received by the end 

users, government agencies. Further, the Company started 

modernisa�on and debo�lenecking of the facili�es which got 

delayed and hampered the produc�on in ini�al part of the 

current fiscal at our Derabassi Unit in the financial year      

2019-20.  

BUSINESS STRATEGY: 

EXPANSION OF COMPANY'S PRESENCE IN THE DOMESTIC 

MARKETS: 

The Company is undertaking various marke�ng ac�vi�es to 

expand and enhance its presence in the exis�ng business 

segments by iden�fying markets where it can provide cost 

effec�ve, technically advanced products to its clients. The 

Company envisage having close contacts with major end-users 

to provide greater client-interfacing. 

FOCUS ON DEVELOPMENT OF INTERNATIONAL MARKETS 

FOR THE COMPANY'S PRODUCTS: 

The Company's products are being supplied to European, 

African and the Middle Eastern markets, South East Asia. With 

con�nued thrust to expand the company is developing La�n 

American market. 

STRENGTHENING OF PRODUCT PORTFOLIO 

The company is focused to strengthen the product por�olio by 

developing capabili�es to manufacture a wider range of 

products. To provide quality product at reasonable prices has 

always been the ul�mate aim of the Company. The Company at 

its new plant in Mangaon, Raigad 

MEETING QUALITY STANDARDS AND DEVELOPING 

CUSTOMER FOCUS: 

The Company is commi�ed towards best in class quality 

control processes and systems to manufacture absolute 

quality products for highest customer sa�sfac�on. Total 

Quality Control (TQC) is carried out through the whole process 

of produc�on; configura�ons of opera�on are being 

stringently respected. In order to achieve this, Company has 

tes�ng facili�es to ensure that all our products are thoroughly 

tested prior to dispatch from our factory so that grievances can 

be minimized. 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY: 

Company has in place robust Internal Control system to 

maximize the effec�veness and efficiency by including 

ac�vi�es that are tailored to the nature, size and complexity of 

the en�ty. The Company follows proper hierarchy for repor�ng 

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Par�culars  FY 2020 FY 2019

Total Revenue  23267.64 32268.00

EBIDTA   1363.32 2059.28

Profit a�er tax (PAT) 1007.51 1450.13

Earnings Per Share (EPS) 9.92 14.49
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s�mulus and return of consumer confidence is likely to be the 

key driver for a gradual recovery over the second half of the 

Financial Year 2020-21.

RISK & CHALLENGES  
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monsoon season over 2QFY21 (July-September FY21.

The biggest barrier, however, is the collapse of demand from 
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discre�onary spending, there is muted demand in all 

industries, barring essen�als such as groceries and FMCGs. Be 

it white goods, capital goods, automobiles and a host of others, 

the demand from consumers has plummeted. 

Also, demand bouncing back quickly to pre-COVID-19 levels is 

unlikely soon. As many ver�cals have laid-off workers, placed 

some on furlough or announced salary cuts, the overall 

consumer sen�ment is against any spending, except on 

essen�als. Considering that COVID-19 is expected to stay on as 

a seasonal flu, the prospects of an economic bounce back will 

be tempered accordingly. Consequently, individual and 

ins�tu�onal spending are bound to remain lacklustre for a year 

or so at least. 

The growth trajectory of the steel industry has its own set of 

challenges. We outline the five major challenges to the growth 

prospects discussed in the previous sec�on. The Indian steel 

industry is o�en regarded as uncompe��ve globally. In 2016, 

World Steel Dynamics ranked India second in terms of cost of 

conversion of iron ore to steel, a�er Ukraine. Indian mills were 

found to be more cost efficient in conver�ng iron ore to steel 

than their counterparts in China, Japan or Korea. Most Indian 

integrated steel producers ranked within the top 35 steel mills 

globally.
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rates to 25%, there are certain non-creditable taxes, du�es and 

cesses, specifically paid by the steel sector, which reduce the 
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Increasingly, environmental concerns are taking centre stage 

and the Indian steel industry is not immune to this trend. The 

steel industry is energy-intensive and is the second biggest 

consumer of energy globally. This leads to a higher carbon 

footprint and also affects the immediate environment. Using 

energy-efficient methods to produce steel will not only reduce 

produc�on costs but also improve compe��veness. This can 

be achieved through highly developed energy management 

systems and usage of the latest technologies in steel 

produc�on

OVERVIEW OF SOLAR STRUCTURE INDUSTRY 

Your Company is accelera�ng in Solar module Structure 

segment by providing good quality product at Domes�c as well 

on exports. It established a new state of art facility at Mangaon, 

Raigad-Maharashtra is designed keeping in mind the 

geographical and surface data of the land where the farm is to 

be installed. According to analy�cs company Global Data, with 

49% tenders announced and a 75.4% share, India was No. 1 

among all other countries in the region, followed by the 

Philippines (with six tenders and a 9.2% share) and Pakistan 

(with five tenders and a 7.7% share), according to a Saur Energy 

Interna�onal report.

Globally, though, the solar scene was gloomy.

Only 291 power plant tenders were announced during Q4 of 

calendar year 2019, which was a fall of 28% over the last four-

quarter average of 404, according to the report. All top issuers 

of solar tenders for December 2019 in terms of power capacity 

involved in the APAC region were from India. About 85% of this 

equipment has been imported from China, Vietnam and 
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slapped on imports of these kinds of goods, the industry 

con�nues to bring equipment from abroad.

According to the Indian Express report, the money on imports 

of PV cells & modules in the last five years was about three 
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Jammu and Kashmir due outbreak of turbulence over a period 

of more than 6 months in the state on account of abroga�on of 

Ar�cle 370 and 35A of Indian Cons�tu�on. Though in the long 

run Abroga�on of these Ar�cles has created possibili�es of 

development in the state which will increase demand for the 

company's products in the region, as its products are already 

have all the requisite approvals and well received by the end 

users, government agencies. Further, the Company started 

modernisa�on and debo�lenecking of the facili�es which got 

delayed and hampered the produc�on in ini�al part of the 

current fiscal at our Derabassi Unit in the financial year      

2019-20.  
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EXPANSION OF COMPANY'S PRESENCE IN THE DOMESTIC 

MARKETS: 

The Company is undertaking various marke�ng ac�vi�es to 

expand and enhance its presence in the exis�ng business 

segments by iden�fying markets where it can provide cost 

effec�ve, technically advanced products to its clients. The 

Company envisage having close contacts with major end-users 

to provide greater client-interfacing. 

FOCUS ON DEVELOPMENT OF INTERNATIONAL MARKETS 

FOR THE COMPANY'S PRODUCTS: 

The Company's products are being supplied to European, 

African and the Middle Eastern markets, South East Asia. With 

con�nued thrust to expand the company is developing La�n 

American market. 

STRENGTHENING OF PRODUCT PORTFOLIO 

The company is focused to strengthen the product por�olio by 

developing capabili�es to manufacture a wider range of 

products. To provide quality product at reasonable prices has 

always been the ul�mate aim of the Company. The Company at 

its new plant in Mangaon, Raigad 

MEETING QUALITY STANDARDS AND DEVELOPING 

CUSTOMER FOCUS: 

The Company is commi�ed towards best in class quality 

control processes and systems to manufacture absolute 

quality products for highest customer sa�sfac�on. Total 

Quality Control (TQC) is carried out through the whole process 

of produc�on; configura�ons of opera�on are being 

stringently respected. In order to achieve this, Company has 

tes�ng facili�es to ensure that all our products are thoroughly 

tested prior to dispatch from our factory so that grievances can 

be minimized. 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY: 

Company has in place robust Internal Control system to 

maximize the effec�veness and efficiency by including 

ac�vi�es that are tailored to the nature, size and complexity of 

the en�ty. The Company follows proper hierarchy for repor�ng 
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of rou�ne ac�vi�es. Direct access to the senior Management is 

available in extreme cases. The Company has framed whistle 

blower policy to report concerned areas to the Management. 

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining 

internal financial controls. The Company has adequate Internal 

Control system with reference to financial statements and to 

ensure that all assets are safeguarded and protected against 

loss from unauthorized use or disposi�on. 

HUMAN RESOURCE: 

Human Resources are capital of the Company. It could be 

invested through educa�on and training which leads to an 

improvement in the quality and level of produc�on. The 

Company has always given importance for developing 

individuals as well as teams. The system followed is 

transparent and performance based and it endeavors to 

retain, develop and provide be�er working environment to the 

employees by providing an atmosphere of trusteeship, 

compe��on and challenge, thereby providing opportuni�es 

for personal and professional growth through training and 

ample career enhancement opportuni�es. JTL Infra Limited 

has shown full commitment towards employees, investors, 

contractors, consultants and all related personnel by providing 

safe-working condi�ons along with other welfare measures.

RISKS AND CONCERNS

Risk management is an integral part of the Company's 

opera�ons. The Risk Management Policy of the Company 

facilitates iden�fica�on and analysis of various internal and 

external risks, their implica�on on the business and mi�ga�on 

measures. All the risks are regularly reviewed and focused 

approach is undertaken to mi�gate the risks to curtail its 

impact on the opera�ons of the Company.

The major risks and suggested mi�ga�on measures are 

described as under:

Corona virus (COVID-19): The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic 

globally and in India is causing a significant disrup�on and 

slowdown of economic ac�vity. Measures taken to contain the 

spread of the virus, including travel bans, quaran�nes, social 

distancing and closures of non-essen�al services and the 

uncertainty associated with the li�ing or re-imposi�on of 

these restric�ons, have further aggravated the business 

environment. As a result, the IMF expects the global economy 

to contract sharply by 3% in CY 2020, in a baseline scenario, 

which assumes that the pandemic fades in the second half of 

CY 2020 and containment efforts can be gradually unwound. 

The IMF expects the global economy to grow by 5.8 percent in 

CY 2021 as economic ac�vity normalises, helped by policy 

support by way of fiscal and monetary s�mulus:

•  Slow Economic Growth Risk: Economic slowdown 

adversely impacts on all steel end user segments like oil 

and gas, construc�on, capital goods, consumer durables, 

automobiles etc. The Company's revenue stream may get 

affected from certain unfavourable events like high 

infla�on, macroeconomic slowdown, etc.

 Mi�ga�on strategy: With efficient government s�muli, 

India is well set for strong growth in the coming years. The 

Company's revenues are well-diversified because of its 

wide spanning product por�olio, mul�ple end user 

sectors and strong presence in interna�onal markets

•  Compe�tors' Risk: The Company might receive high 

compe��on from its peers, as the barriers to entry in the 

market are low a�er liberaliza�on of steel trade.

 Mi�ga�on Strategy: The Company keep focusing on 

evaluate the products demand and has developed value 

added products that helps to ensure its product an�quity 

and its high product quality safeguards it from global 

compe��ve risks.

•  Currency Risk: The Company is exposed to currency risks 

as its clients are spread across all over the world, which 

might have favourable or adverse effect on the Company

 Mi�ga�on Strategy: The Company has a well-defined 

Foreign Exchange (FX) risk management system under 

which it op�mises the risk using various hedging ac�vi�es. 

The Company uses deriva�ve financial instruments, such 

as forward contracts to hedge its foreign currency 

exposures.

•  Input Risk: Fluctua�ons in the price could have a material 

adverse effect on cost of sales or the Company's ability to 
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meet customer demands. There can be no assurance that 

the Company will always be successful in its efforts to 

protect the business from the vola�lity of the market price 

of raw materials, and the business can be affected by 

drama�c movements in prices of raw materials. 

 Mi�ga�on Strategy: The Company has laid clear terms in 

dealing with its creditors and has also established long 

las�ng rela�onship with major suppliers for long term 

contracts of raw material and supply of finished products 

respec�vely. It also keeps a close watch on the demand 

scenario and thereby adjusts its inventory levels in order 

to mi�gate the risk related to in raw material price 

vola�lity.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT: 

Statements in this report on Management discussion and 

analysis rela�ng to the Company's objec�ves, projec�ons, 

es�mates, expecta�ons or predic�ons may be forward looking 

statements within the meaning of applicable security laws or 

regula�ons. These statements are based upon certain 

assump�ons and expecta�ons of future events. Actual results 

could however differ materially from those expressed or 

implied. Important factors that could make a difference to the 

Company's opera�ons include global and domes�c demand-

supply condi�ons, selling prices, raw material costs and 

availability, changes in government regula�ons and tax 

structure, general economic developments in India and 

abroad, factors such as li�ga�on, industrial rela�ons and other 

unforeseen events. The Company assumes no responsibility in 

respect of forward looking statements made herein which may 

undergo changes in future on the basis of subsequent 

developments, informa�on or events.
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Company's revenues are well-diversified because of its 

wide spanning product por�olio, mul�ple end user 

sectors and strong presence in interna�onal markets

•  Compe�tors' Risk: The Company might receive high 

compe��on from its peers, as the barriers to entry in the 

market are low a�er liberaliza�on of steel trade.

 Mi�ga�on Strategy: The Company keep focusing on 

evaluate the products demand and has developed value 

added products that helps to ensure its product an�quity 

and its high product quality safeguards it from global 

compe��ve risks.

•  Currency Risk: The Company is exposed to currency risks 

as its clients are spread across all over the world, which 

might have favourable or adverse effect on the Company
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Foreign Exchange (FX) risk management system under 
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meet customer demands. There can be no assurance that 

the Company will always be successful in its efforts to 

protect the business from the vola�lity of the market price 

of raw materials, and the business can be affected by 

drama�c movements in prices of raw materials. 

 Mi�ga�on Strategy: The Company has laid clear terms in 

dealing with its creditors and has also established long 

las�ng rela�onship with major suppliers for long term 

contracts of raw material and supply of finished products 

respec�vely. It also keeps a close watch on the demand 

scenario and thereby adjusts its inventory levels in order 

to mi�gate the risk related to in raw material price 

vola�lity.
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statements within the meaning of applicable security laws or 

regula�ons. These statements are based upon certain 
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could however differ materially from those expressed or 

implied. Important factors that could make a difference to the 

Company's opera�ons include global and domes�c demand-

supply condi�ons, selling prices, raw material costs and 
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unforeseen events. The Company assumes no responsibility in 

respect of forward looking statements made herein which may 

undergo changes in future on the basis of subsequent 

developments, informa�on or events.
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Dear Stakeholders, 

The Board of Directors hereby submit the report of the business 

and opera�ons of your Company, along with the audited 

financial statements, for the financial year ended 31st  March, 

2020.

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW 

The financial summary of the Company for the year under 

review is given below for your considera�on.

During the financial year 2019-20 the Company registered total 

Revenue from opera�ons of Rs. 22992.86 lakhs whereas in 

previous year ended 31st March, 2020 it was Rs. 32186.16 Lacs. 

The key financial figures are as under:  

• Sales volume at Rs. 22992.86 Lakhs as compare to Rs. 

32186.16 Lakhs in FY 19, decreased by 28.56% 

• Profit Before Tax decreased by 33.80% to Rs. 1363.32  lakhs 

(Previous Year Rs. 2059.27 lakhs)

• Profit A�er Tax decreased by 30.55% to Rs. 1007.51 lakhs 

(Previous Year Rs. 1450.12 lakhs) 

• Earnings Per Share decreased by 31.54% to Rs. 9.92 per 

share (Previous Year Rs. 14.49 per share)

Primarily it was due to sluggish growth of consump�on and 

consequent low demand in domes�c as well global markets. 

However, despite the pandemic Covid-19 outburst, your 

directors are expec�ng that in the current financial your 

company will again register good growth in sales as overall 

demand scenario is gradually improving and company's 

DIRECTORS' REPORT

recently commissioned state of the art manufacturing facili�es 

at Mangaon, Maharashtra become fully opera�onal.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

During the year under review, though company's sale and 

profitability registered slight degrowth, yet your company's 

a�racted new customers, broadened its reach in northern India 

- company's conven�onal markets and started its journey in 

new territory i.e. western part of India, company's newly 

commissioned manufacturing facili�es in Mangaon become 

fully opera�onal and company has started enrolling new 

dealers, distributors in this emerging market and company 

products and their quality is well received by the end user.  

In line with its long term objec�ves, your company is commi�ed 

to achieve new heights in years to come and quite confident of 

achieving Rs. 1000+ Crore sales target within couple of years 

through organic and inorganic route. 

The main ac�vity of the Company is to manufacture and sale of 

ERW Black and Galvanized steel pipes, development of 

Infrastructural ac�vi�es and all other ac�vi�es revolve around 

that and henceforth, no product segment was made as per Ind 

AS-108 'Opera�ng Segments'.  During the period under review, 

there was no change in the nature of business of the Company.

CLOSING BALANCES IN RESERVE/ OTHER EQUITY

During the year under review, your company has allo�ed 

600,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each to the Promoters and 

persons belonging to the promoter's group, at premium of Rs. 

162/- per Equity Share upon conversion of equal number of 

warrants issued earlier on preferen�al basis, resul�ng into 

increase in paid -up capital of Rs. 60 lakhs and increase of Rs. 

972 lakhs in Security Premium Account. 

(Amount Rs. Lakhs)

Par�culars  FY 2020 FY 2019

Revenue from Opera�ons  22992.86 32186.16

Other Income  274.78 81.84

Total Revenue  23267.64 32267.99

Total Expenses  21904.32 30208.72

EBITA   1916.54 2449.65

Finance Cost  (404.90) (316.77)

Deprecia�on and Amor�za�on (148.32) (73.60)

Profit Before Tax  1363.32 2059.27

Profit A�er Tax  1007.51 1450.12

(Amount Rs. Lakhs)

Par�culars  FY 2020 FY 2019

Capital Reserve  292.20 13.20

Securi�es Premium 984.28 12.28

Retained Earnings  3785.32 2777.81

Money received against  - 608.00

Share Warrants

Total   5061.80 3411.29
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Holders of remaining 600,000 warrants didn't opt for 

conversion of the same in the equity share within the 

s�pulated period of 18 months from the date of warrant 

allotment, hence the amount paid as subscrip�on money 

against these warrants, amoun�ng to Rs. 279 Lacs, was 

forfeited by the Company and credited to Capital Reserve 

Account.  

No amount has been transferred or proposed to be transferred 

to any other reserve for the financial year ended 31st March, 

2020.

DIVIDEND 

Your Directors have decided to reinvest the earnings in the 

growth of business and for this reason, have decided to not to 

recommend any amount for declara�on of Dividend for the 

year under review. Hence, no informa�on is required in terms 

of Sec�on 134(3)(k) of the Act.

IMPACT DUE TO COVID-19

In the later part of financial year under review, the COVID-19 

pandemic spread rapidly across the world and it became a 

global crisis forcing governments to enforce lock-downs of all 

economic ac�vity. For the Company the focus immediately 

shi�ed to ensuring the health and well-being of all employees, 

its customers and other stakeholders. All necessary safety and 

health preven�on measures were adopted by the Company 

across its establishments, factories and offices simultaneously.  

Employees were asked to work from home, proper 

sani�za�on, strict safety standards were adopted. In line with 

the government guidelines, manufacturing ac�vi�es were 

started gradually and supplies to the customers restored by 

mid-May 2020, and all cri�cal orders were catered on priority, 

This has reinforced customer confidence in the company and 

many of them have expressed their apprecia�on and gra�tude 

for keeping their businesses running under most challenging 

condi�ons. 

Although there are uncertain�es due to the pandemic and 

reversal of disrup�on caused by it might take some more �me, 

but the company is in strong financial discipline, have robust 

balance sheet posi�ons and hopes to navigate the challenges 

presented by Covid-19 and gain momentum again with 

improved sales and the profitability in the forthcoming 

quarter.

No material changes / commitments affec�ng financial 

posi�on of the Company have occurred from end of the 

financial year to the date of this report.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Despite severe economic disrup�on caused by Covid-19 

pandemic, we are very confident that Indian Industries will 

recover from this economic situa�on, as Indian economy has 

tremendous poten�al of further demand, its capabili�es to 

address the challenges, structural changes its undergoing, 

spate of measures announced by the Central Government like 

Atmanirbhar Bharat, Make in India, Vocal for Local etc. We 

foresee a similar revival in demand for company's products as 

well. Signs of increased demand ac�vity have been witnessed 

in industrial and commercial segments well during the second 

quarter of current financial year itself.  

Besides this, there are healthy indicators of an uptrend in 

demand for pipes from various projects such as power plants, 

irriga�on schemes, ports, railways and metro rail projects. 

Even Covid-19 is resul�ng in great demand driver for the steel 

pipes, structures and pre-fabricated structures, as it forced to 

build make-shi� isola�on wards, special hospitals, covid care 

centers, installa�on of sani�za�on tunnels, addi�onal 

barricading for maintaining physical distancing. Moreover, in 

building and infrastructure segment, demand for steel tubes 

and pipes are increasing as they require more ready to install 

solu�ons than the conven�onal one. 

Further, most of the countries are gradually reopening from 

their lockdowns since mid-May, recovery of economic 

ac�vi�es in interna�onal market is also expected in the later 

part of this financial year.

DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Based on the framework of internal financial controls 

established and maintained by the Company, work performed 

by the internal, statutory, cost and secretarial auditors 

including financial repor�ng by the Statutory Auditors and the 

reviews performed by Management and the relevant Board 

Commi�ees, including Audit Commi�ee, the Board is of the 
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Dear Stakeholders, 

The Board of Directors hereby submit the report of the business 

and opera�ons of your Company, along with the audited 

financial statements, for the financial year ended 31st  March, 

2020.

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW 

The financial summary of the Company for the year under 

review is given below for your considera�on.

During the financial year 2019-20 the Company registered total 

Revenue from opera�ons of Rs. 22992.86 lakhs whereas in 

previous year ended 31st March, 2020 it was Rs. 32186.16 Lacs. 

The key financial figures are as under:  

• Sales volume at Rs. 22992.86 Lakhs as compare to Rs. 

32186.16 Lakhs in FY 19, decreased by 28.56% 

• Profit Before Tax decreased by 33.80% to Rs. 1363.32  lakhs 

(Previous Year Rs. 2059.27 lakhs)

• Profit A�er Tax decreased by 30.55% to Rs. 1007.51 lakhs 

(Previous Year Rs. 1450.12 lakhs) 

• Earnings Per Share decreased by 31.54% to Rs. 9.92 per 

share (Previous Year Rs. 14.49 per share)

Primarily it was due to sluggish growth of consump�on and 

consequent low demand in domes�c as well global markets. 

However, despite the pandemic Covid-19 outburst, your 

directors are expec�ng that in the current financial your 

company will again register good growth in sales as overall 

demand scenario is gradually improving and company's 

DIRECTORS' REPORT

recently commissioned state of the art manufacturing facili�es 

at Mangaon, Maharashtra become fully opera�onal.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

During the year under review, though company's sale and 

profitability registered slight degrowth, yet your company's 

a�racted new customers, broadened its reach in northern India 

- company's conven�onal markets and started its journey in 

new territory i.e. western part of India, company's newly 

commissioned manufacturing facili�es in Mangaon become 

fully opera�onal and company has started enrolling new 

dealers, distributors in this emerging market and company 

products and their quality is well received by the end user.  

In line with its long term objec�ves, your company is commi�ed 

to achieve new heights in years to come and quite confident of 

achieving Rs. 1000+ Crore sales target within couple of years 

through organic and inorganic route. 

The main ac�vity of the Company is to manufacture and sale of 

ERW Black and Galvanized steel pipes, development of 

Infrastructural ac�vi�es and all other ac�vi�es revolve around 

that and henceforth, no product segment was made as per Ind 

AS-108 'Opera�ng Segments'.  During the period under review, 

there was no change in the nature of business of the Company.

CLOSING BALANCES IN RESERVE/ OTHER EQUITY

During the year under review, your company has allo�ed 

600,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each to the Promoters and 

persons belonging to the promoter's group, at premium of Rs. 

162/- per Equity Share upon conversion of equal number of 

warrants issued earlier on preferen�al basis, resul�ng into 

increase in paid -up capital of Rs. 60 lakhs and increase of Rs. 

972 lakhs in Security Premium Account. 

(Amount Rs. Lakhs)

Par�culars  FY 2020 FY 2019

Revenue from Opera�ons  22992.86 32186.16

Other Income  274.78 81.84

Total Revenue  23267.64 32267.99

Total Expenses  21904.32 30208.72

EBITA   1916.54 2449.65

Finance Cost  (404.90) (316.77)

Deprecia�on and Amor�za�on (148.32) (73.60)

Profit Before Tax  1363.32 2059.27

Profit A�er Tax  1007.51 1450.12

(Amount Rs. Lakhs)

Par�culars  FY 2020 FY 2019

Capital Reserve  292.20 13.20

Securi�es Premium 984.28 12.28

Retained Earnings  3785.32 2777.81

Money received against  - 608.00

Share Warrants

Total   5061.80 3411.29
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Holders of remaining 600,000 warrants didn't opt for 

conversion of the same in the equity share within the 

s�pulated period of 18 months from the date of warrant 

allotment, hence the amount paid as subscrip�on money 

against these warrants, amoun�ng to Rs. 279 Lacs, was 

forfeited by the Company and credited to Capital Reserve 

Account.  

No amount has been transferred or proposed to be transferred 

to any other reserve for the financial year ended 31st March, 

2020.

DIVIDEND 

Your Directors have decided to reinvest the earnings in the 

growth of business and for this reason, have decided to not to 

recommend any amount for declara�on of Dividend for the 

year under review. Hence, no informa�on is required in terms 

of Sec�on 134(3)(k) of the Act.

IMPACT DUE TO COVID-19

In the later part of financial year under review, the COVID-19 

pandemic spread rapidly across the world and it became a 

global crisis forcing governments to enforce lock-downs of all 

economic ac�vity. For the Company the focus immediately 

shi�ed to ensuring the health and well-being of all employees, 

its customers and other stakeholders. All necessary safety and 

health preven�on measures were adopted by the Company 

across its establishments, factories and offices simultaneously.  

Employees were asked to work from home, proper 

sani�za�on, strict safety standards were adopted. In line with 

the government guidelines, manufacturing ac�vi�es were 

started gradually and supplies to the customers restored by 

mid-May 2020, and all cri�cal orders were catered on priority, 

This has reinforced customer confidence in the company and 

many of them have expressed their apprecia�on and gra�tude 

for keeping their businesses running under most challenging 

condi�ons. 

Although there are uncertain�es due to the pandemic and 

reversal of disrup�on caused by it might take some more �me, 

but the company is in strong financial discipline, have robust 

balance sheet posi�ons and hopes to navigate the challenges 

presented by Covid-19 and gain momentum again with 

improved sales and the profitability in the forthcoming 

quarter.

No material changes / commitments affec�ng financial 

posi�on of the Company have occurred from end of the 

financial year to the date of this report.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Despite severe economic disrup�on caused by Covid-19 

pandemic, we are very confident that Indian Industries will 

recover from this economic situa�on, as Indian economy has 

tremendous poten�al of further demand, its capabili�es to 

address the challenges, structural changes its undergoing, 

spate of measures announced by the Central Government like 

Atmanirbhar Bharat, Make in India, Vocal for Local etc. We 

foresee a similar revival in demand for company's products as 

well. Signs of increased demand ac�vity have been witnessed 

in industrial and commercial segments well during the second 

quarter of current financial year itself.  

Besides this, there are healthy indicators of an uptrend in 

demand for pipes from various projects such as power plants, 

irriga�on schemes, ports, railways and metro rail projects. 

Even Covid-19 is resul�ng in great demand driver for the steel 

pipes, structures and pre-fabricated structures, as it forced to 

build make-shi� isola�on wards, special hospitals, covid care 

centers, installa�on of sani�za�on tunnels, addi�onal 

barricading for maintaining physical distancing. Moreover, in 

building and infrastructure segment, demand for steel tubes 

and pipes are increasing as they require more ready to install 

solu�ons than the conven�onal one. 

Further, most of the countries are gradually reopening from 

their lockdowns since mid-May, recovery of economic 

ac�vi�es in interna�onal market is also expected in the later 

part of this financial year.

DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Based on the framework of internal financial controls 

established and maintained by the Company, work performed 

by the internal, statutory, cost and secretarial auditors 

including financial repor�ng by the Statutory Auditors and the 

reviews performed by Management and the relevant Board 

Commi�ees, including Audit Commi�ee, the Board is of the 
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opinion that the Company's internal financial controls were 

adequate and effec�ve during Financial Year 2019-20.

Accordingly, pursuant to Sec�on 134(5) of the Companies Act, 

2013, the Board of Directors, to the best of their knowledge 

and ability confirm:

a) that in the prepara�on of the Annual Accounts, the 

applicable accoun�ng standards have been followed and 

that no material departures have been made from the 

same;

b) that we have selected such accoun�ng policies and applied 

them consistently and made judgments and es�mates that 

are reasonable and prudent, so as to give a true and fair 

view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the 

financial year and of the profits of the Company for that 

period;

c) that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the 

maintenance of adequate accoun�ng records in 

accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 

for safeguarding the assets of the company and for 

preven�ng and detec�ng fraud and other irregulari�es;

d) that the annual accounts have prepared on a going concern 

basis;

e) that proper systems to ensure compliance with the 

provisions of all applicable laws were in place and that such 

systems are adequate and opera�ng effec�vely; and

f) that proper internal financial controls were laid down and 

that such internal financial controls are adequate and 

opera�ng effec�vely.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

In terms of Regula�on 34 of the SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 ('Lis�ng 

Regula�ons') Management Discussion and Analysis report 

("MD&A Report") providing a detailed overview of your 

Company's performance, industry trends, business and risks 

involved is provided separately and is forming part of the 

Annual Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND ETHICS:

Governance is not an ac�on but a con�nuous endeavor which 

reflects in prac�ces being followed by an Organiza�on. Your 

Company strongly believes in developing best corporate 

governance policies and procedures based on principals of fair 

and transparent disclosures, equity, accountability and 

responsibility.

A detailed report on Corporate Governance, in terms of 

Regula�on 34 of the Lis�ng Regula�ons is forming    part of the 

Annual Report. A cer�ficate confirming compliance with 

requirements of Corporate Governance as enumerated under 

the extant provisions of Lis�ng Regula�ons issued by M/s. S.V. 

Associates, Company Secretaries, is also annexed to the said 

report.

BOARD EVALUATION

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 

SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons, the Board has carried out an annual 

evalua�on of its own performance and that of its Commi�ees 

a�er seeking inputs from all the Directors and members of 

relevant Commi�ees. The Board also carried out performance 

evalua�on of each Director based on the evalua�on carried 

out by the Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee (NRC). 

The criteria for performance evalua�on was set out by NRC and 

adopted by the Board. These included composi�on and 

structure of the Board and its Commi�ees, effec�veness of the 

Commi�ees, knowledge of the Company's opera�ons by the 

members, their par�cipa�on at mee�ngs including 

preparedness for issues for considera�on, level of 

contribu�ons in assessing and improving performance of the 

Company and interac�ons amongst themselves and with 

senior management. Adherence to the Code of Conduct of the 

Company, fiduciary and statutory obliga�ons, con�nuing 

maintenance of independence by independent Directors was a 

part of the performance evalua�on.

The Board was sa�sfied with its composi�on and its diversified 

nature and that all Directors upheld the highest standards of 

integrity and probity, adhered to the Company's code of 

conduct, made construc�ve and effec�ve contribu�on at 

mee�ngs and generally carried out their responsibili�es well in 

the interest of the Company and its stakeholders.

A separate mee�ng of independent Directors was held to 

review the performance of non-independent Directors, 
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performance of the Board as a whole and performance of the 

Chairman of the Company, taking into account the views of 

other Directors. That review was most sa�sfactory.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors provides strategic direc�on and 

supervision to an organiza�on. Your Company's Board consists 

of learned professionals and experienced individuals from 

different fields. 

Subsequent to the closure of the financial year ended 31st 

March, 2020 following changes took place in the composi�on 

of the Board of your Company:

Based on the recommenda�on of the Nomina�on and 

Remunera�on Commi�ee, the Board of Directors of your 

Company in its mee�ng held on 13th May, 2020, re appointed 

Mr. Madan Mohan Singla as Managing Director and Mr. Rakesh 

Garg as the Whole Time Director of the Company for a period 

of five years, subject to approval of the Shareholders in the 

ensuring Annual General Mee�ng.  

Further, w.e.f 30th June, 2020, Mr. Sukhdev Raj Sharma was 

appointed as an Addi�onal Independent Director of the 

Company for a term of 5 years w.e.f from 30th June, 2020 to 

29th June, 2025 and the Board of Directors of your Company 

recommended his appointment in the ensuring Annual 

General Mee�ng.

Pursuant to the Provisions of Companies Act, 2013 ("Act") Mr. 

Madan Mohan Singla, re�re by rota�on in the ensuing Annual 

General Mee�ng and being eligible offers himself for re-

appointment. 

The informa�on of Directors, seeking appointment/re-

appointment, pursuant to Regula�on 36(3) of the Lis�ng 

Regula�ons and Companies Act, 2013 is provided in the no�ce 

of the 29th Annual General Mee�ng of the Company.

DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Independent Directors have confirmed that they meet the 

criteria of Independence as s�pulated under Sec�on 149(6) of 

the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Regula�on 16 (1) (b) 

and Sec�on 25 of LODR, 2015 and they are not aware of any 

circumstances or situa�on, which exist or may be reasonably 

an�cipated, that could impair or impact their ability to 

discharge their du�es with an objec�ve independent 

judgment and without any external influence as an 

Independent Director of the Company.

The Board conforms to the declara�on of the Independent 

Directors and there being no doubts as to veracity of the same, 

places the same on record.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP)

During the Financial Year 2019-20, there was following 

changes in Key Managerial Person (KMP): 

Mr. Mohinder Singh appointed as the Company Secretary & 

Compliance Officer w.e.f. 29th August 2019 in place of Mr. 

Sridhar Pentela who has resigned from the post w.e.f. 28th 

August 2019. Earlier, Mr. Sridhar Pentela was appointed 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer w.e.f. 29th July, 2019 

in place of Mr. Neeraj Kaushal who resigned from the post 

w.e.f. 30.06.2019

The following are the Key Managerial Personnel of your 

Company as on 31st March, 2020:

1. Mr. Madan Mohan Singla

 Managing Director

2. Mr. Vijay Singla*   

 Whole-Time Director

3. Mr. Rakesh Garg   

 Whole-Time Director

4. Mr. Dhruv Singla   

 Chief Financial Officer

5. Mr. Mohinder Singh   

 Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

* Mr. Vijay Singla, ceased to be whole �me director of the Company 

w.e.f. 30th May, 2020

BOARD MEETING

The Board met 8 (eight) �mes during the year, the details of 

which are given in the Corporate Governance Report that 

forms part of the Annual Report. The intervening gap between 

the mee�ngs was within the period prescribed under the 

Companies Act, 2013 and the Securi�es and Exchange Board of 
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opinion that the Company's internal financial controls were 

adequate and effec�ve during Financial Year 2019-20.

Accordingly, pursuant to Sec�on 134(5) of the Companies Act, 

2013, the Board of Directors, to the best of their knowledge 

and ability confirm:

a) that in the prepara�on of the Annual Accounts, the 

applicable accoun�ng standards have been followed and 

that no material departures have been made from the 

same;

b) that we have selected such accoun�ng policies and applied 

them consistently and made judgments and es�mates that 

are reasonable and prudent, so as to give a true and fair 

view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the 

financial year and of the profits of the Company for that 

period;

c) that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the 

maintenance of adequate accoun�ng records in 

accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 

for safeguarding the assets of the company and for 

preven�ng and detec�ng fraud and other irregulari�es;

d) that the annual accounts have prepared on a going concern 

basis;

e) that proper systems to ensure compliance with the 

provisions of all applicable laws were in place and that such 

systems are adequate and opera�ng effec�vely; and

f) that proper internal financial controls were laid down and 

that such internal financial controls are adequate and 

opera�ng effec�vely.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

In terms of Regula�on 34 of the SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 ('Lis�ng 

Regula�ons') Management Discussion and Analysis report 

("MD&A Report") providing a detailed overview of your 

Company's performance, industry trends, business and risks 

involved is provided separately and is forming part of the 

Annual Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND ETHICS:

Governance is not an ac�on but a con�nuous endeavor which 

reflects in prac�ces being followed by an Organiza�on. Your 

Company strongly believes in developing best corporate 

governance policies and procedures based on principals of fair 

and transparent disclosures, equity, accountability and 

responsibility.

A detailed report on Corporate Governance, in terms of 

Regula�on 34 of the Lis�ng Regula�ons is forming    part of the 

Annual Report. A cer�ficate confirming compliance with 

requirements of Corporate Governance as enumerated under 

the extant provisions of Lis�ng Regula�ons issued by M/s. S.V. 

Associates, Company Secretaries, is also annexed to the said 

report.

BOARD EVALUATION

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 

SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons, the Board has carried out an annual 

evalua�on of its own performance and that of its Commi�ees 

a�er seeking inputs from all the Directors and members of 

relevant Commi�ees. The Board also carried out performance 

evalua�on of each Director based on the evalua�on carried 

out by the Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee (NRC). 

The criteria for performance evalua�on was set out by NRC and 

adopted by the Board. These included composi�on and 

structure of the Board and its Commi�ees, effec�veness of the 

Commi�ees, knowledge of the Company's opera�ons by the 

members, their par�cipa�on at mee�ngs including 

preparedness for issues for considera�on, level of 

contribu�ons in assessing and improving performance of the 

Company and interac�ons amongst themselves and with 

senior management. Adherence to the Code of Conduct of the 

Company, fiduciary and statutory obliga�ons, con�nuing 

maintenance of independence by independent Directors was a 

part of the performance evalua�on.

The Board was sa�sfied with its composi�on and its diversified 

nature and that all Directors upheld the highest standards of 

integrity and probity, adhered to the Company's code of 

conduct, made construc�ve and effec�ve contribu�on at 

mee�ngs and generally carried out their responsibili�es well in 

the interest of the Company and its stakeholders.

A separate mee�ng of independent Directors was held to 

review the performance of non-independent Directors, 
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performance of the Board as a whole and performance of the 

Chairman of the Company, taking into account the views of 

other Directors. That review was most sa�sfactory.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors provides strategic direc�on and 

supervision to an organiza�on. Your Company's Board consists 

of learned professionals and experienced individuals from 

different fields. 

Subsequent to the closure of the financial year ended 31st 

March, 2020 following changes took place in the composi�on 

of the Board of your Company:

Based on the recommenda�on of the Nomina�on and 

Remunera�on Commi�ee, the Board of Directors of your 

Company in its mee�ng held on 13th May, 2020, re appointed 

Mr. Madan Mohan Singla as Managing Director and Mr. Rakesh 

Garg as the Whole Time Director of the Company for a period 

of five years, subject to approval of the Shareholders in the 

ensuring Annual General Mee�ng.  

Further, w.e.f 30th June, 2020, Mr. Sukhdev Raj Sharma was 

appointed as an Addi�onal Independent Director of the 

Company for a term of 5 years w.e.f from 30th June, 2020 to 

29th June, 2025 and the Board of Directors of your Company 

recommended his appointment in the ensuring Annual 

General Mee�ng.

Pursuant to the Provisions of Companies Act, 2013 ("Act") Mr. 

Madan Mohan Singla, re�re by rota�on in the ensuing Annual 

General Mee�ng and being eligible offers himself for re-

appointment. 

The informa�on of Directors, seeking appointment/re-

appointment, pursuant to Regula�on 36(3) of the Lis�ng 

Regula�ons and Companies Act, 2013 is provided in the no�ce 

of the 29th Annual General Mee�ng of the Company.

DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Independent Directors have confirmed that they meet the 

criteria of Independence as s�pulated under Sec�on 149(6) of 

the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Regula�on 16 (1) (b) 

and Sec�on 25 of LODR, 2015 and they are not aware of any 

circumstances or situa�on, which exist or may be reasonably 

an�cipated, that could impair or impact their ability to 

discharge their du�es with an objec�ve independent 

judgment and without any external influence as an 

Independent Director of the Company.

The Board conforms to the declara�on of the Independent 

Directors and there being no doubts as to veracity of the same, 

places the same on record.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP)

During the Financial Year 2019-20, there was following 

changes in Key Managerial Person (KMP): 

Mr. Mohinder Singh appointed as the Company Secretary & 

Compliance Officer w.e.f. 29th August 2019 in place of Mr. 

Sridhar Pentela who has resigned from the post w.e.f. 28th 

August 2019. Earlier, Mr. Sridhar Pentela was appointed 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer w.e.f. 29th July, 2019 

in place of Mr. Neeraj Kaushal who resigned from the post 

w.e.f. 30.06.2019

The following are the Key Managerial Personnel of your 

Company as on 31st March, 2020:

1. Mr. Madan Mohan Singla

 Managing Director

2. Mr. Vijay Singla*   

 Whole-Time Director

3. Mr. Rakesh Garg   

 Whole-Time Director

4. Mr. Dhruv Singla   

 Chief Financial Officer

5. Mr. Mohinder Singh   

 Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

* Mr. Vijay Singla, ceased to be whole �me director of the Company 

w.e.f. 30th May, 2020

BOARD MEETING

The Board met 8 (eight) �mes during the year, the details of 

which are given in the Corporate Governance Report that 

forms part of the Annual Report. The intervening gap between 

the mee�ngs was within the period prescribed under the 

Companies Act, 2013 and the Securi�es and Exchange Board of 
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India (Lis�ng Obliga�on and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regula�ons, 2015 ("Lis�ng Regula�ons"), as amended from 

�me to �me. 

Further, the Independent Directors at their separate mee�ng, 

reviewed the performance of the Board, Chairman of the 

Board and of Non-Independent Directors, as required under 

the Act and the Lis�ng Agreement. 

The Independent Directors at their separate mee�ng also 

assessed the quality, quan�ty and �melines of flow of 

informa�on between your Company Management and the 

Board of Directors of your Company.

COMMITEES OF THE BOARD

As a ma�er of good corporate governance and to ensure be�er 

accountability and to deal with specific areas/concerns that 

need a closer view, various board level Commi�ees have been 

cons�tuted in terms of the provisions of the Act and the Lis�ng 

Regula�ons under formal approval of the Board. There exists 

an Audit Commi�ee, Nomina�on & Remunera�on Commi�ee, 

Stakeholders Rela�onship Commi�ee, Corporate Social 

Responsibility Commi�ee, Finance & Banking Commi�ee and 

Commi�ee of Directors of the Board. 

The details of the composi�on, brief terms of reference, 

mee�ngs held during the financial year 2019-20, a�endance of 

the Board of Directors/Members etc., of the said Board 

Mee�ng/Commi�ees are given in the Report on Corporate 

Governance annexed hereto and forming part of this Report.

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

During the year, under review your Company does not have a 

subsidiary, joint venture or associates, hence repor�ng 

requirements are not applicable.

PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING 

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Preven�on of 

Insider Trading, in accordance with the requirements of 

Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Prohibi�on of Insider 

Trading) Regula�ons, 2015, as amended from �me to �me. The 

Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer for monitoring 

adherence to the said Regula�ons. The Code is displayed on 

the Company's website at www.jtlinfra.com.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

Annual Return pursuant to Sec�on 92(3) of the Companies Act, 

2013, for the year ended 31st March, 2020 has been prepared 

in Form MGT-9 and the same is available at the website of the 

Company, www.jtlinfra.com.under the Investors sec�on.

CREDIT RATING

In 2019, Brickwork Ra�ngs India Private Limited, has assigned 

BWR BBB (BWR Triple B) ra�ng with Stable Outlook for Long 

Term Bank facili�es-Working Capital and BRW A3 (BWR Single 

A Three) ra�ng for Short Term Bank facili�es. Ra�ng for the FY 

20 is due for renewal in September 2020 and under 

considera�on with Brickwork Ra�ngs India Private Limited.  

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

During the period, no employee, whether employed for the 

whole or part of the year, was drawing remunera�on 

exceeding the limits men�oned under Sec�on 197(12) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the 

Companies (Appointment and Remunera�on of Managerial 

Personnel) Rules, 2014, as amended. Hence, the disclosure 

under Rules 5(2) and 5(3) does not forms the part of this 

Report.

The informa�on required pursuant to Sec�on 197(12) read 

with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remunera�on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, as 

amended, in respect of directors/ employees of your Company 

forms the part of this Report. However, as per the provisions of 

Sec�on 136 of the Act, the annual report is being sent to all the 

members of the Company excluding the aforesaid informa�on. 

The said informa�on is available for inspec�on by the 

members at the registered office of the Company up to the 

date of the ensuing Annual General Mee�ng. Any member 

interested in obtaining such par�culars may write to the 

Company Secretary at the registered office of the Company.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS 

UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

During the year under review the Company has not given any 

loan, guarantee and investment which are covered under 

Sec�on 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.
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RISK MANAGEMENT 

The speed and degree of changes in the global economy and 

the increasingly complex interplay of factors influencing the 

business makes Risk Management an inevitable exercise and 

to cater to the same, your Company has iden�fied major focus 

areas for risk management to ensure organiza�onal objec�ves 

are achieved and has a robust policy along with well-defined 

and dynamic structure and proac�ve approach to assess, 

monitor and mi�gate risks associated with the business.

The Board members are regularly informed about the 

poten�al risks, their assessment and minimiza�on procedures. 

The Board frames a plan for elimina�on / minimiza�on of the 

risk and further lays out the steps for implemen�ng and 

monitoring of the risk management plan.

The Company is taking all the suitable steps to avoid the risks 

that arise in the Company. There is no such threat to the 

existence of the Company.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

In line with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the 

Company has framed its Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 

policy for development of programmers and projects for the 

benefit of weaker sec�ons of the society and to promote the 

educa�on within the local limits and the same has been 

approved by Corporate Social Responsibility Commi�ee (CSR 

Commi�ee) and the Board of Directors of the Company. The 

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) policy of the Company 

provides a road map for its CSR ac�vi�es.

The said CSR policy of the Company is also available on the 

Website of the Company at www.jtlinfra.com

The Company has duly cons�tuted a Commi�ee under the 

nomenclature of Corporate Social Responsibility Commi�ee 

consis�ng of majority of non-execu�ve independent Directors 

responsible for monitoring and reviewing the policy from �me 

to �me and to ensure the proper compliance.

To curb the outspread of COVID-19 pandemic, certain safety 

and restric�ve measures were adopted by the Company in its 

plants and offices from the very beginning of the March 2020, 

therea�er, complete lockdown was announced by the 

Government from 23th March, 2020, and amid all this   

amount to be spent under CSR ac�vi�es  could not be assessed 

and spend before the closure of the financial year 2019-20.

However, considering the importance and very spirit of 

corporate social responsibility, your Company has contributed 

Rs. 23.41 Lacs to Bhojia Charitable Trust for Science Research 

and Social Welfare, Baddi-Himachal Pradesh, on 10th July, 

2020 in accordance with the CSR Policy of the Company. 

Besides this, the Company is also ac�vely suppor�ng various 

ini�a�ves on its own for the be�erment of the locals of the 

vicinity where the project of the Company is situated at 

Gholumajra, (Near Chandigarh) and Mangaon, (Near 

Mumbai).

Further, Detailed informa�on on the CSR Policy developed and 

implemented by the Company on CSR ini�a�ves taken during 

the year pursuant to sec�on 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 is 

given in the Annual Report on CSR ac�vi�es as Annexure-4 to 

this report.

RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT, CONVERSION OF ENERGY, 

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 

EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Par�culars under this head are furnished in the Annexure-1 to 

this Report. 

CHANGE IN SHARE CAPITAL AND LISTING OF SHARES

The paid up Equity Share Capital as at 31stMarch, 2020 stood 

at Rs. 10,60,74,300 consis�ng of 1,06,07,430/- equity shares of 

Rs. 10/- each. During the year paid up capital of the Company 

was increased from Rs. 10,00,74,300 to Rs. 10,60,74,300 on 

account of allotment of 600,000 equity shares with nominal 

value of Rs. 10/- each @ Rs.172/- per shares to promoters and 

person related to promoters on exercise of their op�on for 

conversion of warrants in to equity share. 

Lis�ng approval for these addi�onal allo�ed equity share was 

applied and obtained from both the stock exchanges whereat 

securi�es of the Company is listed, namely BSE Limited and 

Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Limited (MSEI).

FIXED DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any fixed deposits from the 

public during the year under review.
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India (Lis�ng Obliga�on and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regula�ons, 2015 ("Lis�ng Regula�ons"), as amended from 

�me to �me. 

Further, the Independent Directors at their separate mee�ng, 

reviewed the performance of the Board, Chairman of the 

Board and of Non-Independent Directors, as required under 

the Act and the Lis�ng Agreement. 

The Independent Directors at their separate mee�ng also 

assessed the quality, quan�ty and �melines of flow of 

informa�on between your Company Management and the 

Board of Directors of your Company.

COMMITEES OF THE BOARD

As a ma�er of good corporate governance and to ensure be�er 

accountability and to deal with specific areas/concerns that 

need a closer view, various board level Commi�ees have been 

cons�tuted in terms of the provisions of the Act and the Lis�ng 

Regula�ons under formal approval of the Board. There exists 

an Audit Commi�ee, Nomina�on & Remunera�on Commi�ee, 

Stakeholders Rela�onship Commi�ee, Corporate Social 

Responsibility Commi�ee, Finance & Banking Commi�ee and 

Commi�ee of Directors of the Board. 

The details of the composi�on, brief terms of reference, 

mee�ngs held during the financial year 2019-20, a�endance of 

the Board of Directors/Members etc., of the said Board 

Mee�ng/Commi�ees are given in the Report on Corporate 

Governance annexed hereto and forming part of this Report.

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

During the year, under review your Company does not have a 

subsidiary, joint venture or associates, hence repor�ng 

requirements are not applicable.

PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING 

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Preven�on of 

Insider Trading, in accordance with the requirements of 

Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Prohibi�on of Insider 

Trading) Regula�ons, 2015, as amended from �me to �me. The 

Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer for monitoring 

adherence to the said Regula�ons. The Code is displayed on 

the Company's website at www.jtlinfra.com.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

Annual Return pursuant to Sec�on 92(3) of the Companies Act, 

2013, for the year ended 31st March, 2020 has been prepared 

in Form MGT-9 and the same is available at the website of the 

Company, www.jtlinfra.com.under the Investors sec�on.

CREDIT RATING

In 2019, Brickwork Ra�ngs India Private Limited, has assigned 

BWR BBB (BWR Triple B) ra�ng with Stable Outlook for Long 

Term Bank facili�es-Working Capital and BRW A3 (BWR Single 

A Three) ra�ng for Short Term Bank facili�es. Ra�ng for the FY 

20 is due for renewal in September 2020 and under 

considera�on with Brickwork Ra�ngs India Private Limited.  

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

During the period, no employee, whether employed for the 

whole or part of the year, was drawing remunera�on 

exceeding the limits men�oned under Sec�on 197(12) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the 

Companies (Appointment and Remunera�on of Managerial 

Personnel) Rules, 2014, as amended. Hence, the disclosure 

under Rules 5(2) and 5(3) does not forms the part of this 

Report.

The informa�on required pursuant to Sec�on 197(12) read 

with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remunera�on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, as 

amended, in respect of directors/ employees of your Company 

forms the part of this Report. However, as per the provisions of 

Sec�on 136 of the Act, the annual report is being sent to all the 

members of the Company excluding the aforesaid informa�on. 

The said informa�on is available for inspec�on by the 

members at the registered office of the Company up to the 

date of the ensuing Annual General Mee�ng. Any member 

interested in obtaining such par�culars may write to the 

Company Secretary at the registered office of the Company.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS 

UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

During the year under review the Company has not given any 

loan, guarantee and investment which are covered under 

Sec�on 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.
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RISK MANAGEMENT 

The speed and degree of changes in the global economy and 

the increasingly complex interplay of factors influencing the 

business makes Risk Management an inevitable exercise and 

to cater to the same, your Company has iden�fied major focus 

areas for risk management to ensure organiza�onal objec�ves 

are achieved and has a robust policy along with well-defined 

and dynamic structure and proac�ve approach to assess, 

monitor and mi�gate risks associated with the business.

The Board members are regularly informed about the 

poten�al risks, their assessment and minimiza�on procedures. 

The Board frames a plan for elimina�on / minimiza�on of the 

risk and further lays out the steps for implemen�ng and 

monitoring of the risk management plan.

The Company is taking all the suitable steps to avoid the risks 

that arise in the Company. There is no such threat to the 

existence of the Company.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

In line with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the 

Company has framed its Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 

policy for development of programmers and projects for the 

benefit of weaker sec�ons of the society and to promote the 

educa�on within the local limits and the same has been 

approved by Corporate Social Responsibility Commi�ee (CSR 

Commi�ee) and the Board of Directors of the Company. The 

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) policy of the Company 

provides a road map for its CSR ac�vi�es.

The said CSR policy of the Company is also available on the 

Website of the Company at www.jtlinfra.com

The Company has duly cons�tuted a Commi�ee under the 

nomenclature of Corporate Social Responsibility Commi�ee 

consis�ng of majority of non-execu�ve independent Directors 

responsible for monitoring and reviewing the policy from �me 

to �me and to ensure the proper compliance.

To curb the outspread of COVID-19 pandemic, certain safety 

and restric�ve measures were adopted by the Company in its 

plants and offices from the very beginning of the March 2020, 

therea�er, complete lockdown was announced by the 

Government from 23th March, 2020, and amid all this   

amount to be spent under CSR ac�vi�es  could not be assessed 

and spend before the closure of the financial year 2019-20.

However, considering the importance and very spirit of 

corporate social responsibility, your Company has contributed 

Rs. 23.41 Lacs to Bhojia Charitable Trust for Science Research 

and Social Welfare, Baddi-Himachal Pradesh, on 10th July, 

2020 in accordance with the CSR Policy of the Company. 

Besides this, the Company is also ac�vely suppor�ng various 

ini�a�ves on its own for the be�erment of the locals of the 

vicinity where the project of the Company is situated at 

Gholumajra, (Near Chandigarh) and Mangaon, (Near 

Mumbai).

Further, Detailed informa�on on the CSR Policy developed and 

implemented by the Company on CSR ini�a�ves taken during 

the year pursuant to sec�on 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 is 

given in the Annual Report on CSR ac�vi�es as Annexure-4 to 

this report.

RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT, CONVERSION OF ENERGY, 

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 

EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Par�culars under this head are furnished in the Annexure-1 to 

this Report. 

CHANGE IN SHARE CAPITAL AND LISTING OF SHARES

The paid up Equity Share Capital as at 31stMarch, 2020 stood 

at Rs. 10,60,74,300 consis�ng of 1,06,07,430/- equity shares of 

Rs. 10/- each. During the year paid up capital of the Company 

was increased from Rs. 10,00,74,300 to Rs. 10,60,74,300 on 

account of allotment of 600,000 equity shares with nominal 

value of Rs. 10/- each @ Rs.172/- per shares to promoters and 

person related to promoters on exercise of their op�on for 

conversion of warrants in to equity share. 

Lis�ng approval for these addi�onal allo�ed equity share was 

applied and obtained from both the stock exchanges whereat 

securi�es of the Company is listed, namely BSE Limited and 

Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Limited (MSEI).

FIXED DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any fixed deposits from the 

public during the year under review.
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Therefore, it is not required to furnish informa�on in respect of 

outstanding deposits under Non-banking, Non-financial 

Companies (Reserve Bank) Direc�ons, 1966 and Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

Pursuant to the approval given on April 10, 2015 by the Central 

Government to the Secretarial Standards specified by the 

Ins�tute of Company Secretaries of India, the Secretarial 

Standards on Mee�ngs of the Board of Directors (SS-1) and 

General Mee�ngs (SS-2) came into effect from 1st July, 2015. 

The said standards were further amended w.e.f. 1st October 

2017. The Company is incompliance with the same.

SIGNIFICANT ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS, COURTS OR 

TRIBUNALS 

There have been no significant and material orders passed by 

the regulators or courts or tribunals impac�ng the going 

concern status and the Company's opera�ons. However, 

Members' a�en�on is drawn to the statement on con�ngent 

liabili�es, commitments in the notes forming part of the 

Financial Statements. 

POLICY ON PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL OF 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE

The Company has zero tolerance towards sexual harassment at 

the workplace and has adopted a policy on preven�on, 

prohibi�on and redressal of sexual harassment at workplace in 

line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at 

Workplace (Preven�on, Prohibi�on and Redressal) Act, 2013 

and the Rules thereunder. The Policy aims to provide 

protec�on to women at the workplace and prevent and 

redress complaints of sexual harassment and for ma�ers 

connected or incidental thereto, with the objec�ve of 

providing a safe working environment. The Company has not 

received any complaint of sexual harassment during the period 

under review.

VIGIL MECHANISM

Pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 177(9) & (10) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies 

(Mee�ng of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and 

Regula�on 34(3) of SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015, your 

Company has adopted Vigil Mechanism policy that provides a 

formal mechanism for all Directors, Employees and Vendors of 

the Company to approach the Chairman of Audit Commi�ee 

and make protec�ve disclosure about the unethical behavior, 

actual or suspended fraud or viola�on of the Code of Conduct 

of the Company. The vigil mechanism comprises of whistle 

blower policy for directors, employees and vendors.

The Company has complied with provisions rela�ng to the 

cons�tu�on of Internal Compliant Commi�ee under the 

Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Preven�on, 

Prohibi�on and Redressal) Act, 2013.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s Suresh K Aggarwal & Co, Chartered Accountants were 

appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company under 

Sec�on 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made 

there under, by the members of the Company in their 27th 

Annual General Mee�ng for a period of five years, from the 

Financial Year 2018-19 �ll the financial year 2022-23. They 

have confirmed that they are not disqualified from con�nuing 

as Statutory Auditors of the Company.

The Audit Commi�ee of the Board reviewed the audit 

procedures of the Statutory Auditors for the financial year 

2019-20 and found them to be sa�sfactory.

The Auditor's Report for financial year 2019-20 does not 

contain any qualifica�on, reserva�on or adverse remark. The 

Auditors' Report is enclosed with the Financial Statements in 

this Annual Report.

Further, pursuant to Sec�on 143(12) of the Companies Act, 

2013, the Statutory Auditors of the Company have not 

reported any instances of frauds commi�ed in the Company by 

its officers or employees.

COST AUDIT

As per the requirements of Central Government and pursuant 

to the provisions of Sec�on 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, 

your Company carries out an audit of cost records every year. 

The Company has appointed M/s Balwinder & Associates, Cost 

Accountants, as Cost Auditor of the Company for the financial 

year 2019-20 to conduct the audit of cost records of the 

Company.

www.jtlinfra.com

ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20

Pursuant to Sec�on 148 and other applicable provisions, if any 

of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Cost record 

and Audit) Rules, 2014 and based on the recommenda�ons 

made by the Audit commi�ee, the Board of Directors of your 

Company has appointed M/s. Balwinder & Associates, Cost 

Accountant (Firm Registra�on No. 100106) who has given their 

consent along with cer�ficate confirming their Independence 

to act as the Cost Auditor for the financial year 2020-2021. The 

remunera�on proposed to be paid to the Cost Auditor, subject 

to the ra�fica�on by the members at the ensuing Annual 

General Mee�ng, would be not exceeding INR 35,000/-

(Rupees Thirty Five Thousand Only) excluding taxes and out of 

pocket expenses, if any. Your directors recommend approval of 

said remunera�on to the Cost Auditors of the Company. 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

Pursuant to the provisions of sec�on 204 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder, the Company has re-

appointed S V Associates, Company Secretaries (Membership 

No.38204, CP No. 14791) to undertake the secretarial audit of 

the Company. Secretarial audit report for the year 2019-20 

issued by him in the prescribed form MR-3 is annexed as 

Annexure-2 to this Report.

The said secretarial audit report does not contain any 

qualifica�on, reserva�on or adverse remark or disclaimer 

made by the Secretarial Auditor.

In addi�on to the above and pursuant to SEBI Circular dated 8 

February 2019, a Report on secretarial compliance by SV 

Associates, Prac�cing Company Secretaries for the year ended 

March 31, 2020 is submi�ed to stock exchanges. There are no 

observa�ons, reserva�ons or qualifica�ons in the said Report.

INTERNAL AUDITORS 

In terms of the provisions of Sec�on 138 of the Act, M/s. Arvind 

Singla & Associates, were appointed as Internal Auditors of the 

Company for the Financial Year 2019-20. The Audit Commi�ee 

in consulta�on with the Internal Auditors formulates the 

scope, func�oning, periodicity and methodology for 

conduc�ng the Internal Audit. The Audit Commi�ee, inter alia, 

reviews the Internal Audit Report.

FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors, 

Secretarial Auditors and Cost Auditors have not reported any 

instances of fraud commi�ed in the Company by its officers or 

employees to the Audit Commi�ee under sec�on 143(12) and 

Rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 of 

the Companies Act, 2013.

INSURANCE

The proper�es/assets of your Company are adequately 

insured.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH 

RELATED PARTIES

Your Company follows the prac�ce of undertaking related 

party transac�ons only in the ordinary and normal course of 

business and at arm's length basis as part of its philosophy of 

adhering to highest ethical standards, transparency and 

accountability. 

The Audit Commi�ee and the Board of Directors have 

approved the Related Party Transac�ons Policy. The Policy 

intends to ensure that proper repor�ng, approval and 

disclosure processes are in place for all transac�ons between 

the Company and Related Par�es. There were no materially 

significant transac�ons with Related Par�es during the 

financial year 2019-20 which were in conflict with the interest 

of the Company. Suitable disclosures as required under AS-18 

have been made in Note 16 of the Notes to the financial 

statements. Details of transac�ons with related par�es are 

given in Form AOC-2 which is a�ached as Annexure-3.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS DISCLOSURES UNDER LODR 

REGULATIONS, 2015

As per the LODR Regula�ons, 2015 every Listed Company 

needs to disclose the amounts of Loans/advances/ 

investments outstanding at the end of the year along with the 

maximum amount outstanding during the year. 

Your Company does not have a holding, subsidiary, joint 

venture or associates, hence repor�ng requirements are not 

applicable.
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Therefore, it is not required to furnish informa�on in respect of 

outstanding deposits under Non-banking, Non-financial 

Companies (Reserve Bank) Direc�ons, 1966 and Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

Pursuant to the approval given on April 10, 2015 by the Central 

Government to the Secretarial Standards specified by the 

Ins�tute of Company Secretaries of India, the Secretarial 

Standards on Mee�ngs of the Board of Directors (SS-1) and 

General Mee�ngs (SS-2) came into effect from 1st July, 2015. 

The said standards were further amended w.e.f. 1st October 

2017. The Company is incompliance with the same.

SIGNIFICANT ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS, COURTS OR 

TRIBUNALS 

There have been no significant and material orders passed by 

the regulators or courts or tribunals impac�ng the going 

concern status and the Company's opera�ons. However, 

Members' a�en�on is drawn to the statement on con�ngent 

liabili�es, commitments in the notes forming part of the 

Financial Statements. 

POLICY ON PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL OF 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE

The Company has zero tolerance towards sexual harassment at 

the workplace and has adopted a policy on preven�on, 

prohibi�on and redressal of sexual harassment at workplace in 

line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at 

Workplace (Preven�on, Prohibi�on and Redressal) Act, 2013 

and the Rules thereunder. The Policy aims to provide 

protec�on to women at the workplace and prevent and 

redress complaints of sexual harassment and for ma�ers 

connected or incidental thereto, with the objec�ve of 

providing a safe working environment. The Company has not 

received any complaint of sexual harassment during the period 

under review.

VIGIL MECHANISM

Pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 177(9) & (10) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies 

(Mee�ng of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and 

Regula�on 34(3) of SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015, your 

Company has adopted Vigil Mechanism policy that provides a 

formal mechanism for all Directors, Employees and Vendors of 

the Company to approach the Chairman of Audit Commi�ee 

and make protec�ve disclosure about the unethical behavior, 

actual or suspended fraud or viola�on of the Code of Conduct 

of the Company. The vigil mechanism comprises of whistle 

blower policy for directors, employees and vendors.

The Company has complied with provisions rela�ng to the 

cons�tu�on of Internal Compliant Commi�ee under the 

Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Preven�on, 

Prohibi�on and Redressal) Act, 2013.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s Suresh K Aggarwal & Co, Chartered Accountants were 

appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company under 

Sec�on 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made 

there under, by the members of the Company in their 27th 

Annual General Mee�ng for a period of five years, from the 

Financial Year 2018-19 �ll the financial year 2022-23. They 

have confirmed that they are not disqualified from con�nuing 

as Statutory Auditors of the Company.

The Audit Commi�ee of the Board reviewed the audit 

procedures of the Statutory Auditors for the financial year 

2019-20 and found them to be sa�sfactory.

The Auditor's Report for financial year 2019-20 does not 

contain any qualifica�on, reserva�on or adverse remark. The 

Auditors' Report is enclosed with the Financial Statements in 

this Annual Report.

Further, pursuant to Sec�on 143(12) of the Companies Act, 

2013, the Statutory Auditors of the Company have not 

reported any instances of frauds commi�ed in the Company by 

its officers or employees.

COST AUDIT

As per the requirements of Central Government and pursuant 

to the provisions of Sec�on 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, 

your Company carries out an audit of cost records every year. 

The Company has appointed M/s Balwinder & Associates, Cost 

Accountants, as Cost Auditor of the Company for the financial 

year 2019-20 to conduct the audit of cost records of the 

Company.
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Pursuant to Sec�on 148 and other applicable provisions, if any 

of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Cost record 

and Audit) Rules, 2014 and based on the recommenda�ons 

made by the Audit commi�ee, the Board of Directors of your 

Company has appointed M/s. Balwinder & Associates, Cost 

Accountant (Firm Registra�on No. 100106) who has given their 

consent along with cer�ficate confirming their Independence 

to act as the Cost Auditor for the financial year 2020-2021. The 

remunera�on proposed to be paid to the Cost Auditor, subject 

to the ra�fica�on by the members at the ensuing Annual 

General Mee�ng, would be not exceeding INR 35,000/-

(Rupees Thirty Five Thousand Only) excluding taxes and out of 

pocket expenses, if any. Your directors recommend approval of 

said remunera�on to the Cost Auditors of the Company. 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

Pursuant to the provisions of sec�on 204 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder, the Company has re-

appointed S V Associates, Company Secretaries (Membership 

No.38204, CP No. 14791) to undertake the secretarial audit of 

the Company. Secretarial audit report for the year 2019-20 

issued by him in the prescribed form MR-3 is annexed as 

Annexure-2 to this Report.

The said secretarial audit report does not contain any 

qualifica�on, reserva�on or adverse remark or disclaimer 

made by the Secretarial Auditor.

In addi�on to the above and pursuant to SEBI Circular dated 8 

February 2019, a Report on secretarial compliance by SV 

Associates, Prac�cing Company Secretaries for the year ended 

March 31, 2020 is submi�ed to stock exchanges. There are no 

observa�ons, reserva�ons or qualifica�ons in the said Report.

INTERNAL AUDITORS 

In terms of the provisions of Sec�on 138 of the Act, M/s. Arvind 

Singla & Associates, were appointed as Internal Auditors of the 

Company for the Financial Year 2019-20. The Audit Commi�ee 

in consulta�on with the Internal Auditors formulates the 

scope, func�oning, periodicity and methodology for 

conduc�ng the Internal Audit. The Audit Commi�ee, inter alia, 

reviews the Internal Audit Report.

FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors, 

Secretarial Auditors and Cost Auditors have not reported any 

instances of fraud commi�ed in the Company by its officers or 

employees to the Audit Commi�ee under sec�on 143(12) and 

Rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 of 

the Companies Act, 2013.

INSURANCE

The proper�es/assets of your Company are adequately 

insured.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH 

RELATED PARTIES

Your Company follows the prac�ce of undertaking related 

party transac�ons only in the ordinary and normal course of 

business and at arm's length basis as part of its philosophy of 

adhering to highest ethical standards, transparency and 

accountability. 

The Audit Commi�ee and the Board of Directors have 

approved the Related Party Transac�ons Policy. The Policy 

intends to ensure that proper repor�ng, approval and 

disclosure processes are in place for all transac�ons between 

the Company and Related Par�es. There were no materially 

significant transac�ons with Related Par�es during the 

financial year 2019-20 which were in conflict with the interest 

of the Company. Suitable disclosures as required under AS-18 

have been made in Note 16 of the Notes to the financial 

statements. Details of transac�ons with related par�es are 

given in Form AOC-2 which is a�ached as Annexure-3.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS DISCLOSURES UNDER LODR 

REGULATIONS, 2015

As per the LODR Regula�ons, 2015 every Listed Company 

needs to disclose the amounts of Loans/advances/ 

investments outstanding at the end of the year along with the 

maximum amount outstanding during the year. 

Your Company does not have a holding, subsidiary, joint 

venture or associates, hence repor�ng requirements are not 

applicable.
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INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

The Company has an Internal Control System, commensurate 

with the size, scale and complexity of its opera�ons. The 

Internal Audit func�on is handled by an external firm of 

Chartered Accountants. The Internal Control Systems are 

regularly being reviewed by the Company's Internal Auditors 

with a view to evaluate the efficacy and adequacy of Internal 

Control Systems in the Company, its compliance with opera�ng 

systems, accoun�ng procedures and policies at all loca�ons of 

the Company and to ensure that these are working properly 

and wherever required, are modified/ �ghten to meet the 

changed business requirements.

All the Business Heads/Func�on Heads are cer�fying the 

compliance to all applicable rules, regula�ons and laws every 

quarter to the Board and are responsible to ensure that 

internal controls over all the key business processes are 

opera�ve. The scope of the Internal Audit is defined and 

reviewed every year by the Audit Commi�ee and inputs, 

wherever required, are taken from the Statutory Auditors. 

Based on the report of Internal Auditors, major audit 

observa�ons and correc�ve ac�ons thereon are presented to 

the Audit Commi�ee of the Board.

Our management assessed the effec�veness of the Company's 

internal control over financial repor�ng (as defined in Clause 

17 of SEBI Regula�ons 2015) as of March 31, 2020. The 

Statutory

Auditors of the Company have audited the financial 

statements included in this annual report and have issued an 

a�esta�on report on our internal control over financial 

repor�ng (as defined in Sec�on 143 of Companies Act 2013).

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE 

FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

Your company as a part of geographically diversified 

manufacturing loca�on expansion plans and in order to meet 

the growing demand of Company' products in domes�c as well 

as in the interna�onal market, has started trial produc�on at 

its new Greenfield state of the art manufacturing plant at 

Mangoan, Raigad, Maharashtra. 

REMUNERATION POLICY OF THE COMPANY

The objec�ve of the Remunera�on Policy is to a�ract, mo�vate 

and retain qualified and expert individuals that the Company 

needs in order to achieve its strategic and opera�onal 

objec�ves, whilst acknowledging the societal context around 

remunera�on and recognizing the interests of Company's 

stakeholders. The salient features of the nomina�on and 

remunera�on policy of the Company is annexed as Annexure-5 

to this Report.

Remunera�on of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and 

Par�culars of Employees

Disclosure of ra�o of the remunera�on of each Execu�ve 

Director to the median remunera�on of the employees of the 

Company and other requisite details pursuant to Sec�on 

197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the 

Companies (Appointment and Remunera�on of Managerial 

Personnel) Rules, 2014 as amended, is annexed as Annexure-6 

to this report. 

INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

The financial statements of your Company are prepared in 

accordance with the Indian Accoun�ng Standards ('Ind- AS') 

pursuant to the Ministry of Corporate Affairs no�fica�on dated 

February 16, 2015 no�fying the Companies (Indian Accoun�ng 

Standards) Rules, 2015. 

OTHER DISCLOSURES

No disclosure or repor�ng is required in respect of the 

following items as either these were not applicable or there 

were no transac�ons on these items during the financial year 

2019-20:-

1. Details rela�ng to deposits covered under Chapter V of the 

Act

2. Issue of equity shares with differen�al rights as to 

dividend, vo�ng or otherwise.

3. Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to 

employees of the Company under any scheme.

4. Neither the Managing Director nor the Whole-�me 

Directors of the Company receive any remunera�on or 

commission from any of its subsidiaries.
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There are no material changes and commitments affec�ng the 

financial posi�on of the Company which have occurred 

between the end of the financial year and the date of this 

report.

GREEN INITIATIVE

In support of "Green Ini�a�ve" taken by the Ministry of 

Corporate Affairs ("MCA") in the Corporate Governance" by 

allowing service of documents by a Company to its Members 

through electronic mode, the Company will con�nue to send 

various communica�ons and documents like no�ce calling 

general mee�ngs, audited financial statements, directors' 

report, auditor's report etc., in electronic form, to the email 

address provided by the Members to the Depositories or to the 

Company.

Your Company impresses upon its shareholders to contribute 

to this green ini�a�ve in full measure by registering their e-

mail addresses, in respect of electronic holdings with the 

Depository through their concerned Depository Par�cipant. 

Members who hold shares in physical form are requested to 

take necessary steps for registering the same so that they can 

also become a part of the ini�a�ve and contribute to the Green 

Movement.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

Your Directors wish to convey their apprecia�on to all of the 

Company's employees for their contribu�on towards the 

Company's performance. Your Directors would also like to 

thank the shareholders, employee unions, customers, dealers, 

suppliers, bankers, Governments and all other business 

associates for their con�nuous support to the Company and 

their confidence in its management on behalf of the Board.

Your Directors also wish to place on record their apprecia�on 

for the valuable support received by your Company from 

Banks, Govt. Authori�es, Customers, Auditors and other 

stakeholders. The Board thanks the employees at all levels for 

the dedica�on, commitment and hard work put in by them for 

Company's achievements. Your Directors are grateful to the 

Shareholders/ Stakeholders for their confidence and faith 

reposed in the management of the Company. The Directors 

look forward to the con�nued support of all stakeholders in 

future also.

Rakesh Garg

Whole Time Director                            

DIN: 00184081

For & on Behalf of the Board

JTL Infra Limited

Madan Mohan Singla 

Managing Director 

DIN: 00156668

Place: Chandigarh

Dated: August 29, 2020
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INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

The Company has an Internal Control System, commensurate 

with the size, scale and complexity of its opera�ons. The 

Internal Audit func�on is handled by an external firm of 

Chartered Accountants. The Internal Control Systems are 

regularly being reviewed by the Company's Internal Auditors 

with a view to evaluate the efficacy and adequacy of Internal 

Control Systems in the Company, its compliance with opera�ng 

systems, accoun�ng procedures and policies at all loca�ons of 

the Company and to ensure that these are working properly 

and wherever required, are modified/ �ghten to meet the 

changed business requirements.

All the Business Heads/Func�on Heads are cer�fying the 

compliance to all applicable rules, regula�ons and laws every 

quarter to the Board and are responsible to ensure that 

internal controls over all the key business processes are 

opera�ve. The scope of the Internal Audit is defined and 

reviewed every year by the Audit Commi�ee and inputs, 

wherever required, are taken from the Statutory Auditors. 

Based on the report of Internal Auditors, major audit 

observa�ons and correc�ve ac�ons thereon are presented to 

the Audit Commi�ee of the Board.

Our management assessed the effec�veness of the Company's 

internal control over financial repor�ng (as defined in Clause 

17 of SEBI Regula�ons 2015) as of March 31, 2020. The 

Statutory

Auditors of the Company have audited the financial 

statements included in this annual report and have issued an 

a�esta�on report on our internal control over financial 

repor�ng (as defined in Sec�on 143 of Companies Act 2013).

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE 

FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

Your company as a part of geographically diversified 

manufacturing loca�on expansion plans and in order to meet 

the growing demand of Company' products in domes�c as well 

as in the interna�onal market, has started trial produc�on at 

its new Greenfield state of the art manufacturing plant at 

Mangoan, Raigad, Maharashtra. 

REMUNERATION POLICY OF THE COMPANY

The objec�ve of the Remunera�on Policy is to a�ract, mo�vate 

and retain qualified and expert individuals that the Company 

needs in order to achieve its strategic and opera�onal 

objec�ves, whilst acknowledging the societal context around 

remunera�on and recognizing the interests of Company's 

stakeholders. The salient features of the nomina�on and 

remunera�on policy of the Company is annexed as Annexure-5 

to this Report.

Remunera�on of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and 

Par�culars of Employees

Disclosure of ra�o of the remunera�on of each Execu�ve 

Director to the median remunera�on of the employees of the 

Company and other requisite details pursuant to Sec�on 

197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the 

Companies (Appointment and Remunera�on of Managerial 

Personnel) Rules, 2014 as amended, is annexed as Annexure-6 

to this report. 

INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

The financial statements of your Company are prepared in 

accordance with the Indian Accoun�ng Standards ('Ind- AS') 

pursuant to the Ministry of Corporate Affairs no�fica�on dated 

February 16, 2015 no�fying the Companies (Indian Accoun�ng 

Standards) Rules, 2015. 

OTHER DISCLOSURES

No disclosure or repor�ng is required in respect of the 

following items as either these were not applicable or there 

were no transac�ons on these items during the financial year 

2019-20:-

1. Details rela�ng to deposits covered under Chapter V of the 

Act

2. Issue of equity shares with differen�al rights as to 

dividend, vo�ng or otherwise.

3. Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to 

employees of the Company under any scheme.

4. Neither the Managing Director nor the Whole-�me 

Directors of the Company receive any remunera�on or 

commission from any of its subsidiaries.
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There are no material changes and commitments affec�ng the 

financial posi�on of the Company which have occurred 

between the end of the financial year and the date of this 

report.

GREEN INITIATIVE

In support of "Green Ini�a�ve" taken by the Ministry of 

Corporate Affairs ("MCA") in the Corporate Governance" by 

allowing service of documents by a Company to its Members 

through electronic mode, the Company will con�nue to send 

various communica�ons and documents like no�ce calling 

general mee�ngs, audited financial statements, directors' 

report, auditor's report etc., in electronic form, to the email 

address provided by the Members to the Depositories or to the 

Company.

Your Company impresses upon its shareholders to contribute 

to this green ini�a�ve in full measure by registering their e-

mail addresses, in respect of electronic holdings with the 

Depository through their concerned Depository Par�cipant. 

Members who hold shares in physical form are requested to 

take necessary steps for registering the same so that they can 

also become a part of the ini�a�ve and contribute to the Green 

Movement.
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their confidence in its management on behalf of the Board.
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for the valuable support received by your Company from 

Banks, Govt. Authori�es, Customers, Auditors and other 

stakeholders. The Board thanks the employees at all levels for 

the dedica�on, commitment and hard work put in by them for 

Company's achievements. Your Directors are grateful to the 
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reposed in the management of the Company. The Directors 

look forward to the con�nued support of all stakeholders in 

future also.
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CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

A.  CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

1. The steps taken or impact on conserva�on of energy

 • Conversion of lightly loaded motor to star from  Delta

 • Old motors replaced with energy efficient motors

 •  Installa�on of drives on conveyor system

 •  Discharge thro�ling replaced with suc�on thro�ling

 •  Cement roofing sheets replaced with FRP Clear sheets to make op�mum use of day light

 • Installa�on of automa�c Diesel Dispensing units to control misuse.

 • Process of replacing CFL lights with LED lights con�nued.

 • Op�mum use of compressed air by controlling leakages and disciplined running of air compressors.

2. The steps taken by the company for u�lizing alternate sources of energy

 The Company is exploring use of Solar Energy as an alternate source & planning for se�ng up solar panel at its factory.

B.  TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

 The Company con�nues to developing innova�ve and commercially viable process know how to improve the produc�vity and 

quality of its services and products. 

C. INFORMATION IN CASE OF IMPORTED TECHNOLOGY (IMPORTS DURING LAST FIVE YEARS):

 During the year, the Company did not import any specific technology. The Company developed technology through efforts of 

its in-house Research& Development

D.  FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

 Foreign Exchange Transac�ons during year:

 Exports Sales (FOB Value)  Rs. 4325.06 Lakhs
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Rakesh Garg

Whole Time Director                            

DIN: 00184081

For & on Behalf of the Board
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Place: Chandigarh

Dated: August 29, 2020
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TO,

THE MEMBERS,

J T L INFRA LIMITED

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of 

applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 

corporate prac�ces by J T L INFRA LIMITED (hereina�er called 

the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner 

that provided us a reasonable basis for evalua�ng the 

corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my 

opinion thereon. 

Based on my verifica�on of the J T L INFRA LIMITED books, 

papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 

records maintained by the Company, its officers, agents and 

authorized representa�ves during the conduct of secretarial 

audit period ended on 31/03/2020, complied with the 

statutory provision listed hereunder and also that the company 

has proper board and compliance mechanism in place to the 

extent, in the ma�er and subject to the repor�ng made 

hereina�er:

1.  The Companies Act 2013 (The Act) and rules made there 

under:

2.  The Company has complied with the relevant provisions of 

Securi�es Contracts (Regula�on) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and 

the rules made there under where ever applicable to the 

company;

3.  The Company has complied with the relevant provisions of 

the Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regula�ons and Bye-

laws framed there under where ever applicable to the 

company;

4.  There were no issues which required specific compliance 

of the Foreign Exchange Management Act,1999 and the 

rules and regula�ons made there under to the extent of 

Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment 

and External Commercial Borrowings as per the 

informa�on provided and records produced before us;

5.  The following regula�ons and Guidelines prescribed 

under the Securi�es and Exchange Board of India Act, 

1992 ('SEBI Act'):

 (a) There were no issues which required specific approval 

of the provisions of The Securi�es and Exchange 

Board of India (Substan�al Acquisi�on of Shares and 

Takeovers) Regula�ons, 2011 amended up to date.

 (b) There were no issues which required specific approval 

of the provisions of the Securi�es and Exchange Board 

of India (Prohibi�on of Insider Trading) Regula�ons, 

1992 amended up to date.

 (c) There were no issues which required specific 

compliance/approval of the Securi�es and Exchange 

Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regula�ons, 2009 amended up to 

date.

 (d)  There were no issues which required specific 

compliance/approval of the Securi�es and Exchange 

Board of India (employee stock Op�on Scheme and 

Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 

amended up to date.

 (e) There were no issues which required specific 

compliance/approval of the Securi�es and Exchange 

Board of India (Issue and Lis�ng of Debt Securi�es) 

Regula�ons, 2008 amended up to date.

 (f)  There were no issues which required specific 

compliance/approval of the Securi�es and Exchange 

Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share 

Transfer Agents) Regula�ons, 1993 and dealing with 

client amended up to date.

 (g)  There were no issues which required specific 

compliance/approval of the Securi�es and Exchange 

ANNEXURE TO DIRECTORS' REPORT Annexure-2

Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st March 2020

[Pursuant to sec�on 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remunera�on Personnel) Rules, 2014]
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CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

A.  CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

1. The steps taken or impact on conserva�on of energy

 • Conversion of lightly loaded motor to star from  Delta

 • Old motors replaced with energy efficient motors

 •  Installa�on of drives on conveyor system

 •  Discharge thro�ling replaced with suc�on thro�ling

 •  Cement roofing sheets replaced with FRP Clear sheets to make op�mum use of day light

 • Installa�on of automa�c Diesel Dispensing units to control misuse.

 • Process of replacing CFL lights with LED lights con�nued.

 • Op�mum use of compressed air by controlling leakages and disciplined running of air compressors.

2. The steps taken by the company for u�lizing alternate sources of energy

 The Company is exploring use of Solar Energy as an alternate source & planning for se�ng up solar panel at its factory.

B.  TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

 The Company con�nues to developing innova�ve and commercially viable process know how to improve the produc�vity and 

quality of its services and products. 

C. INFORMATION IN CASE OF IMPORTED TECHNOLOGY (IMPORTS DURING LAST FIVE YEARS):

 During the year, the Company did not import any specific technology. The Company developed technology through efforts of 

its in-house Research& Development
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TO,

THE MEMBERS,

J T L INFRA LIMITED

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of 

applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 

corporate prac�ces by J T L INFRA LIMITED (hereina�er called 

the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner 

that provided us a reasonable basis for evalua�ng the 

corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my 

opinion thereon. 

Based on my verifica�on of the J T L INFRA LIMITED books, 

papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 

records maintained by the Company, its officers, agents and 

authorized representa�ves during the conduct of secretarial 

audit period ended on 31/03/2020, complied with the 

statutory provision listed hereunder and also that the company 

has proper board and compliance mechanism in place to the 

extent, in the ma�er and subject to the repor�ng made 

hereina�er:

1.  The Companies Act 2013 (The Act) and rules made there 

under:

2.  The Company has complied with the relevant provisions of 

Securi�es Contracts (Regula�on) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and 

the rules made there under where ever applicable to the 

company;

3.  The Company has complied with the relevant provisions of 

the Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regula�ons and Bye-

laws framed there under where ever applicable to the 

company;

4.  There were no issues which required specific compliance 

of the Foreign Exchange Management Act,1999 and the 

rules and regula�ons made there under to the extent of 

Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment 

and External Commercial Borrowings as per the 

informa�on provided and records produced before us;

5.  The following regula�ons and Guidelines prescribed 

under the Securi�es and Exchange Board of India Act, 

1992 ('SEBI Act'):

 (a) There were no issues which required specific approval 

of the provisions of The Securi�es and Exchange 

Board of India (Substan�al Acquisi�on of Shares and 

Takeovers) Regula�ons, 2011 amended up to date.

 (b) There were no issues which required specific approval 

of the provisions of the Securi�es and Exchange Board 

of India (Prohibi�on of Insider Trading) Regula�ons, 

1992 amended up to date.

 (c) There were no issues which required specific 

compliance/approval of the Securi�es and Exchange 

Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regula�ons, 2009 amended up to 

date.

 (d)  There were no issues which required specific 

compliance/approval of the Securi�es and Exchange 

Board of India (employee stock Op�on Scheme and 

Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 

amended up to date.

 (e) There were no issues which required specific 

compliance/approval of the Securi�es and Exchange 

Board of India (Issue and Lis�ng of Debt Securi�es) 

Regula�ons, 2008 amended up to date.

 (f)  There were no issues which required specific 

compliance/approval of the Securi�es and Exchange 

Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share 

Transfer Agents) Regula�ons, 1993 and dealing with 

client amended up to date.

 (g)  There were no issues which required specific 

compliance/approval of the Securi�es and Exchange 
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Board of India(Delis�ng of Equity Shares) Regula�ons, 

2009 amended up to date; and

 (h)  There were no issues which required specific 

compliance/approval of the Securi�es and Exchange 

Board of India (Buyback of securi�es) Regula�ons, 

1998 amended up to date;

6.  Based on the management representa�on made by the 

Company and its officers and documents produced before 

us and informa�on provided to us, the Company has 

proper system and process in place for compliance under 

the applicable Laws, Acts, Rules, Regula�ons, Guidelines 

and standards as applicable to the Company which are 

given below:

 a. Labour Laws related to labour and employees 

appointed by the company either on its payroll or on 

contractual basis as related to wages, gratuity, 

provident fund, employee state insurance etc.

 b.  Water preven�on and control of pollu�on act, 1974

 c.  Air preven�on and control of pollu�on act, 1981

 d.  Factory Act, 1948

 e.  Central excise Act, 1944

 f.  Custom Act, 1962

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses 

of the following as per the informa�on given and record 

produced before us-

1. Secretarial standard with respect to board and general 

mee�ng issued by the Ins�tute of the Company 

Secretaries of India;

2. SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regula�ons, 2015, as amended from �me to �me.

During the period under review the Company has complied 

with the provisions of the act, rules, regula�ons, guidelines, 

standards, lis�ng agreements etc. men�oned above as per 

informa�on provided and records produced before us.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly cons�tuted. The 

changes in the composi�on of the Board of Directors that took 

place during the period under review were carried out in 

compliance with the provisions of the Act.

For SV Associates

Company Secretaries

Date: June 30, 2020

Place: Chandigarh

Sahil Malhotra

CP No.14791

M.No. 38204
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ANNEXURE TO DIRECTORS' REPORT Annexure-3

Form for disclosure or par�culars of contracts/ arrangements entered into by the Company with related par�es referred to in sub 

sec�on (1) of Sec�on 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 entered at arm length transac�on :

FORM NO: AOC-2

(Pursuant to Clause (h) of Sub-sec�on (3) of Sec�on 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) 

of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Mr. Madan Mohan Managerial  KMP 1st April, 2017-   18.00

   Remunera�on  ongoing

Mr. Vijay Singla  Managerial  KMP 1st April , 2017-  18.00

   Remunera�on  ongoing

Mr. Rakesh Garg  Managerial  KMP 1st April, 2017-   18.00

   Remunera�on  ongoing

Mr. Dhruv Singla  Managerial  KMP 30th May, 2014 -  7.80

   Remunera�on  ongoing

Mr. Mohinder Singh Remunera�on KMP 1st September to   3.50

     31st March, 2020

M/s Chetan Industries Limited Purchase of goods  Related Company  FY 2019-20  188.12

   and services (Company under the 

    same management)

M/s Jagan Industries Limited Sale of goods  Related Company  FY 2019-20  3877.48

   and services (Company under the 

    same management) 

   Purchase of goods   FY 2019-20  33.43

   and services

Rakesh Garg

Whole Time Director                            

DIN: 00184081

For & on Behalf of the Board

JTL Infra Limited

Madan Mohan Singla 

Managing Director 

DIN: 00156668

Place: Chandigarh

Dated: August 29, 2020

Amount 

(in Lacs)
Dura�on of 

Contract

Nature of 

Rela�onship

Nature of 

Contract
Name of Related Party
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Board of India(Delis�ng of Equity Shares) Regula�ons, 

2009 amended up to date; and

 (h)  There were no issues which required specific 

compliance/approval of the Securi�es and Exchange 

Board of India (Buyback of securi�es) Regula�ons, 

1998 amended up to date;

6.  Based on the management representa�on made by the 

Company and its officers and documents produced before 

us and informa�on provided to us, the Company has 

proper system and process in place for compliance under 

the applicable Laws, Acts, Rules, Regula�ons, Guidelines 

and standards as applicable to the Company which are 

given below:

 a. Labour Laws related to labour and employees 

appointed by the company either on its payroll or on 

contractual basis as related to wages, gratuity, 

provident fund, employee state insurance etc.

 b.  Water preven�on and control of pollu�on act, 1974

 c.  Air preven�on and control of pollu�on act, 1981

 d.  Factory Act, 1948

 e.  Central excise Act, 1944

 f.  Custom Act, 1962

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses 

of the following as per the informa�on given and record 

produced before us-

1. Secretarial standard with respect to board and general 

mee�ng issued by the Ins�tute of the Company 

Secretaries of India;

2. SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regula�ons, 2015, as amended from �me to �me.

During the period under review the Company has complied 

with the provisions of the act, rules, regula�ons, guidelines, 

standards, lis�ng agreements etc. men�oned above as per 

informa�on provided and records produced before us.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly cons�tuted. The 

changes in the composi�on of the Board of Directors that took 

place during the period under review were carried out in 

compliance with the provisions of the Act.

For SV Associates

Company Secretaries

Date: June 30, 2020

Place: Chandigarh

Sahil Malhotra

CP No.14791

M.No. 38204
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ANNEXURE TO DIRECTORS' REPORT Annexure-3

Form for disclosure or par�culars of contracts/ arrangements entered into by the Company with related par�es referred to in sub 

sec�on (1) of Sec�on 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 entered at arm length transac�on :

FORM NO: AOC-2

(Pursuant to Clause (h) of Sub-sec�on (3) of Sec�on 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) 

of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Mr. Madan Mohan Managerial  KMP 1st April, 2017-   18.00

   Remunera�on  ongoing

Mr. Vijay Singla  Managerial  KMP 1st April , 2017-  18.00

   Remunera�on  ongoing

Mr. Rakesh Garg  Managerial  KMP 1st April, 2017-   18.00

   Remunera�on  ongoing

Mr. Dhruv Singla  Managerial  KMP 30th May, 2014 -  7.80

   Remunera�on  ongoing

Mr. Mohinder Singh Remunera�on KMP 1st September to   3.50

     31st March, 2020

M/s Chetan Industries Limited Purchase of goods  Related Company  FY 2019-20  188.12

   and services (Company under the 

    same management)

M/s Jagan Industries Limited Sale of goods  Related Company  FY 2019-20  3877.48

   and services (Company under the 

    same management) 

   Purchase of goods   FY 2019-20  33.43

   and services

Rakesh Garg

Whole Time Director                            

DIN: 00184081

For & on Behalf of the Board

JTL Infra Limited

Madan Mohan Singla 

Managing Director 

DIN: 00156668

Place: Chandigarh

Dated: August 29, 2020

Amount 

(in Lacs)
Dura�on of 

Contract

Nature of 

Rela�onship

Nature of 

Contract
Name of Related Party
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ANNEXURE TO DIRECTORS' REPORT Annexure-4

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

1. 

 

2. Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years    Rs. 11,67,90,598/-

3. Prescribed CSR expenditure (two percent of the average net profits for last three years) Rs. 23,35,812/-

4. Previous Year Unspent Amount       Rs. 4,592/-

5. Details of CSR spent during         Financial Year 2019-20

6. Amount spent         Rs. 23,40,500/-

7. Unspent Amount         Not Applicable

8.   The Composi�on of Corporate Social Responsibility Commi�ee as on 31st March, 2020 and details of a�endance of 

members is given below:

A brief outline of the Company's CSR Policy including 

overview of projects or programs proposed to be 

undertaken and a reference to the weblink to the 

CSR policy and projects or programs.

Pursuant to Sec�on 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Corporate 

Social  Responsibility  Commi�ee  of  the   Board   had approved a 

CSR Policy with primary focus on Health and Social Welfare. Besides 

these focus areas the Company shall also undertake any other CSR 

ac�vi�es listed in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.

The CSR Policy of the Company can be accessed at www. jtlinfra.com

Name of Member   Category  Designa�on Mee�ngs Held Mee�ngs A�ended

Ms. Preet Kamal Kaur Bha�a Non-Execu�ve   Chairman 1 1

    Independent Director 

Mr. Mithan Lal Singla  Non-Execu�ve  Member 1 1

    Independent Director 

Mr. Vijay Singla*   Execu�ve Director Member 1 1

*  Mr. Vijay Singla ceased to be commi�ee member w.e.f. 13th May, 2020 and in his place Mr. Rakesh Garg, whole �me director was appointed as member of the 

commi�ee w.e.f 13th May, 2020.

 9.    Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:

Sector in which

the project is

covered

Project or Program

(1) Local Area or Other

(2) Specify the State and 

district where projects or 

programs was undertaken

Amount 

Outlay 

(Budget) 

Project or 

Program wise

Amount spent on 

the Projects or 

Programs Sub Heads:

(1) Direct Expenditure 

on Projects or Programs

(2) Overheads

Cumula�ve 

Expenditure 

upto the 

repor�ng 

period

Amount Spent:

Direct or 

through 

Implemen�ng 

Agency

Contribu�on to Bhojia 

Charitable Trust For 

Science Research And 

Social Welfare, Baddi-

Himachal Pradesh

Direct 

Contribu�on

23,40,50023,40,500-
Schedule VII

Item-i ( improving 

health)
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 Note: CSR spend men�oned herein are amount contributed / remi�ed by the Company to NGO's or implemen�ng agencies 

men�oned above, which may or may not be fully u�lized toward purposes men�oned above.

 The CSR commi�ee hereby cer�fies that the implementa�on and monitoring of the CSR Policy is in compliance with the CSR 

objec�ves and Policy of the Company.

9.  In case the company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net profit of the last three financial years or any part 

thereof, the company shall provide the reasons for not spending the amount in its Board report.

 Not Applicable

10.  A responsibility statement of the CSR commi�ee that the implementa�on and monitoring of CSR policy, is in compliance with 

CSR objec�ves and Policy of the Company.

 Implementa�on of CSR ac�vi�es is in compliance with Companies Act, 2013 to meet the CSR objec�ves and policy of the 

Company.

Rakesh Garg

Whole Time Director                            

DIN: 00184081

For & on Behalf of the Board

JTL Infra Limited

Madan Mohan Singla 

Managing Director 

DIN: 00156668

Place: Chandigarh

Dated: August 29, 2020
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ANNEXURE TO DIRECTORS' REPORT Annexure-4

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

1. 

 

2. Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years    Rs. 11,67,90,598/-

3. Prescribed CSR expenditure (two percent of the average net profits for last three years) Rs. 23,35,812/-

4. Previous Year Unspent Amount       Rs. 4,592/-

5. Details of CSR spent during         Financial Year 2019-20

6. Amount spent         Rs. 23,40,500/-

7. Unspent Amount         Not Applicable

8.   The Composi�on of Corporate Social Responsibility Commi�ee as on 31st March, 2020 and details of a�endance of 

members is given below:

A brief outline of the Company's CSR Policy including 

overview of projects or programs proposed to be 

undertaken and a reference to the weblink to the 

CSR policy and projects or programs.

Pursuant to Sec�on 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Corporate 

Social  Responsibility  Commi�ee  of  the   Board   had approved a 

CSR Policy with primary focus on Health and Social Welfare. Besides 

these focus areas the Company shall also undertake any other CSR 

ac�vi�es listed in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.

The CSR Policy of the Company can be accessed at www. jtlinfra.com

Name of Member   Category  Designa�on Mee�ngs Held Mee�ngs A�ended

Ms. Preet Kamal Kaur Bha�a Non-Execu�ve   Chairman 1 1

    Independent Director 

Mr. Mithan Lal Singla  Non-Execu�ve  Member 1 1

    Independent Director 

Mr. Vijay Singla*   Execu�ve Director Member 1 1

*  Mr. Vijay Singla ceased to be commi�ee member w.e.f. 13th May, 2020 and in his place Mr. Rakesh Garg, whole �me director was appointed as member of the 

commi�ee w.e.f 13th May, 2020.

 9.    Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:

Sector in which

the project is

covered

Project or Program

(1) Local Area or Other

(2) Specify the State and 

district where projects or 

programs was undertaken

Amount 

Outlay 

(Budget) 

Project or 

Program wise

Amount spent on 

the Projects or 

Programs Sub Heads:

(1) Direct Expenditure 

on Projects or Programs

(2) Overheads

Cumula�ve 

Expenditure 

upto the 

repor�ng 

period

Amount Spent:

Direct or 

through 

Implemen�ng 

Agency

Contribu�on to Bhojia 

Charitable Trust For 

Science Research And 

Social Welfare, Baddi-

Himachal Pradesh

Direct 

Contribu�on

23,40,50023,40,500-
Schedule VII

Item-i ( improving 

health)

www.jtlinfra.com

ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20

 Note: CSR spend men�oned herein are amount contributed / remi�ed by the Company to NGO's or implemen�ng agencies 

men�oned above, which may or may not be fully u�lized toward purposes men�oned above.

 The CSR commi�ee hereby cer�fies that the implementa�on and monitoring of the CSR Policy is in compliance with the CSR 

objec�ves and Policy of the Company.

9.  In case the company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net profit of the last three financial years or any part 

thereof, the company shall provide the reasons for not spending the amount in its Board report.

 Not Applicable

10.  A responsibility statement of the CSR commi�ee that the implementa�on and monitoring of CSR policy, is in compliance with 

CSR objec�ves and Policy of the Company.

 Implementa�on of CSR ac�vi�es is in compliance with Companies Act, 2013 to meet the CSR objec�ves and policy of the 

Company.

Rakesh Garg

Whole Time Director                            

DIN: 00184081

For & on Behalf of the Board

JTL Infra Limited

Madan Mohan Singla 

Managing Director 

DIN: 00156668

Place: Chandigarh

Dated: August 29, 2020
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ANNEXURE TO DIRECTORS' REPORT Annexure-5

SALIENT FEATURES OF THE POLICY RELATING TO THE 

REMUNERATION FOR THE DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL 

PERSONNEL AND OTHER EMPLOYEES

The philosophy for remunera�on of Directors, KMPs and all 

other employees is based on commitment demonstrated by 

the Directors, KMPs and other employees towards the 

Company and truly fostering a culture of leadership with trust. 

The remunera�on policy is aligned to this philosophy.

This remunera�on policy has been prepared pursuant to the 

provisions of Sec�on 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act') 

and regula�on 19(4) read with Part D of Schedule II of the 

Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 ('Lis�ng 

Regula�ons'). In case of any inconsistency between the 

provisions of law and this remunera�on policy, the provisions 

of the law will prevail. While formula�ng this Policy, the 

Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee has considered the 

factors laid down under Sec�on 178(4) of the Act, which are as 

under:

a) The level and composi�on of remunera�on is reasonable 

and sufficient to a�ract, retain and mo�vate Directors of 

the quality required to run the Company successfully;

b) Rela�onship of remunera�on to performance is clear and 

meets appropriate performance benchmarks; and

c) Remunera�on to Directors, KMP and senior management 

involves a balance between fixed and incen�ve pay 

reflec�ng short and long-term performance objec�ves 

appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals.

PURPOSE

This Policy sets out the approach to Compensa�on of Directors, 

Key Managerial Personnel and other employees in JTL Infra 

Limited.

POLICY STATEMENT

We have a well-defined Compensa�on policy for Directors, Key 

Managerial Personnel and all employees, including the 

Members of the Execu�ve Board who are employees of the 

Company. 

The overall compensa�on philosophy which guides us is that in 

order to achieve global leadership and dominance in domes�c 

markets, we need to a�ract and retain high performers by 

compensa�ng them at levels that are broadly comparable with 

the median of the comparator basket while differen�a�ng 

people on the basis of performance, poten�al and cri�cality for 

achieving compe��ve advantage in the business.

In order to effec�vely implement this, we have built our 

Compensa�on structure by a regular annual benchmarking 

over the years with relevant players across the industry we 

operate in.

NON-EXECUTIVE INCLUDING INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

The Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee (NRC) shall 

decide the basis for determining the compensa�on taking into 

considera�on various factors such as director's par�cipa�on in 

Board and Commi�ee mee�ngs during the year, other 

responsibili�es undertaken, such as membership or 

Chairmanship of commi�ees, �me spent in carrying out their 

du�es, role and func�ons as envisaged in Schedule IV of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and such other factors as the NRC may 

consider deem fit for determining the compensa�on. The 

Board shall determine the compensa�on to Non-Execu�ve 

Directors within the overall limits specified in the Shareholders 

resolu�ons passed from �me to �me.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

The remunera�on to Managing Director and Execu�ve 

Director(s) shall be recommended by NRC to the Board. The 

remunera�on consists of both fixed compensa�on and 

variable compensa�on and shall be paid as salary, perquisites 

and fringe benefits as approved by the Board and within the 

overall limits specified in the Shareholders resolu�on. While 

the fixed compensa�on is determined at the �me of their 

appointment, the variable compensa�on will be determined 

annually by the NRC based on their performance.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMPS):

The terms of remunera�on of Chief Financial Officer (CFO) shall 

be determined by the Audit Commi�ee from �me to �me.

The terms of remunera�on of the Company Secretary shall be 

www.jtlinfra.com

ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20

finalized/ revised either by any Director or such other person as 

may be authorised by the Board from �me to �me.

The remunera�on shall be consistent with the compe��ve 

posi�on of the salary for similar posi�ons in the industry and 

their Qualifica�ons, Experience, Roles and Responsibili�es.

Pursuant to the provisions of sec�on 203 of the Companies Act, 

2013 the Board shall approve the remunera�on at the �me of 

their appointment. The remunera�on to Directors, KMPs and 

senior management involves a balance between fixed and 

incen�ve pay reflec�ng short and long-term performance 

objec�ves appropriate to the working of the company and its 

goals.

EMPLOYEES:

We follow a differen�al approach in choosing the comparator 

basket for benchmarking, depending upon the level in the 

organiza�on:

a. For all employees from Opera�onal to Execu�ve Band, we 

benchmark with a set of comparators from the same 

industry.

b.  For Strategic band and above, we have a posi�on-based 

approach and the comparator basket includes bench-

marks from across relevant industries.

We have a CTC (Cost to Company) concept which includes a 

fixed component (Guaranteed Pay) and a variable component 

(Performance pay). The percentage of the variable component 

increases with increasing hierarchy levels, as we believe 

employees at higher posi�ons have a far greater impact and 

influence on the overall business result. The CTC is reviewed 

once every year and the compensa�on strategy for posi�oning 

of individuals takes into considera�on the following elements:

• Performance

• Poten�al

• Cri�cality

• Longevity of grade

Remunera�on for the new employees other than KMPs and 

Senior Management Personnel will be decided by the HR, in 

consulta�on with the concerned business unit head at the �me 

of hiring, depending upon the relevant job experience, last 

compensa�on and the skill-set of the selected candidate.

Rakesh Garg

Whole Time Director                            

DIN: 00184081

For & on Behalf of the Board

JTL Infra Limited

Madan Mohan Singla 

Managing Director 

DIN: 00156668

Place: Chandigarh

Dated: August 29, 2020
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ANNEXURE TO DIRECTORS' REPORT Annexure-5

SALIENT FEATURES OF THE POLICY RELATING TO THE 

REMUNERATION FOR THE DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL 

PERSONNEL AND OTHER EMPLOYEES

The philosophy for remunera�on of Directors, KMPs and all 

other employees is based on commitment demonstrated by 

the Directors, KMPs and other employees towards the 

Company and truly fostering a culture of leadership with trust. 

The remunera�on policy is aligned to this philosophy.

This remunera�on policy has been prepared pursuant to the 

provisions of Sec�on 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act') 

and regula�on 19(4) read with Part D of Schedule II of the 

Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 ('Lis�ng 

Regula�ons'). In case of any inconsistency between the 

provisions of law and this remunera�on policy, the provisions 

of the law will prevail. While formula�ng this Policy, the 

Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee has considered the 

factors laid down under Sec�on 178(4) of the Act, which are as 

under:

a) The level and composi�on of remunera�on is reasonable 

and sufficient to a�ract, retain and mo�vate Directors of 

the quality required to run the Company successfully;

b) Rela�onship of remunera�on to performance is clear and 

meets appropriate performance benchmarks; and

c) Remunera�on to Directors, KMP and senior management 

involves a balance between fixed and incen�ve pay 

reflec�ng short and long-term performance objec�ves 

appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals.

PURPOSE

This Policy sets out the approach to Compensa�on of Directors, 

Key Managerial Personnel and other employees in JTL Infra 

Limited.

POLICY STATEMENT

We have a well-defined Compensa�on policy for Directors, Key 

Managerial Personnel and all employees, including the 

Members of the Execu�ve Board who are employees of the 

Company. 

The overall compensa�on philosophy which guides us is that in 

order to achieve global leadership and dominance in domes�c 

markets, we need to a�ract and retain high performers by 

compensa�ng them at levels that are broadly comparable with 

the median of the comparator basket while differen�a�ng 

people on the basis of performance, poten�al and cri�cality for 

achieving compe��ve advantage in the business.

In order to effec�vely implement this, we have built our 

Compensa�on structure by a regular annual benchmarking 

over the years with relevant players across the industry we 

operate in.

NON-EXECUTIVE INCLUDING INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

The Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee (NRC) shall 

decide the basis for determining the compensa�on taking into 

considera�on various factors such as director's par�cipa�on in 

Board and Commi�ee mee�ngs during the year, other 

responsibili�es undertaken, such as membership or 

Chairmanship of commi�ees, �me spent in carrying out their 

du�es, role and func�ons as envisaged in Schedule IV of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and such other factors as the NRC may 

consider deem fit for determining the compensa�on. The 

Board shall determine the compensa�on to Non-Execu�ve 

Directors within the overall limits specified in the Shareholders 

resolu�ons passed from �me to �me.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

The remunera�on to Managing Director and Execu�ve 

Director(s) shall be recommended by NRC to the Board. The 

remunera�on consists of both fixed compensa�on and 

variable compensa�on and shall be paid as salary, perquisites 

and fringe benefits as approved by the Board and within the 

overall limits specified in the Shareholders resolu�on. While 

the fixed compensa�on is determined at the �me of their 

appointment, the variable compensa�on will be determined 

annually by the NRC based on their performance.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMPS):

The terms of remunera�on of Chief Financial Officer (CFO) shall 

be determined by the Audit Commi�ee from �me to �me.

The terms of remunera�on of the Company Secretary shall be 
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finalized/ revised either by any Director or such other person as 

may be authorised by the Board from �me to �me.

The remunera�on shall be consistent with the compe��ve 

posi�on of the salary for similar posi�ons in the industry and 

their Qualifica�ons, Experience, Roles and Responsibili�es.

Pursuant to the provisions of sec�on 203 of the Companies Act, 

2013 the Board shall approve the remunera�on at the �me of 

their appointment. The remunera�on to Directors, KMPs and 

senior management involves a balance between fixed and 

incen�ve pay reflec�ng short and long-term performance 

objec�ves appropriate to the working of the company and its 

goals.

EMPLOYEES:

We follow a differen�al approach in choosing the comparator 

basket for benchmarking, depending upon the level in the 

organiza�on:

a. For all employees from Opera�onal to Execu�ve Band, we 

benchmark with a set of comparators from the same 

industry.

b.  For Strategic band and above, we have a posi�on-based 

approach and the comparator basket includes bench-

marks from across relevant industries.

We have a CTC (Cost to Company) concept which includes a 

fixed component (Guaranteed Pay) and a variable component 

(Performance pay). The percentage of the variable component 

increases with increasing hierarchy levels, as we believe 

employees at higher posi�ons have a far greater impact and 

influence on the overall business result. The CTC is reviewed 

once every year and the compensa�on strategy for posi�oning 

of individuals takes into considera�on the following elements:

• Performance

• Poten�al

• Cri�cality

• Longevity of grade

Remunera�on for the new employees other than KMPs and 

Senior Management Personnel will be decided by the HR, in 

consulta�on with the concerned business unit head at the �me 

of hiring, depending upon the relevant job experience, last 

compensa�on and the skill-set of the selected candidate.

Rakesh Garg

Whole Time Director                            

DIN: 00184081

For & on Behalf of the Board

JTL Infra Limited

Madan Mohan Singla 

Managing Director 

DIN: 00156668

Place: Chandigarh

Dated: August 29, 2020
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Details under Sec�on 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remunera�on of Managerial Personnel), Rules, 2014

Rule Par�culars

(i) The Ra�o of the remunera�on of each Director to the median 

remunera�on of the employees of the Company for the 

financial year. 

 
(ii) The percentage increase in remunera�on of each Director, 

Chief Financial Officer, Chief Execu�ve Officer, Company 

Secretary in the financial year.

 

 

 
(iii) The percentage decrease in the median remunera�on of 

employees in the financial year.

(iv) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the 

Company as on 31st March, 2020.

(v) Average percen�le increase already made in the salaries of 

employees other than the managerial personnel in the last 

financial year and its comparison with the percen�le increase 

in the managerial remunera�on and jus�fica�on thereof and 

point out if there are any excep�onal circumstances for 

increase in the managerial remunera�on.  

a Mr. Madan Mohan, Managing Director 16:1

b Mr. Vijay Singla, Whole-Time Director 16:1

c Mr. Rakesh Garg, Whole-Time Director 16:1

a Mr. Madan Mohan, Managing Director Nil

b Mr. Vijay Singla, Whole-Time Director Nil

c Mr. Rakesh Garg, Whole-Time Director Nil

d Mr. Dhruv Singla, Chief Financial Officer Nil

e Mr. Mohinder Singh, Company Secretary Nil

12.84%

258

15.06%

For comparison purpose the percentage increase 

in remunera�on of KMP is given in 

Rule no. (ii) above.

(vi) It is hereby affirmed that the remunera�on is as per the Remunera�on Policy of the Company.

Rakesh Garg

Whole Time Director                            

DIN: 00184081

For & on Behalf of the Board

JTL Infra Limited

Madan Mohan Singla 

Managing Director 

DIN: 00156668

Place: Chandigarh

Dated: August 29, 2020
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

THE COMPANY'S PHILOSHPY ON CODE OF CORPORATE 

GOVERNANCE

Effec�ve corporate governance is the basis for decision-

making and control processes and comprises responsible, 

value based management and monitoring focused on long-

term success, goal-orienta�on and respect for the interests of 

our stakeholders.

It provides the framework for a�aining a company's objec�ves 

while balancing the interests of all its stakeholders.

Your Company is dedicated to conduct its business consistently 

with the highest standards of business ethics and values. We 

have an obliga�on towards our stakeholders including share 

holders, employees, customers, suppliers & communi�es to be 

honest, fair and forthright in our business ac�vi�es.

The Company's governance framework is based on the 

following principles:

Appropriate composi�on and size of the Board, with all the 

Members bringing in exper�se in their respec�ve domains;

Ÿ Availability of informa�on to the Members of the Board 

and Board Commi�ees to enable them to discharge their

Ÿ fiduciary du�es;

Ÿ Timely disclosure of material, opera�onal & financial 

informa�on to the Stakeholders;

Ÿ Proper business conduct  by the Board,  Senior 

Management and employees.

The Company's Corporate Governance philosophy is to 

con�nuously strive to a�ain higher level of accountability, 

transparency, responsibility and fairness in all aspects of its 

opera�ons. Your Company remains commi�ed towards 

protec�on and enhancement of overall long-term value of all 

its stakeholders - shareholders, investors, customers, lenders, 

employees and the society. The company also acknowledges 

and appreciates its responsibility towards society at large and 

has embarked upon various ini�a�ves to effectuate this.

During the financial year under 2019-20, your Company 

con�nued its pursuit of achieving these objec�ves through the 

adop�on of compe��ve strategies, prudent business plans 

and strategic monitoring and mi�ga�on of risks, while at the 

same �me, crea�ng checks and balances and an organiza�on 

that values people, propriety, equity and fair play. The 

company follows sound and healthy business prac�ces in all 

facets of its opera�ons and conducts its business in a 

transparent manner. The Company remains commi�ed 

towards ensuring observance of corporate Governance 

principles in all its dealings, thereby ensuring the interests of 

the shareholders.

In this report, we confirm our compliance with the Corporate 

Governance criteria as provided under SEBI (Lis�ng 

Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirement), Regula�ons, 2015.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is at core of the Company's Corporate Governance 

prac�ces. It oversees the Management and ensures the 

achievement of long-term objec�ves of the Company. It 

directs the Company by formula�ng and reviewing Company's 

policies, strategies and business plans. The Board of the 

Company provides leadership and strategic guidance to the 

Company and exercises control over the Company, while 

remaining at all �mes accountable to the shareholders. 

Your Company believes that an ac�ve, independent and 

par�cipa�ve board is a prerequisite to achieve and maintain 

the desired level of Corporate Governance. The composi�on of 

Board confirms to this objec�ve. As on the date of adop�on of 

Corporate Governance Report, the Board is having six 

members with Mr. Bhupinder Nayyar, Non-Execu�ve 

Independent Director as chairperson to the Board. JTL ensures 

that the Board is provided with all relevant opera�onal 

informa�on to maintain a transparent decision-making 

process.

The Company has not entered into any materially significant 

transac�on with its Directors/Management or rela�ves etc. 

affec�ng the interest of the Company at large except in normal 

course of business.

COMPOSITION OF BOARD

The Company has a judicious mix of Execu�ve and Non-

Execu�ve Directors as governed by Companies Act, 2013 (the 

“Act”), and the s�pula�ons laid down in the Securi�es 

Exchange Board of India (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 (“Lis�ng Regula�ons”). As 

on 31st March, 2020, the Board comprised of 06 (six) Directors 

out of which 3 (three) are Execu�ve Directors, 2 (two) are Non-

Execu�ve Independent Directors including one Non-Execu�ve 
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ANNEXURE TO DIRECTORS' REPORT Annexure-5

Details under Sec�on 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remunera�on of Managerial Personnel), Rules, 2014

Rule Par�culars

(i) The Ra�o of the remunera�on of each Director to the median 

remunera�on of the employees of the Company for the 

financial year. 

 
(ii) The percentage increase in remunera�on of each Director, 

Chief Financial Officer, Chief Execu�ve Officer, Company 

Secretary in the financial year.

 

 

 
(iii) The percentage decrease in the median remunera�on of 

employees in the financial year.

(iv) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the 

Company as on 31st March, 2020.

(v) Average percen�le increase already made in the salaries of 

employees other than the managerial personnel in the last 

financial year and its comparison with the percen�le increase 

in the managerial remunera�on and jus�fica�on thereof and 

point out if there are any excep�onal circumstances for 

increase in the managerial remunera�on.  

a Mr. Madan Mohan, Managing Director 16:1

b Mr. Vijay Singla, Whole-Time Director 16:1

c Mr. Rakesh Garg, Whole-Time Director 16:1

a Mr. Madan Mohan, Managing Director Nil

b Mr. Vijay Singla, Whole-Time Director Nil

c Mr. Rakesh Garg, Whole-Time Director Nil

d Mr. Dhruv Singla, Chief Financial Officer Nil

e Mr. Mohinder Singh, Company Secretary Nil

12.84%

258

15.06%

For comparison purpose the percentage increase 

in remunera�on of KMP is given in 

Rule no. (ii) above.

(vi) It is hereby affirmed that the remunera�on is as per the Remunera�on Policy of the Company.

Rakesh Garg

Whole Time Director                            

DIN: 00184081

For & on Behalf of the Board

JTL Infra Limited

Madan Mohan Singla 

Managing Director 

DIN: 00156668

Place: Chandigarh

Dated: August 29, 2020

www.jtlinfra.com
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

THE COMPANY'S PHILOSHPY ON CODE OF CORPORATE 

GOVERNANCE

Effec�ve corporate governance is the basis for decision-

making and control processes and comprises responsible, 

value based management and monitoring focused on long-

term success, goal-orienta�on and respect for the interests of 

our stakeholders.

It provides the framework for a�aining a company's objec�ves 

while balancing the interests of all its stakeholders.

Your Company is dedicated to conduct its business consistently 

with the highest standards of business ethics and values. We 

have an obliga�on towards our stakeholders including share 

holders, employees, customers, suppliers & communi�es to be 

honest, fair and forthright in our business ac�vi�es.

The Company's governance framework is based on the 

following principles:

Appropriate composi�on and size of the Board, with all the 

Members bringing in exper�se in their respec�ve domains;

Ÿ Availability of informa�on to the Members of the Board 

and Board Commi�ees to enable them to discharge their

Ÿ fiduciary du�es;

Ÿ Timely disclosure of material, opera�onal & financial 

informa�on to the Stakeholders;

Ÿ Proper business conduct  by the Board,  Senior 

Management and employees.

The Company's Corporate Governance philosophy is to 

con�nuously strive to a�ain higher level of accountability, 

transparency, responsibility and fairness in all aspects of its 

opera�ons. Your Company remains commi�ed towards 

protec�on and enhancement of overall long-term value of all 

its stakeholders - shareholders, investors, customers, lenders, 

employees and the society. The company also acknowledges 

and appreciates its responsibility towards society at large and 

has embarked upon various ini�a�ves to effectuate this.

During the financial year under 2019-20, your Company 

con�nued its pursuit of achieving these objec�ves through the 

adop�on of compe��ve strategies, prudent business plans 

and strategic monitoring and mi�ga�on of risks, while at the 

same �me, crea�ng checks and balances and an organiza�on 

that values people, propriety, equity and fair play. The 

company follows sound and healthy business prac�ces in all 

facets of its opera�ons and conducts its business in a 

transparent manner. The Company remains commi�ed 

towards ensuring observance of corporate Governance 

principles in all its dealings, thereby ensuring the interests of 

the shareholders.

In this report, we confirm our compliance with the Corporate 

Governance criteria as provided under SEBI (Lis�ng 

Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirement), Regula�ons, 2015.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is at core of the Company's Corporate Governance 

prac�ces. It oversees the Management and ensures the 

achievement of long-term objec�ves of the Company. It 

directs the Company by formula�ng and reviewing Company's 

policies, strategies and business plans. The Board of the 

Company provides leadership and strategic guidance to the 

Company and exercises control over the Company, while 

remaining at all �mes accountable to the shareholders. 

Your Company believes that an ac�ve, independent and 

par�cipa�ve board is a prerequisite to achieve and maintain 

the desired level of Corporate Governance. The composi�on of 

Board confirms to this objec�ve. As on the date of adop�on of 

Corporate Governance Report, the Board is having six 

members with Mr. Bhupinder Nayyar, Non-Execu�ve 

Independent Director as chairperson to the Board. JTL ensures 

that the Board is provided with all relevant opera�onal 

informa�on to maintain a transparent decision-making 

process.

The Company has not entered into any materially significant 

transac�on with its Directors/Management or rela�ves etc. 

affec�ng the interest of the Company at large except in normal 

course of business.

COMPOSITION OF BOARD

The Company has a judicious mix of Execu�ve and Non-

Execu�ve Directors as governed by Companies Act, 2013 (the 

“Act”), and the s�pula�ons laid down in the Securi�es 

Exchange Board of India (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 (“Lis�ng Regula�ons”). As 

on 31st March, 2020, the Board comprised of 06 (six) Directors 

out of which 3 (three) are Execu�ve Directors, 2 (two) are Non-

Execu�ve Independent Directors including one Non-Execu�ve 
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Non-Independent Woman Director and 1 (one) Non 

Independent, Non Execu�ve Director. The Chairman of the 

Board is a Non-Execu�ve Independent Director. The 

composi�on of the Board is in conformity with Regula�on 17 of 

the Lis�ng Regula�ons and Sec�on 149 of the Act and other 

applicable regulatory requirements 

As on the date of this report, all Directors of the Company meet 

the criteria of maximum number of directorship as laid down in 

sec�on 165 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Lis�ng 

Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015.

Independent Directors are Non-Execu�ve Directors as defined 

under Regula�on 16(1)(b) of the Lis�ng Regula�ons and 

Sec�on 149 (6) of the Act. The maximum tenure of 

Independent Directors is in compliance with the Act. All the 

Independent Directors have confirmed that they meet the 

criteria of independence as men�oned under Regula�on 16 (1) 

(b) of the Lis�ng Regula�ons and Sec�on 149 (6) of the Act.

PROCEDURE OF THE BOARD MEETINGS

The mee�ngs of the Board are convened by giving appropriate 

advance no�ce to the members of the Board. The Secretary of 

the Company circulates internal no�ce to all the Board 

members and division heads asking for the sugges�ons/ 

details of any ma�er which requires discussion or approval of 

the Board so that the same could be incorporated in the 

agenda of the Board mee�ng. The date of the Board mee�ng is 

fixed taking into account convenience and availability of the 

Board members.

The Board of the Company is presented with all the relevant 

informa�on on various vital ma�ers affec�ng the working of 

the Company as well as those ma�ers, which require 

delibera�on at the highest level. Board Members are given 

appropriate documents/detailed notes and informa�on in 

advance of each Board and Commi�ee Mee�ng. The minutes 

of the Commi�ee of Board of Directors are taken as read at the 

mee�ng of Board for informa�on of the members. The follow 

up ac�ons of Board.

The Compliance officer of the Company conducts the Board 

mee�ngs and prepares all documents including minutes of the 

mee�ng in compliance with the provisions of the Companies 

Act and other statutory enactments.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD 

The Board meets at least once in a quarter, inter alia, to review 

the quarterly financial result, performance of the Company, 

status of compliance of laws, review of business and func�ons, 

material transac�ons and other similar ma�ers. The gap 

between any two Board Mee�ngs did not exceed one hundred 

and twenty days, as prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 

and SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regula�ons, 2015. The members of the Board have complete 

access to all the informa�on of the Company.

During Financial Year 2019-20, 8 (Eight) Board Mee�ng were 

held on 4th May, 2019, 18th May, 2019, 29th July, 2019, 29th 

August, 2019, 7th October, 2019, 9th November, 2019, 1st 

January, 2020 and 12th February, 2020. 

The necessary quorum was present for all the mee�ngs. The 

no�ce and detailed agenda along with the relevant notes and 

other material informa�on were sent in advance separately to 

each Directors and in excep�onal cases tabled at the Mee�ng 

with the approval of the Board.

 Name of Director Category Rela�onship with  No. of Board  AGM September 
    other Directors Mee�ngs  30, 2019 
     a�ended  
Mr. Mithan Lal Singla Non-Independent, Non-Execu�ve Father of Vijay Singla &   8/8  Yes
    Madan Mohan Singla
Mr. Madan Mohan Singla Managing Director, Execu�ve Son of Mithan Lal Singla 6/8 Yes
Mr. Vijay Singla*  Whole Time Director, Execu�ve Son of Mithan Lal Singla 8/8 Yes
Mr. Rakesh Garg  Whole Time Director, Execu�ve Rela�ve of Mithan Lal Singla 8/8 Yes
Ms. Preet Kamal Kaur Bha�a Independent, Non-Execu�ve - 3/8 Yes
Mr. Bhupinder Nayyar Independent, Non-Execu�ve - 5/8 No
Mr. Sukhdev Raj Sharma** Independent, Non-Execu�ve - - -

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD AND ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS FOR 2019-20

*   Mr. Vijay Singla ceased to be Whole Time Director of the Company with effect from 30th May, 2020
** Mr. Sukhdev Raj Sharma inducted in the board as Non-Execu�ve and Independent Director with effect from 30th June, 2020

www.jtlinfra.com
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OPINION OF THE BOARD

The Board hereby confirms that, in its opinion, the 

independent directors on the Board fulfil the condi�ons 

specified in the SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons and Companies Act, 

2013 & are independent of the management.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

JTL has five Board level commi�ees to discuss, deal with 

ma�ers in detail and to monitor the ac�vi�es falling within the 

terms of reference and to discharge the roles & responsibili�es 

as prescribed under SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons, from �me to �me.

The commi�ees act on behalf of Board as representa�ve for 

the ma�ers assigned to them by the Board. The decision taken 

by the Commi�ees are reviewed by the Board from �me to 

�me. The minutes of Commi�ee mee�ng are placed before the 

Board mee�ngs at regular intervals. The Board is responsible 

for cons�tu�ng, assigning, co-op�ng and fixing the terms of 

reference for members of various commi�ees. Details on the 

role and composi�on of these commi�ees, including the 

number of commi�ee mee�ngs held during the financial year 

and the related a�endance are given in the subsequent 

paragraphs.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI Lis�ng 

Regula�ons, the Company has cons�tuted an Audit 

Commi�ee. The Board reviews the working of the Commi�ee 

from �me to �me to bring about greater effec�veness in order 

to comply with the various requirements under the Companies 

Act, 2013 and the SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons. 

The composi�on of the audit commi�ee is in accordance with 

the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI Lis�ng 

Regula�ons and all the members are financially literate and 

have accoun�ng or related financial management exper�se. 

During 2019-20, in line with the provisions of the SEBI Lis�ng 

Regula�ons, as amended, the terms of reference of the 

Commi�ee were revised by the Board. The revised terms of 

reference are in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 and 

the SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons.

The detailed terms of reference of audit commi�ee have been 

placed on the Company's website at www.jtlinfra.com

The broad terms of reference of the Audit Commi�ee are:

1. Recommenda�on for appointment, remunera�on and 

terms of appointment of auditors;

2. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other 

services rendered by the statutory auditors; 

3. Oversee the Company's financial repor�ng process and 

review its financial statements.

4. Recommend the appointment, re-appointment and if 

required, the replacement or removal of the statutory 

auditors and fixa�on of their fees.

5. Review of risk management policies and prac�ces and also 

includes the following:

 a. To inves�gate any ac�vity within its terms of 

reference.

 b. To seek informa�on from any employee, if needed.

 c. To obtain outside legal or other professional advice.

 d. To secure a�endance of outsiders with relevant 

exper�se.

6. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial 

statements before submission to the board for approval; 

7. Reviewing and monitoring the auditor's independence 

and performance, and effec�veness of audit process; 

8. Approval or any subsequent modifica�on of transac�ons 

of the listed en�ty with related par�es; 

9. Scru�ny of inter-corporate loans and investments; 

10. Valua�on of undertakings or assets wherever it is 

necessary; 

11. Evalua�on of internal financial controls and risk 

management systems; 

12. Reviewing, with the management, performance of 

statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal 

control systems; 

13. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit func�on, if any, 

including the structure of the internal audit department, 

staffing and seniority of the official heading the 

department, repor�ng structure coverage and frequency 

of internal audit; 

14. Reviewing the findings of any internal inves�ga�ons by the 

internal auditors into ma�ers where there is suspected 

fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems 

of a material nature and repor�ng the ma�er to the board; 
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Non-Independent Woman Director and 1 (one) Non 

Independent, Non Execu�ve Director. The Chairman of the 

Board is a Non-Execu�ve Independent Director. The 

composi�on of the Board is in conformity with Regula�on 17 of 

the Lis�ng Regula�ons and Sec�on 149 of the Act and other 

applicable regulatory requirements 

As on the date of this report, all Directors of the Company meet 

the criteria of maximum number of directorship as laid down in 

sec�on 165 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Lis�ng 

Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015.

Independent Directors are Non-Execu�ve Directors as defined 

under Regula�on 16(1)(b) of the Lis�ng Regula�ons and 

Sec�on 149 (6) of the Act. The maximum tenure of 

Independent Directors is in compliance with the Act. All the 

Independent Directors have confirmed that they meet the 

criteria of independence as men�oned under Regula�on 16 (1) 

(b) of the Lis�ng Regula�ons and Sec�on 149 (6) of the Act.

PROCEDURE OF THE BOARD MEETINGS

The mee�ngs of the Board are convened by giving appropriate 

advance no�ce to the members of the Board. The Secretary of 

the Company circulates internal no�ce to all the Board 

members and division heads asking for the sugges�ons/ 

details of any ma�er which requires discussion or approval of 

the Board so that the same could be incorporated in the 

agenda of the Board mee�ng. The date of the Board mee�ng is 

fixed taking into account convenience and availability of the 

Board members.

The Board of the Company is presented with all the relevant 

informa�on on various vital ma�ers affec�ng the working of 

the Company as well as those ma�ers, which require 

delibera�on at the highest level. Board Members are given 

appropriate documents/detailed notes and informa�on in 

advance of each Board and Commi�ee Mee�ng. The minutes 

of the Commi�ee of Board of Directors are taken as read at the 

mee�ng of Board for informa�on of the members. The follow 

up ac�ons of Board.

The Compliance officer of the Company conducts the Board 

mee�ngs and prepares all documents including minutes of the 

mee�ng in compliance with the provisions of the Companies 

Act and other statutory enactments.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD 

The Board meets at least once in a quarter, inter alia, to review 

the quarterly financial result, performance of the Company, 

status of compliance of laws, review of business and func�ons, 

material transac�ons and other similar ma�ers. The gap 

between any two Board Mee�ngs did not exceed one hundred 

and twenty days, as prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 

and SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regula�ons, 2015. The members of the Board have complete 

access to all the informa�on of the Company.

During Financial Year 2019-20, 8 (Eight) Board Mee�ng were 

held on 4th May, 2019, 18th May, 2019, 29th July, 2019, 29th 

August, 2019, 7th October, 2019, 9th November, 2019, 1st 

January, 2020 and 12th February, 2020. 

The necessary quorum was present for all the mee�ngs. The 

no�ce and detailed agenda along with the relevant notes and 

other material informa�on were sent in advance separately to 

each Directors and in excep�onal cases tabled at the Mee�ng 

with the approval of the Board.

 Name of Director Category Rela�onship with  No. of Board  AGM September 
    other Directors Mee�ngs  30, 2019 
     a�ended  
Mr. Mithan Lal Singla Non-Independent, Non-Execu�ve Father of Vijay Singla &   8/8  Yes
    Madan Mohan Singla
Mr. Madan Mohan Singla Managing Director, Execu�ve Son of Mithan Lal Singla 6/8 Yes
Mr. Vijay Singla*  Whole Time Director, Execu�ve Son of Mithan Lal Singla 8/8 Yes
Mr. Rakesh Garg  Whole Time Director, Execu�ve Rela�ve of Mithan Lal Singla 8/8 Yes
Ms. Preet Kamal Kaur Bha�a Independent, Non-Execu�ve - 3/8 Yes
Mr. Bhupinder Nayyar Independent, Non-Execu�ve - 5/8 No
Mr. Sukhdev Raj Sharma** Independent, Non-Execu�ve - - -

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD AND ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS FOR 2019-20

*   Mr. Vijay Singla ceased to be Whole Time Director of the Company with effect from 30th May, 2020
** Mr. Sukhdev Raj Sharma inducted in the board as Non-Execu�ve and Independent Director with effect from 30th June, 2020
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OPINION OF THE BOARD

The Board hereby confirms that, in its opinion, the 

independent directors on the Board fulfil the condi�ons 

specified in the SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons and Companies Act, 

2013 & are independent of the management.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

JTL has five Board level commi�ees to discuss, deal with 

ma�ers in detail and to monitor the ac�vi�es falling within the 

terms of reference and to discharge the roles & responsibili�es 

as prescribed under SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons, from �me to �me.

The commi�ees act on behalf of Board as representa�ve for 

the ma�ers assigned to them by the Board. The decision taken 

by the Commi�ees are reviewed by the Board from �me to 

�me. The minutes of Commi�ee mee�ng are placed before the 

Board mee�ngs at regular intervals. The Board is responsible 

for cons�tu�ng, assigning, co-op�ng and fixing the terms of 

reference for members of various commi�ees. Details on the 

role and composi�on of these commi�ees, including the 

number of commi�ee mee�ngs held during the financial year 

and the related a�endance are given in the subsequent 

paragraphs.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI Lis�ng 

Regula�ons, the Company has cons�tuted an Audit 

Commi�ee. The Board reviews the working of the Commi�ee 

from �me to �me to bring about greater effec�veness in order 

to comply with the various requirements under the Companies 

Act, 2013 and the SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons. 

The composi�on of the audit commi�ee is in accordance with 

the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI Lis�ng 

Regula�ons and all the members are financially literate and 

have accoun�ng or related financial management exper�se. 

During 2019-20, in line with the provisions of the SEBI Lis�ng 

Regula�ons, as amended, the terms of reference of the 

Commi�ee were revised by the Board. The revised terms of 

reference are in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 and 

the SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons.

The detailed terms of reference of audit commi�ee have been 

placed on the Company's website at www.jtlinfra.com

The broad terms of reference of the Audit Commi�ee are:

1. Recommenda�on for appointment, remunera�on and 

terms of appointment of auditors;

2. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other 

services rendered by the statutory auditors; 

3. Oversee the Company's financial repor�ng process and 

review its financial statements.

4. Recommend the appointment, re-appointment and if 

required, the replacement or removal of the statutory 

auditors and fixa�on of their fees.

5. Review of risk management policies and prac�ces and also 

includes the following:

 a. To inves�gate any ac�vity within its terms of 

reference.

 b. To seek informa�on from any employee, if needed.

 c. To obtain outside legal or other professional advice.

 d. To secure a�endance of outsiders with relevant 

exper�se.

6. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial 

statements before submission to the board for approval; 

7. Reviewing and monitoring the auditor's independence 

and performance, and effec�veness of audit process; 

8. Approval or any subsequent modifica�on of transac�ons 

of the listed en�ty with related par�es; 

9. Scru�ny of inter-corporate loans and investments; 

10. Valua�on of undertakings or assets wherever it is 

necessary; 

11. Evalua�on of internal financial controls and risk 

management systems; 

12. Reviewing, with the management, performance of 

statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal 

control systems; 

13. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit func�on, if any, 

including the structure of the internal audit department, 

staffing and seniority of the official heading the 

department, repor�ng structure coverage and frequency 

of internal audit; 

14. Reviewing the findings of any internal inves�ga�ons by the 

internal auditors into ma�ers where there is suspected 

fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems 

of a material nature and repor�ng the ma�er to the board; 
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15. To review the func�oning of the whistle blower 

mechanism;

MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

During the financial year 2019-20, the Audit Commi�ee met 

four �mes viz. on 18th May 2019, 29th July 2019, 9th 

November 2019 and 12th February 2020. The mee�ngs were 

scheduled well in advance and not more than one hundred and 

twenty days elapsed between any two mee�ngs. In addi�on to 

the members of the Audit Commi�ee, these mee�ngs were 

a�ended by the heads of finance, internal audit func�ons and 

the statutory auditors of the Company and those execu�ves 

who were considered necessary for providing inputs to the 

Commi�ee. 

The Company Secretary acted as the Secretary to the Audit 

Commi�ee.

Composi�on of Audit Commi�ee and a�endance record of members for the financial year 2019-20:

Name of director   Category   Posi�on   No. of Mee�ngs a�ended
Ms. Preet Kamal Kaur Bha�a Non-Execu�ve Independent  Director Chairperson 4/4
Mr. Bhupinder Nayyar  Non-Execu�ve Independent  Director Member  4/4
Mr. Vijay Singla*   Execu�ve Director  Member   4/4
Mr. Rakesh Garg**  Execu�ve Director  Member   -
Mr. Sukhdev Raj Sharma*** Non-Execu�ve Independent  Director Member  -

* Mr. Vijay Singla  ceased to be member of the commi�ee w.e.f. 18th May, 2020
** Mr. Rakesh Garg was appointed as member of the commi�ee w.e.f. 18th May, 2020
*** Mr. Sukhdev Raj Sharma was appointed as member of the commi�ee w.e.f 30th June.2020

Presently, Ms. Preet Kamal Kaur Bha�a, Chartered Accountant 

is the Chairman who has relevant accounts and Finance related 

exper�se as well as qualifica�on. Mr. Bhupinder Nayyar, Mr. 

Sukhdev Raj Sharma and Mr. Rakesh Garg are other three 

members. All of them are having knowledge and exper�se in 

accounts and finance. 

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI Lis�ng 

Regula�ons, the Company has cons�tuted a Nomina�on and 

Remunera�on Commi�ee. During the financial year 2019-20, 

in line with the provisions of the SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons, as 

amended, the terms of reference of the Commi�ee were 

revised by the Board. The revised terms of reference are in 

accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI Lis�ng 

Regula�ons. 

The detailed terms of reference of Nomina�on and 

Remunera�on commi�ee have been placed on the Company's 

website at www.jtlinfra.com

The terms of reference of the Commi�ee broadly includes the 

determina�on of remunera�on packages of the Execu�ve 

Directors including remunera�on policy, pension rights and 

any compensa�on payment or stock op�ons and to approve 

the payment of managerial remunera�on up to the limits 

specified under the Act and the SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons. 

MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

During the financial year 2019-20, the Nomina�on and 

Remunera�on Commi�ee met two �mes viz. on 18th May 

2019 and 12th  February 2020.

The Company Secretary acted as the Secretary to the 

Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee.

Composi�on of Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee and a�endance record of members for the financial year 2019-20:

Name of Director   Category    Posi�on  No. of Mee�ngs
            a�ended
Ms. Preet Kamal Kaur Bha�a Non-Execu�ve Independent Director Chairperson  2/2
Mr. Bhupinder Nayyar  Non-Execu�ve Independent Director Member 2/2
Mr. Mithan Lal Singla  Non-Execu�ve & Non-Independent Director Member 2/2
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NOMINATION & REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company while deciding the remunera�on package of the 

Senior Management Execu�ves takes following points in to 

considera�on:

1.  Responsibili�es and performance of the Senior 

Management Execu�ves.

2.  Present Employment Scenario.

3.  Remunera�on package of the industry to which Company 

belongs to and that of other Industries.

The salient features of the Nomina�on and Remunera�on 

policy have been covered under separate sec�on as Annexure 

to the Directors Report.

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Stakeholders Rela�onship Commi�ee (“SRC”) of the Company 

is cons�tuted in compliance with the requirements of the 

Provisions of Regula�on 20 of the Lis�ng Regula�ons, read with 

Part D of Schedule II and Sec�on 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The terms of reference of the SRC, inter-alia, includes the 

following:

1. Consider & resolve the grievances of security holders of the 

Company, including complaints related to transfer/ 

transmission of securi�es, non-receipt of annual report/ 

declared dividends/no�ces/balance sheet, issue of new/ 

duplicate cer�ficates, general mee�ngs etc.

2. Monitor and Reviewing of investors complaints and take 

necessary steps for redressal thereof;

3. To perform all func�ons rela�ng to the interest of the 

Stakeholders of the Company as may be required by the 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made 

thereunder, Lis�ng Agreements and the guidelines issued 

by SEBI or any other regulatory authority.

MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

During the financial year 2019-20, the Stakeholders' 

Rela�onship Commi�ee met on 14th October, 2019

The Company Secretary acted as the Secretary to the 

Stakeholders' Rela�onship Commi�ee.

Name of Director   Category    Posi�on  No. of Mee�ngs
           a�ended
Ms. Preet Kamal Kaur Bha�a Non-Execu�ve Independent Director Chairperson 1/1
Mr. Bhupinder Nayyar  Non-Execu�ve Independent Director Member 1/1
Mr. Mithan Lal Singla  Non-Execu�ve & Non-Independent Director Member 1/1
Mr. Rakesh Garg*   Execu�ve Director   Member -

Composi�on of Stakeholders' Rela�onship Commi�ee and a�endance record of members for the financial year 2019-20:

* Mr. Rakesh Garg was appointed as commi�ee member w.e.f. 30th June, 2019

Preet Kamal Kaur Bha�a, Chairman of the Stakeholders' 

Rela�onship Commi�ee, was present at the annual general 

mee�ng of the Company held on 30th September 2019, to 

answer shareholders' queries.

The Commi�ee expressed its sa�sfac�on on the overall status 

of compliance and ac�ons taken on various investor-related 

ma�ers. 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE (CSR 

COMMITTEE)

In line with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the 

Company has framed its Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 

policy for development of programmers and projects for the 

benefit of weaker sec�ons of the society and to promote the 

educa�on within the local limits and the same has been 

approved by Corporate Social Responsibility Commi�ee (CSR 

Commi�ee) and the Board of Directors of the Company. The 

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) policy of the Company 

provides a road map for its CSR ac�vi�es.

During the financial year 2019-20, the CSR Commi�ee met only 

once on 14th October, 2019
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15. To review the func�oning of the whistle blower 

mechanism;

MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

During the financial year 2019-20, the Audit Commi�ee met 

four �mes viz. on 18th May 2019, 29th July 2019, 9th 

November 2019 and 12th February 2020. The mee�ngs were 

scheduled well in advance and not more than one hundred and 

twenty days elapsed between any two mee�ngs. In addi�on to 

the members of the Audit Commi�ee, these mee�ngs were 

a�ended by the heads of finance, internal audit func�ons and 

the statutory auditors of the Company and those execu�ves 

who were considered necessary for providing inputs to the 

Commi�ee. 

The Company Secretary acted as the Secretary to the Audit 

Commi�ee.

Composi�on of Audit Commi�ee and a�endance record of members for the financial year 2019-20:

Name of director   Category   Posi�on   No. of Mee�ngs a�ended
Ms. Preet Kamal Kaur Bha�a Non-Execu�ve Independent  Director Chairperson 4/4
Mr. Bhupinder Nayyar  Non-Execu�ve Independent  Director Member  4/4
Mr. Vijay Singla*   Execu�ve Director  Member   4/4
Mr. Rakesh Garg**  Execu�ve Director  Member   -
Mr. Sukhdev Raj Sharma*** Non-Execu�ve Independent  Director Member  -

* Mr. Vijay Singla  ceased to be member of the commi�ee w.e.f. 18th May, 2020
** Mr. Rakesh Garg was appointed as member of the commi�ee w.e.f. 18th May, 2020
*** Mr. Sukhdev Raj Sharma was appointed as member of the commi�ee w.e.f 30th June.2020

Presently, Ms. Preet Kamal Kaur Bha�a, Chartered Accountant 

is the Chairman who has relevant accounts and Finance related 

exper�se as well as qualifica�on. Mr. Bhupinder Nayyar, Mr. 

Sukhdev Raj Sharma and Mr. Rakesh Garg are other three 

members. All of them are having knowledge and exper�se in 
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in line with the provisions of the SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons, as 

amended, the terms of reference of the Commi�ee were 

revised by the Board. The revised terms of reference are in 

accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI Lis�ng 

Regula�ons. 

The detailed terms of reference of Nomina�on and 

Remunera�on commi�ee have been placed on the Company's 

website at www.jtlinfra.com

The terms of reference of the Commi�ee broadly includes the 

determina�on of remunera�on packages of the Execu�ve 

Directors including remunera�on policy, pension rights and 

any compensa�on payment or stock op�ons and to approve 

the payment of managerial remunera�on up to the limits 

specified under the Act and the SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons. 

MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

During the financial year 2019-20, the Nomina�on and 

Remunera�on Commi�ee met two �mes viz. on 18th May 
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Composi�on of Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee and a�endance record of members for the financial year 2019-20:

Name of Director   Category    Posi�on  No. of Mee�ngs
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NOMINATION & REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company while deciding the remunera�on package of the 

Senior Management Execu�ves takes following points in to 

considera�on:

1.  Responsibili�es and performance of the Senior 

Management Execu�ves.

2.  Present Employment Scenario.

3.  Remunera�on package of the industry to which Company 

belongs to and that of other Industries.

The salient features of the Nomina�on and Remunera�on 

policy have been covered under separate sec�on as Annexure 

to the Directors Report.

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Stakeholders Rela�onship Commi�ee (“SRC”) of the Company 

is cons�tuted in compliance with the requirements of the 

Provisions of Regula�on 20 of the Lis�ng Regula�ons, read with 

Part D of Schedule II and Sec�on 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The terms of reference of the SRC, inter-alia, includes the 

following:

1. Consider & resolve the grievances of security holders of the 

Company, including complaints related to transfer/ 

transmission of securi�es, non-receipt of annual report/ 

declared dividends/no�ces/balance sheet, issue of new/ 

duplicate cer�ficates, general mee�ngs etc.

2. Monitor and Reviewing of investors complaints and take 

necessary steps for redressal thereof;

3. To perform all func�ons rela�ng to the interest of the 

Stakeholders of the Company as may be required by the 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made 

thereunder, Lis�ng Agreements and the guidelines issued 

by SEBI or any other regulatory authority.

MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

During the financial year 2019-20, the Stakeholders' 

Rela�onship Commi�ee met on 14th October, 2019

The Company Secretary acted as the Secretary to the 

Stakeholders' Rela�onship Commi�ee.

Name of Director   Category    Posi�on  No. of Mee�ngs
           a�ended
Ms. Preet Kamal Kaur Bha�a Non-Execu�ve Independent Director Chairperson 1/1
Mr. Bhupinder Nayyar  Non-Execu�ve Independent Director Member 1/1
Mr. Mithan Lal Singla  Non-Execu�ve & Non-Independent Director Member 1/1
Mr. Rakesh Garg*   Execu�ve Director   Member -

Composi�on of Stakeholders' Rela�onship Commi�ee and a�endance record of members for the financial year 2019-20:

* Mr. Rakesh Garg was appointed as commi�ee member w.e.f. 30th June, 2019

Preet Kamal Kaur Bha�a, Chairman of the Stakeholders' 

Rela�onship Commi�ee, was present at the annual general 

mee�ng of the Company held on 30th September 2019, to 

answer shareholders' queries.

The Commi�ee expressed its sa�sfac�on on the overall status 

of compliance and ac�ons taken on various investor-related 

ma�ers. 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE (CSR 

COMMITTEE)

In line with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the 

Company has framed its Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 

policy for development of programmers and projects for the 

benefit of weaker sec�ons of the society and to promote the 

educa�on within the local limits and the same has been 

approved by Corporate Social Responsibility Commi�ee (CSR 

Commi�ee) and the Board of Directors of the Company. The 

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) policy of the Company 

provides a road map for its CSR ac�vi�es.

During the financial year 2019-20, the CSR Commi�ee met only 

once on 14th October, 2019
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Name of Director   Category   Posi�on  No. of Mee�ngs
          a�ended 
Ms. Preet Kamal Kaur Bha�a Non-Execu�ve & Independent Director Chairperson 1/1
Mr. Mithan Lal Singla  Non-Execu�ve & Non-Independent Director Member  1/1
Mr. Vijay Singla*   Execu�ve Director  Member  1/1

Composi�on of CSR Commi�ee and a�endance record of members for the financial year 2019-20:

* Mr. Vijay Singla ceased to be commi�ee member w.e.f. 13th May, 2020 and Mr. Rakesh Garg, whole �me director was appointed as member 
of the commi�ee w.e.f 13th May, 2020 

TERMS OF REFERENCE 

Terms of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Commi�ee are 

as per the provisions of sec�on 135 of the Act and SEBI Lis�ng 

Regula�ons which inter alia include formula�on & 

recommenda�on to  the  Board,  a  CSR Pol icy  and 

recommenda�on on the amount of expenditure to be incurred 

on the various CSR ac�vi�es and monitoring of the CSR Policy 

of the Company. The detailed CSR policy of the Company is also 

available on the website of the Company at www.jtlinfra.com.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS' MEETING

In compliance with Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013 

and regula�on 25(3) of the SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons, the 

independent directors held their separate mee�ng on 12th 

February 2020, without the a�endance of non-independent 

directors and members of the Management, to inter alia 

discuss the following:

i) No�ng of the report of Performance Evalua�on for 2019-

20;

ii) Review the performance of non-independent directors 

and the Board as a whole;

iii) Assess the quality, quan�ty and �meliness of flow of 

informa�on between the Company Manage-ment and the 

Board that is necessary for the Board to effec�vely and 

reasonably perform their du�es;

iv) No�ng and review of informal mee�ng with Senior 

Management Personnel.

All independent directors were present at the mee�ng.

The independent directors present elected Preet Kamal Kaur 

Bha�a as Chairperson for the mee�ng, delibera-ted on the 

above and expressed their sa�sfac�on on each of the ma�ers.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION CRITERIA FOR INDEPENDENT 

DIRECTORS

Performance of each of the Indepen-dent Directors are 

evaluated every year by the en�re Board with respect to 

various factors like personal traits which include business 

understanding, communicate skills, ability to exercise 

objec�ve judgement in the best interests of the Company and 

on specific criteria which include commitment, guidance to 

Management, deployment of knowledge & exper�se, 

management of rela�onship with various stake-holders, 

independence of behaviour and judgment, maintenance of 

confiden�ality and contribu�on to corporate governance 

prac�ces within the Company.

MAXIMUM TENURE OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The maximum tenure of independent directors is in 

accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 

and Regula�on 25(2) of the SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons.

FORMAL LETTER OF APPOINTMENT TO INDEPENDENT 

DIRECTORS

The Company issues a formal le�er of appointment to 

independent directors in the manner as provided in the 

Companies Act, 2013. As per regula�on 46(2) of the SEBI Lis�ng 

Regula�ons, the terms and condi�ons of appointment of 

independent directors are placed on the Company's website at
 h�ps://www.jtlinfra.com/

D I R EC TO R S H I P S  A N D  M E M B E R S H I P S  O F  B O A R D 

COMMITTEES

Number of directorships/commi�ee posi�ons of directors as 

on 31st March 2020.
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Name of director     Directorships   Commi�ee posi�ons in listed and    
          unlisted public limited companies
    In equity  In unlisted In private  As Member  As Chairman
    listed   public limited  limited  (including as 
    companies companies  companies Chairman) 
Mr. Mithan Lal Singla  1  1  1  3  -
Mr. Madan Mohan Singla  1  2  1  -  -
Mr. Vijay Singla*   1  2  -  2  -
Mr. Rakesh Garg   1  1  2  -  -
Ms. Preet Kamal Kaur Bha�a 1  1  -  5  5
Mr. Bhupinder Nayyar  1  1  1  4  -
Mr. Sukhdev Raj Sharma** 1  -  -  -  -

NOTES:

Ÿ None of the directors holds office as a director, including as 

alternate director, in more than twenty companies at the 

same �me. None of them has directorships in more than 

ten public companies. For reckoning the limit of public 

companies, directorships of private companies that are 

either holding or subsidiary company of a public company 

are included and directorships in dormant companies are 

excluded. 

Ÿ As per declara�ons received, none of the directors serves 

as an independent director in more than seven equity listed 

companies. Further, the Managing Director in the Company 

does not serve as an independent director in more than 

three equity listed companies and in fact not even in a 

single en�ty. 

Ÿ None of the directors was a member in more than ten 

commi�ees, nor a chairman in more than five commi�ees 

across all companies in which he was a director. 

Ÿ For the purpose of considering the limit of the commi�ees 

on which a director can serve, all public limited companies, 

whether listed or not, have been included and all other 

companies including private limited companies, foreign 

companies and companies under sec�on 8 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 have been excluded. Only audit 

commi�ee and stakeholders' rela�onship commi�ee are 

considered for the purpose of reckoning commi�ee 

posi�ons.

Ÿ None of the Directors of the Company are Directors in any 

other Listed Company except the JTL Infra Limited, the 

Company itself, hence the separate disclosure regarding 

the same is not applicable.

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMMES 

In compliance with the requirements of the SEBI (Lis�ng 

Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirement) Regula�ons, 2015, 

the Company has put in place a familiariza�on programme for 

the Independent Directors to familiarize them with their role, 

rights and responsibility as Directors, the working of the 

Company, nature of the industry in which the Company 

operates business model, etc.

Further, at the �me of appointment of independent director, 

the Company issues a formal le�er of appointment outlining 

his/her role,  func�on, du�es and responsibi l i�es. 

Presenta�ons are also made at the Board mee�ngs which 

facilitate them to clearly understand the business of the 

Company and the environment in which the Company 

operates industry and regulatory updates, strategy, finance, 

risk management framework.

With a view to familiarizing the independent directors with the 

Company's opera�ons, as required under regula�on 25(7) of 

the SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons, the Company has held 

familiariza�on program for the independent directors. The 

details of familiariza�on program are placed on the Company's 

website at www.jtlinfra.com

CORE SKILL / EXPERTISE / COMPETENCIES 

As s�pulated under Schedule V of the SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons, 

core skills/exper�se/competencies, as required in the context 

of the business and sector for it to func�on effec�vely and 

those actually available with the Board have been iden�fied by 

the Board of Directors. 

*ceased to be director with effect from 30th May, 2020
**appointed as a non-execu�ve independent director with effect from 30th June, 2020
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Name of Director   Category   Posi�on  No. of Mee�ngs
          a�ended 
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Companies Act, 2013 have been excluded. Only audit 

commi�ee and stakeholders' rela�onship commi�ee are 

considered for the purpose of reckoning commi�ee 

posi�ons.

Ÿ None of the Directors of the Company are Directors in any 

other Listed Company except the JTL Infra Limited, the 

Company itself, hence the separate disclosure regarding 

the same is not applicable.

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMMES 

In compliance with the requirements of the SEBI (Lis�ng 

Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirement) Regula�ons, 2015, 

the Company has put in place a familiariza�on programme for 

the Independent Directors to familiarize them with their role, 

rights and responsibility as Directors, the working of the 

Company, nature of the industry in which the Company 

operates business model, etc.

Further, at the �me of appointment of independent director, 

the Company issues a formal le�er of appointment outlining 

his/her role,  func�on, du�es and responsibi l i�es. 

Presenta�ons are also made at the Board mee�ngs which 

facilitate them to clearly understand the business of the 

Company and the environment in which the Company 

operates industry and regulatory updates, strategy, finance, 

risk management framework.

With a view to familiarizing the independent directors with the 

Company's opera�ons, as required under regula�on 25(7) of 

the SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons, the Company has held 

familiariza�on program for the independent directors. The 

details of familiariza�on program are placed on the Company's 

website at www.jtlinfra.com

CORE SKILL / EXPERTISE / COMPETENCIES 

As s�pulated under Schedule V of the SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons, 

core skills/exper�se/competencies, as required in the context 

of the business and sector for it to func�on effec�vely and 

those actually available with the Board have been iden�fied by 

the Board of Directors. 

*ceased to be director with effect from 30th May, 2020
**appointed as a non-execu�ve independent director with effect from 30th June, 2020
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Name of the                    Core skills/exper�se/competencies of the Directors
Director and   Leadership Technology &  Strategic  Financial,  Industry  Global   
Designa�on    Opera�onal  Planning Regulatory,  Experience, Business
     experience   Legal and Risk  Research & 
         Management Development  
Mr. Mithan Lal Singla √  √  √  √  √  √
Non Execu�ve Director 
Mr. Madan Mohan Singla √  √  √  √  √  √
Execu�ve Director
Mr. Vijay Singla*  √  √  √  √  √  √
Execu�ve Director 
Mr. Rakesh Garg  √  √  √  √  √  √
Execu�ve Director 
Ms. Preet Kamal Kaur  √  √  √  √  √  √
Bha�a- Non Execu�ve 
Independent Director 
Mr. Bhupinder Nayyar √  √  √  √  √  √
Non Execu�ve 
Independent Director 
Mr. Sukhdev Raj Sharma √  √  √  √  √  √
Non Execu�ve 
Independent Director

CERTIFICATE FROM PRACTISING COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has received a cer�ficate from S V Associates, 

Company Secretaries, Prac�cing Company Secretaries to the 

effect that none of the directors on the Board of the Company 

has been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or 

con�nuing as directors of the Company by the Ministry of 

Corporate Affairs or any other statutory authority. The same 

forms part of this report.

REVIEW OF LEGAL COMPLIANCE REPORTS

The Board periodically reviews compliance reports with 

respect to the various laws applicable to the Company, as 

prepared and placed before it by the Management.

CODE OF CONDUCT

Regula�on 17(5) of the SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons requires listed 

companies to lay down a code of conduct for its directors and 

senior management, incorpora�ng du�es of directors as laid 

down in the Companies Act, 2013.

The Board has already adopted a Code of Conduct for all 

Directors and Senior Management of the Company and the 

same has been placed on the Company's website at 

h�ps://www.jtlinfra.com/.

All Directors and Senior Management personnel have affirmed 

compliance with the Code for 2019-20. A declara�on to this 

effect in terms of the Regula�on 17(5) of the SEBI Lis�ng 

Regula�ons, signed by the Managing Director is given in this 

Annual Report.

CODE FOR PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING PRACTICES

In compliance with SEBI's Regula�ons on preven�on of insider 

trading, the Company has ins�tuted a comprehensive Code of 

Conduct for preven�on of insider trading. The Code lays down 

guidelines and procedures to be followed and disclosures to be 

made, by Designated Persons, while dealing with shares of the 

Company and cau�oning all concerned of the consequences of 

viola�ons.

DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

The Accoun�ng treatment in the prepara�on of Financial 

Statements is in line with that prescribed by the Indian 

Accoun�ng Standards (IND-AS) under specified Sec�ons of 

Companies Act, 2013. Suitable disclosures have been made in 

the financial statements, together with the Management's 

explana�on in the event of any treatment being different from 

that prescribed in the Ind AS.

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY/VIGIL MECHANISM

Pursuant to sec�on 177(9) of Companies Act, 2013, Regula�on 

www.jtlinfra.com
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22 of the SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons and SEBI (Prohibi�on of 

Insider Trading) Regula�ons, 2015, as amended, the Board has 

framed and adopted the Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil 

mechanism.

The Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil mechanism provides a 

mechanism for the director/employee to report without fear 

of vic�miza�on, any unethical behavior, suspected or actual 

fraud, viola�on of the Code of Conduct etc. viola�ons and now 

instances of leak of Unpublished Price Sensi�ve Informa�on, 

which are detrimental to the organiza�on's interest. The 

mechanism protects whistle blower from any kind of 

discrimina�on, harassment, vic�miza�on or any other unfair 

employment prac�ce. The Company affirms that no employee 

has been denied access to the Audit Commi�ee. The directors 

in all cases and employees in appropriate or excep�onal cases 

will have direct access to the Chairman of the Audit 

Commi�ee. The said Policy is placed on the Company's website 

at h�ps://www.jtlinfra.com

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

All related party transac�ons (RPTs) which were entered into 

by the Company during the financial year 2019-20, were on 

arms' length basis and in the ordinary course of business and 

did not a�ract provisions of sec�on 188 of the Companies Act, 

2013 and were also not material RPTs as per regula�on 23 of 

the SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons.

During the financial year 2019-20, as required under sec�on 

177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and regula�on 23 of the SEBI 

Lis�ng Regula�ons, all RPTs were placed before the Audit 

Commi�ee for approval. 

A statement showing the disclosure of transac�ons with 

related par�es as required under Ind AS 24 is set out separately 

in this Annual Report. 

There were no material transac�ons entered into with related 

par�es, during the financial year 2019-20, which may have had 

any poten�al conflict with the interests of the Company. The 

Policy on materiality of RPTs and also on dealing with RPTs 

pursuant to SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons has been placed on the 

Company's website at www.jtlinfra.com

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This is given as a separate chapter in the Annual Report.

DISCLOSURE OF MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to regula�on 26(5) of the SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons, the 

Senior Management has made periodical disclosures to the 

Board rela�ng to all material financial and commercial 

transac�ons, where they had (or were deemed to have had) 

personal interest that might have been in poten�al conflict 

with the interest of the Company.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

Pecuniary rela�onship/transac�on with non-execu�ve 

directors During the financial year 2019-20, there was no 

pecuniary rela�onship/transac�on with any non-execu�ve 

directors of the Company.

The register of contracts is maintained by the Company 

pursuant to sec�on 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.The 

register is signed by all the directors present at the respec�ve 

Board mee�ngs.

Criteria of making payments to non-execu�ve directors Non-

execu�ve directors of the Company play a crucial role in the 

independent func�oning of the Board.

They bring in an external perspec�ve to decision-making and 

provide leadership & strategic guidance while maintaining 

objec�ve judgment. They also oversee the corporate 

governance framework of the Company.

As stated earlier, the Remunera�on Policy, inter alia, disclosing 

the criteria of making payments to directors, key managerial 

personnel and employees is placed on the Company's website 

at www.jtlinfra.com

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Non-execu�ve directors are paid si�ng fees only and no 

commission is paid to them as earlier stated in this Report.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the financial year 2019-20, the Company paid 

remunera�on to Madan Mohan Singla, Managing Director, 

Vijay Singla, Whole Time Director and Rakesh Garg, Whole 

Time Director of the Company as provided in detail in Form 

MGT-9, i.e. extract of the Annual Return available on the 

Company's website at www.jtlinfra.com

The Execu�ve Directors are not en�tled to any superannua�on 

benefits, which forms part of the perquisites allowed to them. 

No pension is paid by the Company.

During the financial year 2019-20, none of the directors was 

paid any performance-linked incen�ve. The Company has not 

issued any stock op�ons.

In 2019-20, the Company did not advance any loans to any of 



JTL INFRA LIMITED

44

Name of the                    Core skills/exper�se/competencies of the Directors
Director and   Leadership Technology &  Strategic  Financial,  Industry  Global   
Designa�on    Opera�onal  Planning Regulatory,  Experience, Business
     experience   Legal and Risk  Research & 
         Management Development  
Mr. Mithan Lal Singla √  √  √  √  √  √
Non Execu�ve Director 
Mr. Madan Mohan Singla √  √  √  √  √  √
Execu�ve Director
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Non Execu�ve 
Independent Director 
Mr. Sukhdev Raj Sharma √  √  √  √  √  √
Non Execu�ve 
Independent Director

CERTIFICATE FROM PRACTISING COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has received a cer�ficate from S V Associates, 

Company Secretaries, Prac�cing Company Secretaries to the 

effect that none of the directors on the Board of the Company 

has been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or 

con�nuing as directors of the Company by the Ministry of 

Corporate Affairs or any other statutory authority. The same 

forms part of this report.

REVIEW OF LEGAL COMPLIANCE REPORTS

The Board periodically reviews compliance reports with 

respect to the various laws applicable to the Company, as 

prepared and placed before it by the Management.

CODE OF CONDUCT

Regula�on 17(5) of the SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons requires listed 

companies to lay down a code of conduct for its directors and 

senior management, incorpora�ng du�es of directors as laid 

down in the Companies Act, 2013.

The Board has already adopted a Code of Conduct for all 

Directors and Senior Management of the Company and the 

same has been placed on the Company's website at 

h�ps://www.jtlinfra.com/.

All Directors and Senior Management personnel have affirmed 

compliance with the Code for 2019-20. A declara�on to this 

effect in terms of the Regula�on 17(5) of the SEBI Lis�ng 

Regula�ons, signed by the Managing Director is given in this 

Annual Report.

CODE FOR PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING PRACTICES

In compliance with SEBI's Regula�ons on preven�on of insider 

trading, the Company has ins�tuted a comprehensive Code of 

Conduct for preven�on of insider trading. The Code lays down 

guidelines and procedures to be followed and disclosures to be 

made, by Designated Persons, while dealing with shares of the 

Company and cau�oning all concerned of the consequences of 

viola�ons.

DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

The Accoun�ng treatment in the prepara�on of Financial 

Statements is in line with that prescribed by the Indian 

Accoun�ng Standards (IND-AS) under specified Sec�ons of 

Companies Act, 2013. Suitable disclosures have been made in 

the financial statements, together with the Management's 

explana�on in the event of any treatment being different from 

that prescribed in the Ind AS.

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY/VIGIL MECHANISM
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22 of the SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons and SEBI (Prohibi�on of 

Insider Trading) Regula�ons, 2015, as amended, the Board has 

framed and adopted the Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil 

mechanism.

The Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil mechanism provides a 

mechanism for the director/employee to report without fear 

of vic�miza�on, any unethical behavior, suspected or actual 

fraud, viola�on of the Code of Conduct etc. viola�ons and now 

instances of leak of Unpublished Price Sensi�ve Informa�on, 

which are detrimental to the organiza�on's interest. The 

mechanism protects whistle blower from any kind of 

discrimina�on, harassment, vic�miza�on or any other unfair 

employment prac�ce. The Company affirms that no employee 

has been denied access to the Audit Commi�ee. The directors 

in all cases and employees in appropriate or excep�onal cases 

will have direct access to the Chairman of the Audit 

Commi�ee. The said Policy is placed on the Company's website 

at h�ps://www.jtlinfra.com

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

All related party transac�ons (RPTs) which were entered into 

by the Company during the financial year 2019-20, were on 

arms' length basis and in the ordinary course of business and 

did not a�ract provisions of sec�on 188 of the Companies Act, 

2013 and were also not material RPTs as per regula�on 23 of 

the SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons.

During the financial year 2019-20, as required under sec�on 

177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and regula�on 23 of the SEBI 

Lis�ng Regula�ons, all RPTs were placed before the Audit 

Commi�ee for approval. 

A statement showing the disclosure of transac�ons with 

related par�es as required under Ind AS 24 is set out separately 
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There were no material transac�ons entered into with related 

par�es, during the financial year 2019-20, which may have had 

any poten�al conflict with the interests of the Company. The 

Policy on materiality of RPTs and also on dealing with RPTs 

pursuant to SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons has been placed on the 

Company's website at www.jtlinfra.com

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This is given as a separate chapter in the Annual Report.

DISCLOSURE OF MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to regula�on 26(5) of the SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons, the 

Senior Management has made periodical disclosures to the 

Board rela�ng to all material financial and commercial 

transac�ons, where they had (or were deemed to have had) 

personal interest that might have been in poten�al conflict 

with the interest of the Company.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

Pecuniary rela�onship/transac�on with non-execu�ve 

directors During the financial year 2019-20, there was no 

pecuniary rela�onship/transac�on with any non-execu�ve 

directors of the Company.

The register of contracts is maintained by the Company 

pursuant to sec�on 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.The 

register is signed by all the directors present at the respec�ve 

Board mee�ngs.

Criteria of making payments to non-execu�ve directors Non-

execu�ve directors of the Company play a crucial role in the 

independent func�oning of the Board.

They bring in an external perspec�ve to decision-making and 

provide leadership & strategic guidance while maintaining 

objec�ve judgment. They also oversee the corporate 

governance framework of the Company.

As stated earlier, the Remunera�on Policy, inter alia, disclosing 

the criteria of making payments to directors, key managerial 

personnel and employees is placed on the Company's website 

at www.jtlinfra.com

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Non-execu�ve directors are paid si�ng fees only and no 

commission is paid to them as earlier stated in this Report.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the financial year 2019-20, the Company paid 

remunera�on to Madan Mohan Singla, Managing Director, 

Vijay Singla, Whole Time Director and Rakesh Garg, Whole 

Time Director of the Company as provided in detail in Form 

MGT-9, i.e. extract of the Annual Return available on the 

Company's website at www.jtlinfra.com

The Execu�ve Directors are not en�tled to any superannua�on 

benefits, which forms part of the perquisites allowed to them. 

No pension is paid by the Company.

During the financial year 2019-20, none of the directors was 

paid any performance-linked incen�ve. The Company has not 

issued any stock op�ons.

In 2019-20, the Company did not advance any loans to any of 
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the non-execu�ve directors and/or Managing Director. Details 

of remunera�on paid/payable to directors for the financial 

year 2019-20 are provided in Form MGT-9, i.e. extract of the 

Annual Return available on Company's website at 

www.jtlinfra.com.

SHAREHOLDING OF DIRECTORS

Informa�on on shares held by directors in the Company as on 

31st March 2020 is provided in Form MGT-9 i.e. extract of the 

Annual Return avai lable on company's website at 

www.jtlinfra.com.

None of the Non-Execu�ve Directors holds Conver�ble 

Instruments in the Company.

COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Compliance Officer

Mr. Mohinder Singh

E-mail id :  finance@jagan.in 
Tel. :  0172-4668000

INVESTORS' COMPLAINTS ATTENDED AND RESOLVED DURING 2019-20

Investors' complaints                                                    A�ended/resolved during 2019-20
Pending at the beginning of the year      Nil
Received during the year        Nil
Disposed of during the year       Nil
Remaining unresolved at the end of the year     Nil

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

The Company promptly discloses informa�on on material 

corporate developments and other events as required under 

Lis�ng Regula�ons. Such �mely disclosures are an indicator of 

the Company's good corporate governance prac�ces. 

(a) Publica�on of results

The approved quarterly, half yearly and annual financial results 

are forthwith sent to the Stock Exchanges where the shares are 

listed and are displayed on the Company's website at 

www.jtlinfra.com and are generally published in Financial 

Express (English) and Jansa�a (Hindi), within forty eight hours 

of approval thereof.

(b) Website and News Releases:

The Company's website at www.jtlinfra.com displays the 

informa�on, prescribed to be made available on website of the 

Company under the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Lis�ng 

Regula�ons, which inter alia includes - details of business of 

the Company, terms & condi�ons of independent directors, 

composi�on of board commi�ees, policies  adopted by the 

Company, shareholding pa�ern, presenta�ons made to the 

Analysts / Ins�tu�onal investors, announcements / disclosures 

made by the Company, no�ces published in the newspapers, 

Annual Reports, quarterly & Annual Financial results, contact 

for investor grievances, etc.

(c) Stock Exchange

Company makes �mely disclosures of necessary informa�on to 

BSE& MSEI where Company's shares are listed, in terms of the 

SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons and other Rules and regula�ons issued 

by SEBI, electronically through at its web-based portals - BSE 

Lis�ng center.

A.  Details of three last three Annual General Mee�ng (AGM) are as under: 

AGM/ EGM Day, Date & Time  Venue     No. of Special 
      Business passed
28th A.G.M Monday, 30th September, 2019 The Chandigarh Club (Near CM House), Sector 1,      6 
  at 09:30 A.M.  Chandigarh, 160001   
27th A.G.M Saturday, 29th September, 2018 The Chandigarh Club (Near CM House), Sector 1, 5 
  at 09:30 A.M.  Chandigarh, 160001
26th A.G.M Thursday,28th September, 2017 Fern Residency, Plot Number 28/8, Industrial Area,   4
  at 09:00 A.M.  Phase-2,Chandigarh

INFORMATION ON GENERAL BODY MEETINGS AND DETAILS OF SPECIAL RESOLUTION (S) PASSED

www.jtlinfra.com
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B.   Postal Ballot

During the financial year 2019-20, no resolu�on was passed 

through Postal Ballot. 

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

There are no transac�ons of material nature other than 

reported under "Related Party Disclosures" that have been 

entered into by the Company with the promoters, directors, 

their rela�ves and the management and in any Company in 

which they are interested and that may have poten�al conflict 

with the interest of the Company.

All details rela�ng to financial and commercial transac�ons 

where Directors may have a pecuniary interest are provided to 

the Board and the interested Directors neither par�cipate in 

the discussion, nor do they vote on such ma�ers. The Company 

has formulated a policy on dealing with Related Party 

Transac�ons and determining material subsidiaries. The policy 

is available on the website of the Company at www.jtlinfra.com

DETAILS OF CAPITAL MARKET NON-COMPLIANCE, IF ANY

There was no non-compliance by the Company of any legal 

requirements; nor has there been any penalty/stricture 

imposed on the Company by any stock exchange, SEBI or any 

statutory authority on any ma�er related to capital markets 

during the last three years.

DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT 

WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL) 

ACT, 2013

The disclosure as required under Sexual Harassment of 

Women at Workplace (Preven�on, Prohibi�on and Redressal) 

Act, 2013 is given in the Directors' Report of the Company.

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

The Managing Director and the CFO have cer�fied to the Board 

with regard to the financial statements and other ma�ers as 

required under regula�on 17(8) read with Part B of Schedule II 

to the SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons.

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

This chapter, read together with the informa�on given in the 

Directors' Report & the chapters on Management Discussion 

and Analysis and General Shareholder Informa�on, cons�tute 

the compliance report on Corporate Governance during 2019-

20. The Company has been regularly forwarding the quarterly 

compliance report to the Stock exchanges as required under 

regula�on 27(2) of the SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

Suresh K. Aggarwal & Co., Chartered Accountants are the 

statutory auditors of the Company. Total fees paid by the 

Company on a consolidated basis to the auditors including all 

en��es in their network firm/en�ty of which they are a part is 

Rupees one lakh only.

AUDITORS' CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has obtained the cer�ficate from its statutory 

auditors regarding compliance with the provisions rela�ng to 

corporate governance laid down in Part E of Schedule V to the 

SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons. This cer�ficate is annexed to the 

Directors' Report and will be sent to the stock exchanges, along 

with the Annual Report to be filed by the Company.

COMPLIANCE OF MANDATORY AND DISCRETIONARY 

REQUIREMENTS

Mandatory

The Company has complied with the mandatory requirements 

of the SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons.

Discre�onary

The Company has also complied with the discre�onary 

requirements as under:

1) THE BOARD

The non-execu�ve chairperson is en�tled to maintain a 

chairperson's office at the expense of the Company and is also 

allowed reimbursement of expenses incurred in performance 

of his du�es.

2) SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

A half-yearly declara�on of financial performance including 

summary of significant events in the preceding six months has 

not been sent to each household of shareholders.

3) MODIFIED OPINION(S) IN AUDIT REPORT

The Company confirms that its financial statements are with 

unmodified audit opinion.

4) REPORTING OF INTERNAL AUDITOR

The Internal Auditor reports directly to the Audit Commi�ee.

GENERAL INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDER 

The Company is registered in the Union Territory Chandigarh, 

India. The Corporate Iden�fica�on Number (CIN) allo�ed to 

the Company by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs is 

L27106CH1991PLC011536
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the non-execu�ve directors and/or Managing Director. Details 

of remunera�on paid/payable to directors for the financial 
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  at 09:30 A.M.  Chandigarh, 160001   
27th A.G.M Saturday, 29th September, 2018 The Chandigarh Club (Near CM House), Sector 1, 5 
  at 09:30 A.M.  Chandigarh, 160001
26th A.G.M Thursday,28th September, 2017 Fern Residency, Plot Number 28/8, Industrial Area,   4
  at 09:00 A.M.  Phase-2,Chandigarh

INFORMATION ON GENERAL BODY MEETINGS AND DETAILS OF SPECIAL RESOLUTION (S) PASSED
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B.   Postal Ballot

During the financial year 2019-20, no resolu�on was passed 

through Postal Ballot. 

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

There are no transac�ons of material nature other than 

reported under "Related Party Disclosures" that have been 

entered into by the Company with the promoters, directors, 

their rela�ves and the management and in any Company in 

which they are interested and that may have poten�al conflict 

with the interest of the Company.

All details rela�ng to financial and commercial transac�ons 

where Directors may have a pecuniary interest are provided to 

the Board and the interested Directors neither par�cipate in 

the discussion, nor do they vote on such ma�ers. The Company 

has formulated a policy on dealing with Related Party 

Transac�ons and determining material subsidiaries. The policy 

is available on the website of the Company at www.jtlinfra.com

DETAILS OF CAPITAL MARKET NON-COMPLIANCE, IF ANY

There was no non-compliance by the Company of any legal 

requirements; nor has there been any penalty/stricture 

imposed on the Company by any stock exchange, SEBI or any 

statutory authority on any ma�er related to capital markets 

during the last three years.

DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT 

WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL) 

ACT, 2013

The disclosure as required under Sexual Harassment of 

Women at Workplace (Preven�on, Prohibi�on and Redressal) 

Act, 2013 is given in the Directors' Report of the Company.

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

The Managing Director and the CFO have cer�fied to the Board 

with regard to the financial statements and other ma�ers as 

required under regula�on 17(8) read with Part B of Schedule II 

to the SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons.

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

This chapter, read together with the informa�on given in the 

Directors' Report & the chapters on Management Discussion 

and Analysis and General Shareholder Informa�on, cons�tute 

the compliance report on Corporate Governance during 2019-

20. The Company has been regularly forwarding the quarterly 

compliance report to the Stock exchanges as required under 

regula�on 27(2) of the SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

Suresh K. Aggarwal & Co., Chartered Accountants are the 

statutory auditors of the Company. Total fees paid by the 

Company on a consolidated basis to the auditors including all 

en��es in their network firm/en�ty of which they are a part is 

Rupees one lakh only.

AUDITORS' CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has obtained the cer�ficate from its statutory 

auditors regarding compliance with the provisions rela�ng to 

corporate governance laid down in Part E of Schedule V to the 

SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons. This cer�ficate is annexed to the 

Directors' Report and will be sent to the stock exchanges, along 

with the Annual Report to be filed by the Company.

COMPLIANCE OF MANDATORY AND DISCRETIONARY 

REQUIREMENTS

Mandatory

The Company has complied with the mandatory requirements 

of the SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons.

Discre�onary

The Company has also complied with the discre�onary 

requirements as under:

1) THE BOARD

The non-execu�ve chairperson is en�tled to maintain a 

chairperson's office at the expense of the Company and is also 

allowed reimbursement of expenses incurred in performance 

of his du�es.

2) SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

A half-yearly declara�on of financial performance including 

summary of significant events in the preceding six months has 

not been sent to each household of shareholders.

3) MODIFIED OPINION(S) IN AUDIT REPORT

The Company confirms that its financial statements are with 

unmodified audit opinion.

4) REPORTING OF INTERNAL AUDITOR

The Internal Auditor reports directly to the Audit Commi�ee.

GENERAL INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDER 

The Company is registered in the Union Territory Chandigarh, 

India. The Corporate Iden�fica�on Number (CIN) allo�ed to 

the Company by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs is 

L27106CH1991PLC011536
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Annual General Mee�ng (“AGM”) for the F.Y. 2019-2020:

Day and Date   Wednesday, September 30, 2020
Time    9:30 A.M.
Venue     The Company is conduc�ng mee�ng through VC / OAVM pursuant to the MCA Circular dated  
    May 5, 2020 and as such there is no requirement to have a venue for the AGM
Financial Year   The Company follows 1st April to 31st March as Financial year

REGISTRAR AND SHARE TRANSFER AGENTS

The Company has appointed Beetal Financial & Computer 

Services (P) Ltd. as its share transfer agent and accordingly, 

processing of share transfer / dematerializa�on / re-

materializa�on and allied ac�vi�es was out sourced to Beetal 

Financial & Computer Services (P) Ltd, New Delhi. 

Address:  Beetal House, 99, Madangir, Behind Local 
Shopping Centre, New Delhi 

Tel:  (91) -11-29961281-83

Fax:  (91) -11-29961284 

Email:   beetal@rediffmail.com

SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM

Share transfers received by the share transfer agent/Company 

are registered within 15 days from the date of receipt, provided 

the documents are complete in all respects. 

As per SEBI norms, efforts are underway to update Permanent 

Account Number (PAN) and bank account details of its 

concerned shareholder(s) and communica�ons have been 

sent by the Company to eligible shareholders in this regard. 

Members are requested to update these details with Beetal / 

Company at the earliest.

DATES OF BOOK CLOSURE 

The register of members and share transfer books of the 

Company will remain closed from Thursday, 24th September 

2020 to Wednesday, 30th September 2020 (Both days 

inclusive).

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors of the Company do not propose to 

declare any dividend for the financial year 2019-20.

UNCLAIMED DIVIDENDS

The Company does not have any unclaimed/unpaid dividend 

pending to be transferred to Investor Educa�on and Protec�on 

Fund (IEPF)

DEMAT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT/ UNCLAIMED SUSPENSE 

ACCOUNT 

The Company does not have any shares as unclaimed hence 

the requirement of DEMAT Suspense Account/Unclaimed 

Suspense Account is not applicable to the Company.

LISTING ON STOCK EXCHANGES

Shares of the Company are currently listed on following stock 

exchanges:

1. BSE Ltd. (BSE)

  1st Floor, New Trading Ring Rotunda Building J Tower, 

Dalal Street, Fort, Mumbai - 400001

2. Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Limited (MSEI)

  Vibgyor Towers, 4th floor, Plot No C 62, G - Block, Opp. 

Trident Hotel, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), 

Mumbai - 400098.

For the financial year 2020-21, the lis�ng fees payable to these 

stock exchanges have been paid in full.

DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES AND LIQUIDITY

As on 31st March, 2020, 1,05,27,060 shares (approx 100%) of 

the total equity share capital of the Company are held in 

dematerialized form with Na�onal Securi�es Depository 

Limited and Central Depository Services (India) Limited. 

Percentage of shares held in physical and dematerialized form 

as on 31st March, 2020 is:

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

Approval of audited annual results for year ending 31st March  April/May

Mailing of annual reports     August/September

Annual general mee�ng      September

Unaudited first quarter financial results    July/August

Unaudited second quarter financial results    October/November

Unaudited third quarter financial results    December/January
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STOCK CODE

BSE Scrip ID 534600

MSEI Scrip ID JTLINFRA

ISIN for Depositories INE 391J01016 
(NSDL and CDSL)  

MONTHLY SHARE PRICE MOVEMENT 

DURING 2019-20 AT BSE

Table below gives the monthly high and 

low prices and volumes of trading of 

Equity Shares of the Company at BSE 

Limited (BSE) for the financial year  

2019-20.

JTL INFRA LIMITED STOCK 

PERFORMANCE VS BSE SENSEX 

DURING 2019-20

Black: SENSEX | Blue: JTL

Par�culars of Shares       Number of Shares       % of Issued Capital
Shares held in dematerialized form in CDSL              17,30,324   16.31
Shares held in dematerialized form in NSDL      87,96,736  82.93
Shares held in Physical Form            80,370      0.76
Total Number of Shares       1,06,07,430                         100.00

BOMBAY STOCK EXCHANGE
Month High Low Volume (No.
   of Shares  
   Traded)
Apr-19 157.40 129.25 148370
May-19 140.00 116.50 42158
Jun-19 137.00 119.40 30616
Jul-19 126.90 95.20 80449
Aug-19 99.75 75.00 53011
Sep-19 98.00 71.70 88388
Oct-19 94.90 70.10 42312
Nov-19 119.75 77.70 324930
Dec-19 135.00 105.00 155785
Jan-20 144.00 116.40 120220
Feb-20 142.40 117.30 68501
Mar-20 121.85 68.85 25754

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2020

Distribu�on of shareholding of the equity shares of the company by size and ownership class as on 31st March, 2020 is as under:

(a)  Shareholding pa�ern by size:

Shareholding of Nominal Value of Rs. 10 No. of Shareholder %age of Total No. of Shares  % age of Total
UP   TO   5000    926 68.34 104040  1040400
5001   TO   10000    103 7.60 85139  851390
10001   TO   20000   104 7.68 155856  1558560
20001   TO   30000   49 3.62 121901  1219010
30001   TO   40000   34 2.51 123636  1236360
40001   TO   50000   27 1.99 123186  1231860
50001   TO  100000   39 2.88 276944  2769440
100001 AND ABOVE   73 5.39 9616728  96167280
Total     1355 100.00 10607430  106074300

(b)  Shareholding Pa�ern by ownership:

Category     No. of Shares held    Vo�ng Strength (% )
Promoters Holding    7631400  71.94
Non-Promoter Holding    2976030  28.06
Total      10607430                            100.00

OUTSTANDING CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS / ADRS / GDRS / 

WARRANTS

Out of total outstanding 12,00,000 warrants fully conver�ble 

into equity shares issued to promoters, promoter group and 

non-promoter, Company has issued 6,00,000 equity shares to 

promoters on exercise of conversion op�on by promoters on 

January 1, 2020. Balance 600,000 warrants and applica�on 

money received at the �me of allotment was forfeited by the 

Company. There are no outstanding warrants as on 31st March, 

2020.
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For & on Behalf of the Board

JTL INFRA LIMITED

Place: Chandigarh                 

Date: August 29, 2020                                                          

                         

PLANT LOCATIONS

JTL Infra has plants located at the following places:

1. Gholumajra, DeraBassi, 

 Ambala, Chandigarh Highway, 

 Dis�. SAS Nagar. Punjab-India

2. Vill. Kotse Budruk, Taluka Mangaon, Dis�. Raigarh, 

Maharashtra-India 

ADDRESS FOR CORRESPONDENCE WITH COMPANY

Investors and shareholders can correspond with the share 

transfer agent or the registered office of the Company at the 

following address:

Share Transfer Agent

Beetal Financial & Computer Services (P) Ltd.

Address:  Beetal House, 99, Madangir, Behind Local Shopping 

Centre, New Delhi 

Tel:  (91) -11-29961281-83 

Fax:  (91) -11-29961284 

Email:  beetal@rediffmail.com 

Company :  Mr. Mohinder Singh

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Address:  SCO 18-19, Sector 28C, Chandigarh - 160002 

Tel:  (91) 172 4668000 

E-mail:  finance@jagan.in

Non- Mandatory Requirements:

The Company is taking steps to comply with the non- 

mandatory requirements. The Board wishes to ensure that the 

non-mandatory disclosures requirements would be complied 

in the near future.

Madan Mohan

Managing Director

DIN: 00156668

Rakesh Garg 

Whole Time Director

DIN: 00184081 
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CERTIFICATE REGARDING COMPLIANCE OF CONDITIONS OF 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To,
The Members of
JTL Infra Limited

I have examined the compliance of condi�ons of Corporate Governance by JTL Infra Limited (the 'Company') for the year ended on 31st March, 
2020, as s�pulated in Regula�on 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of Regula�on 46(2) and para C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securi�es and Exchange 
Board of India (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 ('the SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons'), as amended from �me to 
�me.

The compliance of condi�ons of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. My examina�on was limited to 
procedures and implementa�on thereof adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the condi�ons of the Corporate Governance. It 
is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company. 

In my opinion and to the best of my informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to me, I cer�fy that the Company has complied with the 
condi�ons of Corporate Governance as s�pulated in the above-men�oned SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons, to the extent applicable to the Company 
during the year under report.

I further state that such compliance is neither as assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effec�veness with which 
the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Suresh K Aggarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 021129N

Suresh Kumar Aggarwal
Proprietor

M. No: 090064
Date: August 29, 2020  
Place:  Chandigarh

DECLARATION REGARDING COMPLIANCE BY BOARD MEMBERS AND SENIOR 
MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT UNDER REGULATION 17(5) 
SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS), REGULATIONS, 2015

This is to confirm that the Company has adopted Code of Conduct for its employees including the Managing Director and Whole-Time Directors. 

I confirm that the Company has in respect of the financial year ended 31st March 2020, received from the senior Management team of the 
Company and the Members of the Board, declara�ons affirming Compliance with the Code of Conduct as applicable to them.

For the purpose of this declara�on, Senior Management Team means the Members of the Management one level below the Managing Director as 
on 31st March, 2020.

For JTL Infra Limited

                       Madan Mohan Singla
          Managing Director

DIN: 00156668
Date: August 29, 2020 
Place:  Chandigarh
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COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

[Regula�on 17(8) and Part B of Schedule II of the 
SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015]

We, Madan Mohan Singla, Managing Director and Dhruv Singla, Chief Financial Officer of JTL Infra Limited, do hereby cer�fy that:

a) We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement of the Company for the financial year ended 31st  
March, 2020 and to the best of our knowledge, informa�on and belief:

 (1) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that 
might be misleading;

 (2) These statements together present a true and fair view of the listed en�ty's affairs and are in compliance with exis�ng 
accoun�ng standards, applicable laws and regula�ons. 

B.  There are, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no transac�ons entered into by the listed en�ty during the year which are 
fraudulent, illegal or viola�ve of the listed en�ty's code of conduct. 

C. They accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial repor�ng and that they have 
evaluated the effec�veness of internal control systems of the listed en�ty pertaining to financial repor�ng and they have 
disclosed to the auditors and the audit commi�ee, deficiencies in the design or opera�on of such internal controls, if any, of 
which they are aware and the steps they have taken or propose to take to rec�fy these deficiencies. 

D.  They have indicated to the auditors and the Audit commi�ee 

 (1) significant changes in internal control over financial repor�ng during the year; 

 (2)significant changes in accoun�ng policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to the financial 
statements; and 

(3)  instances of significant fraud of which they have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management or an 
employee having a significant role in the listed en�ty's internal control system over financial repor�ng. 

                      For JTL Infra Limited

Madan Mohan Singla
Managing Director

 
Dhruv Singla     

Chief Financial Officer      

Date: August 29, 2020
Place:  Chandigarh
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

[Pursuant to Regula�on 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI 
(Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015]

To,
The Members of
J T L INFRA LIMITED,
S.C.O. 18-19, SECTOR-28C,
CHANDIGARH-160002

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of J T L Infa Limited 
having CIN L27106CH1991PLC011536 and having registered office at S.C.O. 18-19, SECTOR-28C, CHANDIGARH-160002 
(hereina�er referred to as 'the Company'), produced before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Cer�ficate, in 
accordance with Regula�on 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securi�es Exchange Board of India (Lis�ng 
Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015.

In my opinion and to the best of my informa�on and according to the verifica�ons (including Directors Iden�fica�on Number (DIN) 
status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explana�ons furnished to me by the Company & its officers, I 
hereby cer�fy that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 
2020 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or con�nuing as Directors of companies by the Securi�es and 
Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority.

Sr. No. DIN/PAN Name of the Director  Date of Appointment
1. 00156668 Mr. Madan Mohan   July 29, 1991
2. 00156801 Mr. Vijay Singla   July 29, 1991
3. 00156885 Mr. Mithan Lal Singla  July 29, 1991
4. 00184081 Mr. Rakesh Garg   July 29, 1991
5. 06790358 Mr. Bhupinder Nayyar  May 17, 2018
6. 07070977 Ms. Preet Kamal Kaur Bha�a February 13, 2015

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment/con�nuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management of 
the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verifica�on. This cer�ficate is neither an assurance 
as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effec�veness with which the management has conducted the 
affairs of the Company.

For S.V. Associates
Company Secretaries 

    
         

Sahil Malhotra                      
Proprietor

COP No.14791
M.No. 38204

Date: August 29, 2020
Place: Chandigarh
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COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

[Regula�on 17(8) and Part B of Schedule II of the 
SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015]

We, Madan Mohan Singla, Managing Director and Dhruv Singla, Chief Financial Officer of JTL Infra Limited, do hereby cer�fy that:

a) We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement of the Company for the financial year ended 31st  
March, 2020 and to the best of our knowledge, informa�on and belief:

 (1) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that 
might be misleading;

 (2) These statements together present a true and fair view of the listed en�ty's affairs and are in compliance with exis�ng 
accoun�ng standards, applicable laws and regula�ons. 

B.  There are, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no transac�ons entered into by the listed en�ty during the year which are 
fraudulent, illegal or viola�ve of the listed en�ty's code of conduct. 

C. They accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial repor�ng and that they have 
evaluated the effec�veness of internal control systems of the listed en�ty pertaining to financial repor�ng and they have 
disclosed to the auditors and the audit commi�ee, deficiencies in the design or opera�on of such internal controls, if any, of 
which they are aware and the steps they have taken or propose to take to rec�fy these deficiencies. 

D.  They have indicated to the auditors and the Audit commi�ee 

 (1) significant changes in internal control over financial repor�ng during the year; 

 (2)significant changes in accoun�ng policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to the financial 
statements; and 

(3)  instances of significant fraud of which they have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management or an 
employee having a significant role in the listed en�ty's internal control system over financial repor�ng. 

                      For JTL Infra Limited

Madan Mohan Singla
Managing Director

 
Dhruv Singla     

Chief Financial Officer      

Date: August 29, 2020
Place:  Chandigarh
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

[Pursuant to Regula�on 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI 
(Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015]

To,
The Members of
J T L INFRA LIMITED,
S.C.O. 18-19, SECTOR-28C,
CHANDIGARH-160002

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of J T L Infa Limited 
having CIN L27106CH1991PLC011536 and having registered office at S.C.O. 18-19, SECTOR-28C, CHANDIGARH-160002 
(hereina�er referred to as 'the Company'), produced before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Cer�ficate, in 
accordance with Regula�on 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securi�es Exchange Board of India (Lis�ng 
Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015.

In my opinion and to the best of my informa�on and according to the verifica�ons (including Directors Iden�fica�on Number (DIN) 
status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explana�ons furnished to me by the Company & its officers, I 
hereby cer�fy that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 
2020 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or con�nuing as Directors of companies by the Securi�es and 
Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority.

Sr. No. DIN/PAN Name of the Director  Date of Appointment
1. 00156668 Mr. Madan Mohan   July 29, 1991
2. 00156801 Mr. Vijay Singla   July 29, 1991
3. 00156885 Mr. Mithan Lal Singla  July 29, 1991
4. 00184081 Mr. Rakesh Garg   July 29, 1991
5. 06790358 Mr. Bhupinder Nayyar  May 17, 2018
6. 07070977 Ms. Preet Kamal Kaur Bha�a February 13, 2015

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment/con�nuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management of 
the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verifica�on. This cer�ficate is neither an assurance 
as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effec�veness with which the management has conducted the 
affairs of the Company.

For S.V. Associates
Company Secretaries 

    
         

Sahil Malhotra                      
Proprietor

COP No.14791
M.No. 38204

Date: August 29, 2020
Place: Chandigarh
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To The Members of 

J T L INFRA LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial 

Statements of J T L Infra Limited ('the Company'), which 

comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020, the 

Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive 

income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of 

Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date, and a 

summary of the significant accoun�ng policies and other 

explanatory informa�on (hereina�er referred to as the 

standalone financial statements).

In our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and according 

to the explana�ons given to us, the aforesaid standalone 

financial statements give the informa�on required by the 

Companies Act, 2013, as amended ("the Act") in the manner so 

required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 

Companies( Indian Accoun�ng Standards) Rules, 2015, as 

amended, ("IND AS") and other accoun�ng principles generally 

accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 

31st March, 2020, its profit including other comprehensive 

income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year 

ended on that data.

Basis For Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on 

Audi�ng (SAs) specified under sec�on 143(10) of the 

Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibili�es under those 

Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsi-

bili�es for the Audit of the Financial Statements sec�on of our 

report. We are independent of the Company in accordance 

with the 'Code of Ethics' issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered 

Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical 

requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone 

financial statements under the provisions of the Companies 

Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our 

other ethical responsibili�es in accordance with these 

requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the 

audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 

to provide a basis for our opinion on the standalone financial 

statements.

Informa�on Other than the Standalone Financial Statements 

and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other 

informa�on. The other informa�on comprises the informa�on 

included in the Annual Report, but does not include the 

standalone financial statements and our auditor's report 

thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the 

other informa�on and we will not express any form of 

assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connec�on with our audit of the financial statements, our 

responsibility is to read the other informa�on and, in doing so, 

consider whether such other informa�on is materially 

inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge 

obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 

misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we 

conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 

informa�on, we are required to report that fact. We have 

nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Ind-AS 

Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the 

ma�ers stated in Sec�on 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 

("the Act") with respect to the prepara�on of these standalone 

Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 

financial posi�on, financial performance including other 

comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the 

Company in accordance with the accoun�ng principles 

generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accoun�ng 

Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Sec�on 133 of the Act read 

with the Companies (Indian Accoun�ng Standards) Rules 2015, 

as amended. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 

accoun�ng records in accordance with the provisions of the Act 

for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preven�ng 

and detec�ng frauds and other irregulari�es; selec�on and 

applica�on of appropriate accoun�ng policies; making 

judgments and es�mates that are reasonable and prudent; and 

design, implementa�on and maintenance of adequate internal 

financial controls, that were opera�ng effec�vely for ensuring 

the accuracy and completeness of the accoun�ng records, 

relevant to the prepara�on and presenta�on of the standalone 
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Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and 

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 

error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management 

is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to con�nue 

as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, ma�ers related to 

going concern and using the going concern basis of accoun�ng 

unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or 

to cease opera�ons, or has no realis�c alterna�ve but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the 

Company's financial repor�ng process.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Ind AS 

Standalone Financial Statements

Our objec�ves are to obtain reasonable assurance about 

whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are 

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 

error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 

guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will 

always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 

material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 

reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of 

users taken on the basis of these standalone financial 

statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 

professional judgment and maintain professional scep�cism 

throughout the audit. We also:

• Iden�fy and assess the risks of material misstatement of 

the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud 

or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive 

to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient 

and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk 

of not detec�ng a material misstatement resul�ng from 

fraud is higher than for one resul�ng from error, as fraud 

may involve collusion, forgery, inten�onal omissions, 

misrepresenta�ons, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls 

relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under sec�on 

143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing 

our opinion on whether the Company has adequate 

internal financial controls system in place and the 

opera�ng effec�veness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accoun�ng policies used 

and the reasonableness of accoun�ng es�mates and 

related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of 

the going concern basis of accoun�ng and, based on the 

audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 

exists related to events or condi�ons that may cast 

significant doubt on the Company's ability to con�nue as a 

going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 

exists, we are required to draw a�en�on in our auditor's 

report to the related disclosures in the standalone 

financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 

to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the 

audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's 

report. However, future events or condi�ons may cause 

the Company to cease to con�nue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presenta�on, structure and content of 

the standalone financial statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the standalone financial 

statements represent the underlying transac�ons and 

events in a manner that achieves fair presenta�on.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the 

standalone financial statements that, individually or in 

aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a 

reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements 

may be influenced. We consider quan�ta�ve materiality and 

qualita�ve factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work 

and in evalua�ng the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the 

effect of any iden�fied misstatements in the financial 

statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance 

regarding, among other ma�ers, the planned scope and �ming 

of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 

significant deficiencies in internal control that we iden�fy 

during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a 

statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate 

with them all rela�onships and other ma�ers that may 
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To The Members of 

J T L INFRA LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial 

Statements of J T L Infra Limited ('the Company'), which 

comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020, the 

Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive 

income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of 

Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date, and a 

summary of the significant accoun�ng policies and other 

explanatory informa�on (hereina�er referred to as the 

standalone financial statements).

In our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and according 

to the explana�ons given to us, the aforesaid standalone 

financial statements give the informa�on required by the 

Companies Act, 2013, as amended ("the Act") in the manner so 

required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 

Companies( Indian Accoun�ng Standards) Rules, 2015, as 

amended, ("IND AS") and other accoun�ng principles generally 

accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 

31st March, 2020, its profit including other comprehensive 

income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year 

ended on that data.

Basis For Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on 

Audi�ng (SAs) specified under sec�on 143(10) of the 

Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibili�es under those 

Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsi-

bili�es for the Audit of the Financial Statements sec�on of our 

report. We are independent of the Company in accordance 

with the 'Code of Ethics' issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered 

Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical 

requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone 

financial statements under the provisions of the Companies 

Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our 

other ethical responsibili�es in accordance with these 

requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the 

audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 

to provide a basis for our opinion on the standalone financial 

statements.

Informa�on Other than the Standalone Financial Statements 

and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other 

informa�on. The other informa�on comprises the informa�on 

included in the Annual Report, but does not include the 

standalone financial statements and our auditor's report 

thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the 

other informa�on and we will not express any form of 

assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connec�on with our audit of the financial statements, our 

responsibility is to read the other informa�on and, in doing so, 

consider whether such other informa�on is materially 

inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge 

obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 

misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we 

conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 

informa�on, we are required to report that fact. We have 

nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Ind-AS 

Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the 

ma�ers stated in Sec�on 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 

("the Act") with respect to the prepara�on of these standalone 

Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 

financial posi�on, financial performance including other 

comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the 

Company in accordance with the accoun�ng principles 

generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accoun�ng 

Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Sec�on 133 of the Act read 

with the Companies (Indian Accoun�ng Standards) Rules 2015, 

as amended. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 

accoun�ng records in accordance with the provisions of the Act 

for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preven�ng 

and detec�ng frauds and other irregulari�es; selec�on and 

applica�on of appropriate accoun�ng policies; making 

judgments and es�mates that are reasonable and prudent; and 

design, implementa�on and maintenance of adequate internal 

financial controls, that were opera�ng effec�vely for ensuring 

the accuracy and completeness of the accoun�ng records, 

relevant to the prepara�on and presenta�on of the standalone 
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Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and 

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 

error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management 

is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to con�nue 

as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, ma�ers related to 

going concern and using the going concern basis of accoun�ng 

unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or 

to cease opera�ons, or has no realis�c alterna�ve but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the 

Company's financial repor�ng process.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Ind AS 

Standalone Financial Statements

Our objec�ves are to obtain reasonable assurance about 

whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are 

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 

error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 

guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will 

always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 

material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 

reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of 

users taken on the basis of these standalone financial 

statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 

professional judgment and maintain professional scep�cism 

throughout the audit. We also:

• Iden�fy and assess the risks of material misstatement of 

the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud 

or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive 

to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient 

and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk 

of not detec�ng a material misstatement resul�ng from 

fraud is higher than for one resul�ng from error, as fraud 

may involve collusion, forgery, inten�onal omissions, 

misrepresenta�ons, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls 

relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under sec�on 

143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing 

our opinion on whether the Company has adequate 

internal financial controls system in place and the 

opera�ng effec�veness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accoun�ng policies used 

and the reasonableness of accoun�ng es�mates and 

related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of 

the going concern basis of accoun�ng and, based on the 

audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 

exists related to events or condi�ons that may cast 

significant doubt on the Company's ability to con�nue as a 

going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 

exists, we are required to draw a�en�on in our auditor's 

report to the related disclosures in the standalone 

financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 

to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the 

audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's 

report. However, future events or condi�ons may cause 

the Company to cease to con�nue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presenta�on, structure and content of 

the standalone financial statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the standalone financial 

statements represent the underlying transac�ons and 

events in a manner that achieves fair presenta�on.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the 

standalone financial statements that, individually or in 

aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a 

reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements 

may be influenced. We consider quan�ta�ve materiality and 

qualita�ve factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work 

and in evalua�ng the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the 

effect of any iden�fied misstatements in the financial 

statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance 

regarding, among other ma�ers, the planned scope and �ming 

of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 

significant deficiencies in internal control that we iden�fy 

during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a 

statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate 

with them all rela�onships and other ma�ers that may 
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reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 

where applicable, related safeguards.

From the ma�ers communicated with those charged with 

governance, we determine those ma�ers that were of most 

significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements 

of the current period and are therefore the key audit ma�ers. 

We describe these ma�ers in our auditor's report unless law or 

regula�on precludes public disclosure about the ma�er or 

when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a 

ma�er should not be communicated in our report because the 

adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 

expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 

communica�on.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 

("the Order"), issued by the Central Government of India in 

term of sub-sec�on (11) of Sec�on 143(3) of the Act, we 

give in the "Annexure A" a statement on the  ma�ers 

specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order.

2. As required by Sec�on 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

 (a) We have sought and obtained all the informa�on and 

explana�ons which to the best of our knowledge and 

belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

 (b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by 

law have been kept by the Company so far as it 

appears from our examina�on of those books. 

 (c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss 

including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement 

of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow 

dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the 

relevant books of account. 

 (d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS standalone 

financial statements comply with the Accoun�ng 

Standards specified under Sec�on 133 of the Act, read 

with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2015, 

as amended;

 (e) On the basis of the wri�en representa�ons received 

from the directors as on 31st March, 2020 taken on 

record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors 

is disqualified as on 31st March, 2020 from being 

appointed as a director in terms of Sec�on 164 (2) of 

the Act;

 (f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial 

controls over financial repor�ng of the Company and 

the opera�ng effec�veness of such controls, refer to 

our separate Report in "Annexure B". Our report 

expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy 

and opera�ng effec�veness of the Company's internal 

financial controls over financial repor�ng;

 (g) With respect to the other ma�ers to be included in the 

Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements 

of sec�on 197(16) of the Act, as amended:   

  In our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and 

according to the explana�ons given to us, the 

remunera�on paid by the Company to its directors 

during the year is in accordance with the provisions of 

sec�on 197 read with Schedule V of the Act;

 (h) With respect to the other ma�ers to be included in the 

Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as 

amended in our opinion and to the best of our 

informa�on and explana�ons given to us:

  i. There Company does not have any pending 

li�ga�ons as at 31st March, 2020 which would 

impact its financial posi�on.

  ii. The Company did not have any long-term 

contracts including deriva�ve contracts for which 

there were any material foreseeable losses;

  iii. There were no amounts which were required to 

be transferred to the Investor Educa�on and 

Protec�on Fund by the Company during the year 

ended 31st March, 2020.

For SURESH K AGGARWAL & CO.

Chartered Accountants

            ICAI Firm Registra�on Number: 021129N

Suresh Kumar Aggarwal

Proprietor

Membership Number: 090064

    UDIN: 20090064AAAABC9551Place: Chandigarh       

Date: June 30, 2020      
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"Annexure A" to Independent Auditor's Report

Report on the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading "Report on 

Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements" of our report of 

even date)

i. (a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing 

full par�culars, including quan�ta�ve details and 

situa�on of fixed assets.

 (b) The fixed assets of the Company have been physically 

verified by the Management during the year and no 

material discrepancies have been no�ced on such 

verifica�on. In our opinion, the frequency of 

verifica�on is reasonable.

 (c) According to the informa�on and explana�ons given 

by the management, the �tle deeds of immovable 

proper�es are held in the name of the company.

ii. The inventory has been physically verified by the 

Management during the year. In our opinion, the 

frequency of verifica�on is reasonable. No material 

discrepancies were no�ced on physical verifica�on. 

Inventories lying with third par�es have been confirmed 

by them and no material discrepancies were no�ced in 

respect of such confirma�ons

iii. According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, 

the Company has not granted any loans, secured or 

unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability 

Partnerships or other par�es covered in the register 

maintained under Sec�on 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 

('the act'). Accordingly, theprovisions of Clause 3(iii) (a), 

(b)and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company 

and hence not commented upon.

iv. In our opinion and according to the informa�on and 

explana�ons given to us, provisions of sec�on 185 and 186 

of the act in respect of loans to directors including en��es 

in which they are interested and in respect of loans and 

advance given, investments made and, guarantees, and 

securi�es given have been complied with by the Company.

v. The Company has not accepted any deposits within the 

meaning of Sec�ons 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies 

(Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014 (as amended). 

Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the order are 

not applicable.

vi. We have broadly reviewed the books of account and 

records maintained by the company pursuant to the Rules 

made by the Central Government for the maintenance of 

cost records under sec�on 148 (1) of the Companies Act, 

2013 in respect of the company's products and are of the 

opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed records have 

been made and maintained. We have, however, not made 

a detailed examina�on of records with a view to determine 

whether they are accurate or complete.

vii. (a) According to informa�on and explana�ons given to us 

and on the basis of our examina�on of the books of 

account, and records, the Company has been 

generally regular in deposi�ng undisputed statutory 

dues including provident fund, employees state 

insurance, income-tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of 

customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any 

other statutory dues with the appropriate authori�es. 

Accordingto the informa�on and explana�ons given 

to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect 

o�he above were in arrears as at 31st March, 2020 for 

a period of more than six months from the date on 

when they become payable.

 (b) According to the informa�on and explana�ons given 

to us and the records of the Company examined by us, 

there are no dues of income-tax, sales-tax, wealth-

tax, service-tax, duty of customs, and duty of excise or 

value added tax or Cess which have not been 

deposited on account of any dispute.

viii. In our opinion and according to the informa�on and 

explana�ons given to us, the company has not defaulted in 

repayment of dues to a financial ins�tu�on or bank.

ix. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the 

informa�on and explana�ons given by the management, 

The Company has not raised moneys by way of ini�al 

public offer or further public offer (including debt 

instruments) or term loans and hence repor�ng under 

clause 3 (ix) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
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reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 

where applicable, related safeguards.

From the ma�ers communicated with those charged with 

governance, we determine those ma�ers that were of most 

significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements 

of the current period and are therefore the key audit ma�ers. 

We describe these ma�ers in our auditor's report unless law or 

regula�on precludes public disclosure about the ma�er or 

when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a 

ma�er should not be communicated in our report because the 

adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 

expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 

communica�on.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 

("the Order"), issued by the Central Government of India in 

term of sub-sec�on (11) of Sec�on 143(3) of the Act, we 

give in the "Annexure A" a statement on the  ma�ers 

specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order.

2. As required by Sec�on 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

 (a) We have sought and obtained all the informa�on and 

explana�ons which to the best of our knowledge and 

belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

 (b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by 

law have been kept by the Company so far as it 

appears from our examina�on of those books. 

 (c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss 

including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement 

of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow 

dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the 

relevant books of account. 

 (d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS standalone 

financial statements comply with the Accoun�ng 

Standards specified under Sec�on 133 of the Act, read 

with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2015, 

as amended;

 (e) On the basis of the wri�en representa�ons received 

from the directors as on 31st March, 2020 taken on 

record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors 

is disqualified as on 31st March, 2020 from being 

appointed as a director in terms of Sec�on 164 (2) of 

the Act;

 (f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial 

controls over financial repor�ng of the Company and 

the opera�ng effec�veness of such controls, refer to 

our separate Report in "Annexure B". Our report 

expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy 

and opera�ng effec�veness of the Company's internal 

financial controls over financial repor�ng;

 (g) With respect to the other ma�ers to be included in the 

Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements 

of sec�on 197(16) of the Act, as amended:   

  In our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and 

according to the explana�ons given to us, the 

remunera�on paid by the Company to its directors 

during the year is in accordance with the provisions of 

sec�on 197 read with Schedule V of the Act;

 (h) With respect to the other ma�ers to be included in the 

Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as 

amended in our opinion and to the best of our 

informa�on and explana�ons given to us:

  i. There Company does not have any pending 

li�ga�ons as at 31st March, 2020 which would 

impact its financial posi�on.

  ii. The Company did not have any long-term 

contracts including deriva�ve contracts for which 

there were any material foreseeable losses;

  iii. There were no amounts which were required to 

be transferred to the Investor Educa�on and 

Protec�on Fund by the Company during the year 

ended 31st March, 2020.

For SURESH K AGGARWAL & CO.

Chartered Accountants

            ICAI Firm Registra�on Number: 021129N

Suresh Kumar Aggarwal

Proprietor

Membership Number: 090064

    UDIN: 20090064AAAABC9551Place: Chandigarh       

Date: June 30, 2020      
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"Annexure A" to Independent Auditor's Report

Report on the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading "Report on 

Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements" of our report of 

even date)

i. (a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing 

full par�culars, including quan�ta�ve details and 

situa�on of fixed assets.

 (b) The fixed assets of the Company have been physically 

verified by the Management during the year and no 

material discrepancies have been no�ced on such 

verifica�on. In our opinion, the frequency of 

verifica�on is reasonable.

 (c) According to the informa�on and explana�ons given 

by the management, the �tle deeds of immovable 

proper�es are held in the name of the company.

ii. The inventory has been physically verified by the 

Management during the year. In our opinion, the 

frequency of verifica�on is reasonable. No material 

discrepancies were no�ced on physical verifica�on. 

Inventories lying with third par�es have been confirmed 

by them and no material discrepancies were no�ced in 

respect of such confirma�ons

iii. According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, 

the Company has not granted any loans, secured or 

unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability 

Partnerships or other par�es covered in the register 

maintained under Sec�on 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 

('the act'). Accordingly, theprovisions of Clause 3(iii) (a), 

(b)and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company 

and hence not commented upon.

iv. In our opinion and according to the informa�on and 

explana�ons given to us, provisions of sec�on 185 and 186 

of the act in respect of loans to directors including en��es 

in which they are interested and in respect of loans and 

advance given, investments made and, guarantees, and 

securi�es given have been complied with by the Company.

v. The Company has not accepted any deposits within the 

meaning of Sec�ons 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies 

(Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014 (as amended). 

Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the order are 

not applicable.

vi. We have broadly reviewed the books of account and 

records maintained by the company pursuant to the Rules 

made by the Central Government for the maintenance of 

cost records under sec�on 148 (1) of the Companies Act, 

2013 in respect of the company's products and are of the 

opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed records have 

been made and maintained. We have, however, not made 

a detailed examina�on of records with a view to determine 

whether they are accurate or complete.

vii. (a) According to informa�on and explana�ons given to us 

and on the basis of our examina�on of the books of 

account, and records, the Company has been 

generally regular in deposi�ng undisputed statutory 

dues including provident fund, employees state 

insurance, income-tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of 

customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any 

other statutory dues with the appropriate authori�es. 

Accordingto the informa�on and explana�ons given 

to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect 

o�he above were in arrears as at 31st March, 2020 for 

a period of more than six months from the date on 

when they become payable.

 (b) According to the informa�on and explana�ons given 

to us and the records of the Company examined by us, 

there are no dues of income-tax, sales-tax, wealth-

tax, service-tax, duty of customs, and duty of excise or 

value added tax or Cess which have not been 

deposited on account of any dispute.

viii. In our opinion and according to the informa�on and 

explana�ons given to us, the company has not defaulted in 

repayment of dues to a financial ins�tu�on or bank.

ix. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the 

informa�on and explana�ons given by the management, 

The Company has not raised moneys by way of ini�al 

public offer or further public offer (including debt 

instruments) or term loans and hence repor�ng under 

clause 3 (ix) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
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x. Based upon the audit procedures performed for the 

purpose of repor�ng the true and fair view of the 

standalone Ind AS financial statements and according to 

the informa�on and explana�ons given by the 

management, we report that no fraud by the Company or 

no fraud on the Company by the officers and employees of 

the Company has been no�ced or reported during the 

year.

xi. According to the informa�on and explana�ons given by 

the management, the managerial remunera�on has been 

paid / provided in accordance with the requisite approvals 

mandated by the provisions of sec�on 197 read with 

Schedule V to the Act.

xii. In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. 

Therefore, the provisions of clause 3 (xii) of the Order are 

not applicable to the Company and hence not commented 

upon.

xiii. According to the informa�on and explana�ons given by 

the management, transac�ons with the related par�es are 

in compliance with sec�on 177 and 188 of the Act where 

applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes 

to the financial statements, as required by the applicable 

accoun�ng standards.

xiv. According to the informa�on and explana�ons given by 

the management and based on our examina�on of the 

records of the Company, the Company has made 

preferen�al allotment of 60000 shares to promoter group 

during the year and has made compliance of provision of 

Sec�on 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 and amount raised 

have been used for the purpose for which the funds were 

raised.

xv. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the 

informa�on and explana�ons given by the management, 

the company has not entered into any non-cash 

transac�ons with any director or persons connected with 

him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the 

Order are not applicable to the Company.

xvi. In our opinion, the company is not required to be 

registered under sec�on 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of India 

Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi) 

of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

For SURESH K AGGARWAL & CO.

Chartered Accountants

            ICAI Firm Registra�on Number: 021129N

Suresh Kumar Aggarwal

Proprietor

Membership Number: 090064

    UDIN: 20090064AAAABC9551

Place: Chandigarh       

Date: June 30, 2020      
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"Annexure B" to Independent Auditor's Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 

Repor�ng under Clause (i) of Sub-sec�on 3 of Sec�on 143 of 

the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

To the Members of 

JTL Infra Limited

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial 

repor�ng of M/S J T L INFRA LIMITED ("the Company") as of 

31st March, 2020 in conjunc�on with our audit of the 

standalone financial statements of the Company for the year 

ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing 

and maintaining internal financial controls based on the 

internal control over financial repor�ng criteria established by 

the Company considering the essen�al components of internal 

control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 

Financial Controls Over Financial Repor�ng issued by the 

Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These 

responsibili�es include the design, implementa�on and 

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 

opera�ng effec�vely for ensuring the orderly and efficient 

conduct of its business, including adherence to company's 

policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the preven�on and 

detec�on of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness 

of the accoun�ng records, and the �mely prepara�on of 

reliable financial informa�on, as required under the 

Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's 

internal financial controls over financial repor�ng based on our 

audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 

Financial Repor�ng (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards 

on Audi�ng, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under 

sec�on 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent 

applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both 

applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both 

issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those 

Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with 

ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 

reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 

financial controls over financial repor�ng was established and 

maintained and if such controls operated effec�vely in all 

material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 

evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 

system over financial repor�ng and their opera�ng 

effec�veness. Our audit of internal financial controls over 

financial repor�ng included obtaining an understanding of 

internal financial controls over financial repor�ng, assessing 

the risk that a material weakness exists, and tes�ng and 

evalua�ng the design and opera�ng effec�veness of internal 

control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 

depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment 

of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 

opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system 

over financial repor�ng.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 

Repor�ng

A company's internal financial control over financial repor�ng 

is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 

regarding the reliability of financial repor�ng and the 

prepara�on of financial statements for external purposes in 

accordance with generally accepted accoun�ng principles. A 

company's internal financial control over financial repor�ng 

includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 

maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately 

and fairly reflect the transac�ons and disposi�ons of the assets 

of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 

transac�ons are recorded as necessary to permit prepara�on 

of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 

accoun�ng principles, and that receipts and expenditures of 

the company are being made only in accordance with 

authorisa�ons of management and directors of the company; 
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x. Based upon the audit procedures performed for the 

purpose of repor�ng the true and fair view of the 

standalone Ind AS financial statements and according to 

the informa�on and explana�ons given by the 

management, we report that no fraud by the Company or 

no fraud on the Company by the officers and employees of 

the Company has been no�ced or reported during the 

year.

xi. According to the informa�on and explana�ons given by 

the management, the managerial remunera�on has been 

paid / provided in accordance with the requisite approvals 

mandated by the provisions of sec�on 197 read with 

Schedule V to the Act.

xii. In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. 

Therefore, the provisions of clause 3 (xii) of the Order are 

not applicable to the Company and hence not commented 

upon.

xiii. According to the informa�on and explana�ons given by 

the management, transac�ons with the related par�es are 

in compliance with sec�on 177 and 188 of the Act where 

applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes 

to the financial statements, as required by the applicable 

accoun�ng standards.

xiv. According to the informa�on and explana�ons given by 

the management and based on our examina�on of the 

records of the Company, the Company has made 

preferen�al allotment of 60000 shares to promoter group 

during the year and has made compliance of provision of 

Sec�on 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 and amount raised 

have been used for the purpose for which the funds were 

raised.

xv. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the 

informa�on and explana�ons given by the management, 

the company has not entered into any non-cash 

transac�ons with any director or persons connected with 

him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the 

Order are not applicable to the Company.

xvi. In our opinion, the company is not required to be 

registered under sec�on 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of India 

Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi) 

of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

For SURESH K AGGARWAL & CO.

Chartered Accountants

            ICAI Firm Registra�on Number: 021129N

Suresh Kumar Aggarwal

Proprietor

Membership Number: 090064

    UDIN: 20090064AAAABC9551

Place: Chandigarh       

Date: June 30, 2020      
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"Annexure B" to Independent Auditor's Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 

Repor�ng under Clause (i) of Sub-sec�on 3 of Sec�on 143 of 

the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

To the Members of 

JTL Infra Limited

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial 

repor�ng of M/S J T L INFRA LIMITED ("the Company") as of 

31st March, 2020 in conjunc�on with our audit of the 

standalone financial statements of the Company for the year 

ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing 

and maintaining internal financial controls based on the 

internal control over financial repor�ng criteria established by 

the Company considering the essen�al components of internal 

control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 

Financial Controls Over Financial Repor�ng issued by the 

Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These 

responsibili�es include the design, implementa�on and 

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 

opera�ng effec�vely for ensuring the orderly and efficient 

conduct of its business, including adherence to company's 

policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the preven�on and 

detec�on of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness 

of the accoun�ng records, and the �mely prepara�on of 

reliable financial informa�on, as required under the 

Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's 

internal financial controls over financial repor�ng based on our 

audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 

Financial Repor�ng (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards 

on Audi�ng, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under 

sec�on 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent 

applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both 

applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both 

issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those 

Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with 

ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 

reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 

financial controls over financial repor�ng was established and 

maintained and if such controls operated effec�vely in all 

material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 

evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 

system over financial repor�ng and their opera�ng 

effec�veness. Our audit of internal financial controls over 

financial repor�ng included obtaining an understanding of 

internal financial controls over financial repor�ng, assessing 

the risk that a material weakness exists, and tes�ng and 

evalua�ng the design and opera�ng effec�veness of internal 

control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 

depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment 

of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 

opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system 

over financial repor�ng.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 

Repor�ng

A company's internal financial control over financial repor�ng 

is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 

regarding the reliability of financial repor�ng and the 

prepara�on of financial statements for external purposes in 

accordance with generally accepted accoun�ng principles. A 

company's internal financial control over financial repor�ng 

includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 

maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately 

and fairly reflect the transac�ons and disposi�ons of the assets 

of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 

transac�ons are recorded as necessary to permit prepara�on 

of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 

accoun�ng principles, and that receipts and expenditures of 

the company are being made only in accordance with 

authorisa�ons of management and directors of the company; 
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and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding preven�on or 

�mely detec�on of unauthorised acquisi�on, use, or 

disposi�on of the company's assets that could have a material 

effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limita�ons of Internal Financial Controls Over 

Financial Repor�ng

Because of the inherent limita�ons of internal financial 

controls over financial repor�ng, including the possibility of 

collusion or improper management override of controls, 

material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and 

not be detected. Also, projec�ons of any evalua�on of the 

internal financial controls over financial repor�ng to future 

periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control 

over financial repor�ng may become inadequate because of 

changes in condi�ons, or that the degree of compliance with 

the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an 

adequate internal financial controls system over financial 

repor�ng and such internal financial controls over financial 

repor�ng were opera�ng effec�vely as at 31st March, 2020, 

based on the internal control over financial repor�ng criteria 

established by the Company considering the essen�al 

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 

Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repor�ng 

issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For SURESH K AGGARWAL & CO.

Chartered Accountants

            ICAI Firm Registra�on Number: 021129N

Suresh Kumar Aggarwal

Proprietor

Membership Number: 090064

    UDIN: 20090064AAAABC9551

Place: Chandigarh       

Date: June 30, 2020      

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2020

Par�culars   Notes   As at  As at
      31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
ASSETS     
Non-Current Assets     
 Property, Plant and Equipment   3 236,754,995  194,828,731
 Capital Work in Progress   3 -    -   
 Financial Assets     
  Investments    4 178,416 178,416
 Other Non-Current Assets   5 9,971,462   3,237,981
Total Non-Current Assets     246,904,873   198,245,128 
Current Assets     
 Inventories    6 420,138,712 220,651,679
 Financial Assets     
  Loans    7 229,759 2,061,818
  Trade Receivables   8 507,156,777  556,843,222
  Cash and Cash Equivalents   9 5,392,174  1,760,183
  Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents  10 23,288,734   19,572,537
  Others    11 323,807   179,510
 Current Tax Assets (net)   12 332,733   332,733
 Other Current Assets   13 198,378,688   79,230,074
Total Current Assets     1,155,241,384  880,631,756
Total Assets      1,402,146,257  1,078,876,884
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES     
Equity     
 Equity Share Capital   14 106,074,300  100,074,300 
 Other Equity     15 506,180,018  341,128,958 
Total Equity       612,254,318  441,203,258 
Liabili�es     
Non-Current Liabili�es     
 Financial Liabili�es     
  Borrowings    16 832,602 2,126,397 
 Provisions    17 3,817,437  3,315,145 
 Deferred Tax Liabili�es   18 17,805,266 14,387,594 
 Other Non-Current Liabili�es   19 2,431,025  11,376,326 
Total Non-Current Liabili�es     24,886,330  31,205,462 
Current Liabili�es     
 Financial Liabili�es     
  Borrowings    20 579,434,359 348,886,313 
  Trade Payables     
  (i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises and  21  - -   
  (ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises  21 111,732,516  60,147,163 
  Other Financial Liabili�es   22 14,800,003  13,626,547 
 Other Current Liabili�es   23 32,813,928  140,700,113 
 Provisions    24 172,887  59,348 
 Income Tax Liabili�es (net)     26,051,916  43,048,680 
Total Current Liabili�es     765,005,609  606,468,164 
Total Equity and Liabili�es     1,402,146,257  1,078,876,884 
     
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date a�ached

 (Amount in Rs.) 

For  Suresh K Aggarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN 021129N 

Suresh Kumar Aggarwal
Proprietor
M.No. 090064

Place : Chandigarh
Date : June 30, 2020 
UDIN : 20090064AAAABC9551 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 
                                                                                                                                                                                                  of J T L Infra Limited

Rakesh Garg
Director

DIN: 00184081 

 Madan Mohan Singla 
                                                            Managing Director 

                                                                                                                                                                DIN: 00156668

Mohinder Singh
Company Secretary

PAN: BELPS5287P

Dhruv Singla 
    Chief Financial Officer 

    PAN: CGBPS9330L 
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and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding preven�on or 

�mely detec�on of unauthorised acquisi�on, use, or 

disposi�on of the company's assets that could have a material 

effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limita�ons of Internal Financial Controls Over 

Financial Repor�ng

Because of the inherent limita�ons of internal financial 

controls over financial repor�ng, including the possibility of 

collusion or improper management override of controls, 

material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and 

not be detected. Also, projec�ons of any evalua�on of the 

internal financial controls over financial repor�ng to future 

periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control 

over financial repor�ng may become inadequate because of 

changes in condi�ons, or that the degree of compliance with 

the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an 

adequate internal financial controls system over financial 

repor�ng and such internal financial controls over financial 

repor�ng were opera�ng effec�vely as at 31st March, 2020, 

based on the internal control over financial repor�ng criteria 

established by the Company considering the essen�al 

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 

Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repor�ng 

issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For SURESH K AGGARWAL & CO.

Chartered Accountants

            ICAI Firm Registra�on Number: 021129N

Suresh Kumar Aggarwal

Proprietor

Membership Number: 090064

    UDIN: 20090064AAAABC9551

Place: Chandigarh       

Date: June 30, 2020      

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2020

Par�culars   Notes   As at  As at
      31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
ASSETS     
Non-Current Assets     
 Property, Plant and Equipment   3 236,754,995  194,828,731
 Capital Work in Progress   3 -    -   
 Financial Assets     
  Investments    4 178,416 178,416
 Other Non-Current Assets   5 9,971,462   3,237,981
Total Non-Current Assets     246,904,873   198,245,128 
Current Assets     
 Inventories    6 420,138,712 220,651,679
 Financial Assets     
  Loans    7 229,759 2,061,818
  Trade Receivables   8 507,156,777  556,843,222
  Cash and Cash Equivalents   9 5,392,174  1,760,183
  Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents  10 23,288,734   19,572,537
  Others    11 323,807   179,510
 Current Tax Assets (net)   12 332,733   332,733
 Other Current Assets   13 198,378,688   79,230,074
Total Current Assets     1,155,241,384  880,631,756
Total Assets      1,402,146,257  1,078,876,884
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES     
Equity     
 Equity Share Capital   14 106,074,300  100,074,300 
 Other Equity     15 506,180,018  341,128,958 
Total Equity       612,254,318  441,203,258 
Liabili�es     
Non-Current Liabili�es     
 Financial Liabili�es     
  Borrowings    16 832,602 2,126,397 
 Provisions    17 3,817,437  3,315,145 
 Deferred Tax Liabili�es   18 17,805,266 14,387,594 
 Other Non-Current Liabili�es   19 2,431,025  11,376,326 
Total Non-Current Liabili�es     24,886,330  31,205,462 
Current Liabili�es     
 Financial Liabili�es     
  Borrowings    20 579,434,359 348,886,313 
  Trade Payables     
  (i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises and  21  - -   
  (ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises  21 111,732,516  60,147,163 
  Other Financial Liabili�es   22 14,800,003  13,626,547 
 Other Current Liabili�es   23 32,813,928  140,700,113 
 Provisions    24 172,887  59,348 
 Income Tax Liabili�es (net)     26,051,916  43,048,680 
Total Current Liabili�es     765,005,609  606,468,164 
Total Equity and Liabili�es     1,402,146,257  1,078,876,884 
     
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date a�ached

 (Amount in Rs.) 

For  Suresh K Aggarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN 021129N 

Suresh Kumar Aggarwal
Proprietor
M.No. 090064

Place : Chandigarh
Date : June 30, 2020 
UDIN : 20090064AAAABC9551 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 
                                                                                                                                                                                                  of J T L Infra Limited

Rakesh Garg
Director

DIN: 00184081 

 Madan Mohan Singla 
                                                            Managing Director 

                                                                                                                                                                DIN: 00156668

Mohinder Singh
Company Secretary

PAN: BELPS5287P

Dhruv Singla 
    Chief Financial Officer 

    PAN: CGBPS9330L 
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH  31, 2020

Par�culars   Note Year ended  Year ended
      31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Revenue from Opera�ons   25 2,299,286,813   3,218,616,244 
Other Income    26 27,477,614  8,183,647
Total Income (I)      2,326,764,427    3,226,799,891 
EXPENSES     
Cost of Materials Consumed   27 2,095,261,314    2,865,714,215 
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade     -      -   
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Stock-in-Trade and Work -in -Progress  28 (61,969,982)   (29,029,044)
Employee Benefits Expense   29 32,080,275    19,466,985 
Finance Costs    30 40,490,392    31,677,302 
Deprecia�on and Amor�sa�on Expense  31 14,832,360    7,360,000 
Other Expenses    32 69,737,699    125,682,897 
Total Expenses (II)      2,190,432,058    3,020,872,355 
Profit Before Excep�onal Items and Tax (I-II)   136,332,369    205,927,536 
Excep�onal Items      -      -   
Profit/ (Loss) Before Tax     136,332,369    205,927,536 
Tax Expense/(Benefits):     
Current Tax    18 32,163,637    53,034,535 
Deferred Tax    18 3,417,672    7,880,260 
Total Tax Expense      35,581,309    60,914,795 
Profit/ (loss) for the years     100,751,060    145,012,741 
Other Comprehensive Income :     
Items that will not be reclassified to Profit and Loss     
 (i) Re-measurement Gains/(Losses) on Defined Benefit Plans   -   -   
 (ii) Income Tax effect on above   -   -   
Total Other Comprehensive Income    -      -   
Total Comprehensive Income     100,751,060    145,012,741 
Earnings per Equity Share of Rs. 10 each     
Basic        9.92    14.49 
Diluted       9.92    14.49

 (Amount in Rs.) 

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date a�ached

For  Suresh K Aggarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN 021129N 

Suresh Kumar Aggarwal
Proprietor
M.No. 090064

Place : Chandigarh
Date : June 30, 2020 
UDIN : 20090064AAAABC9551 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 
                                                                                                                                                                                                  of J T L Infra Limited

Rakesh Garg
Director

DIN: 00184081 

 Madan Mohan Singla 
                                                            Managing Director 

                                                                                                                                                                DIN: 00156668

Mohinder Singh
Company Secretary

PAN: BELPS5287P

Dhruv Singla 
    Chief Financial Officer 

    PAN: CGBPS9330L 
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020
 (Amount in Rs.) 

Par�culars   Year ended   Year ended
     31-Mar-20  31-Mar-19
Cash Flow from Opera�ng Ac�vi�es    
Net Profit/(Loss) before Tax    136,332,369    205,927,535 
Adjustment for :    -   -  
 Deprecia�on & Amor�sa�on Expense 14,832,360    7,360,000 
 Interest Income   (1,545,977)   (994,194)
 Interest Expense    33,314,043    19,906,807 
 Interest on Income Tax   790,120    2,635,387 
 Security deposit forfeited  -      (6,849,149)
 (Gain) / Loss on Sale of Investments -      (6,449)
Opera�ng Profit before working Capital Changes : 183,722,915    227,979,937 
Movements in Working Capital  : -   -  
 (Increase)/decrease in Trade Receivables 49,686,445    (241,736,353)
 (Increase)/decrease in Inventories (199,487,033)   (31,751,707)
 Increase/(decrease) in Trade payables 51,585,353    (141,586,585)
 Increase/(decrease) in Other liabili�es and Provisions (117,190,251)   138,095,238 
 (Increase)/decrease in Other financial assets and Other assets (124,050,036)   42,017,403 
Cash generated from Opera�ons : (155,732,607)   (6,982,067)
 Direct Taxes Paid    (49,160,402)   (39,304,236)
Net Cash flow from/(used in) Opera�ng Ac�vi�es (204,893,009)   (46,286,303)
Cash Flow from Inves�ng Ac�vi�es    
 Purchase of property, plant and equipment including capital work-in-progress (54,733,934)   (123,516,480)
 Movement in Investments   -      30,930 
 Movement Bank Deposit not considered as cash & cash equivalent (3,716,197)   (7,381,295)
 Interest Received  1,401,680    1,081,456 
 Profit on Sale of Investments -      6,449 
Net Cash flow from/(used in) Inves�ng Ac�vi�es  (57,048,451)   (129,778,940)
Cash Flow from Financing Ac�vi�es -  -   
 Proceeds from/ (repayment of) Long term borrowings (1,170,432)   902,246 
 Money received against share warrents -      60,800,000 
 Share Applica�on Money/Share Capital (Including Share Premium) received 70,300,000    -   
 Proceeds from/ (repayment of) in Short term borrowings 230,548,046    137,002,168 
 Interest Paid   (34,104,163)   (22,542,194)
Net Cash flow from/(used) in Financing Ac�vi�es  265,573,451    176,162,220 
Net Increase/Decrease in Cash & Cash Equivalents 3,631,991    96,977 
 Cash & Cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,760,183    1,663,206 
 Cash & Cash equivalents at the end of the year 5,392,174    1,760,183 
Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents    
Cash in Hand    5,367,121   1,708,170.00 
Balance with Scheduled Banks :    
 Current Accounts  25,053   52,013.00 
 Unpaid Dividend Accounts  5,392,174    1,760,183 
Add:- Term Deposits pledged with Scheduled banks -  - 
not considered as cash and cash equivalents -  - 
Less:- Fixed Deposits having maturity period more then 12 months -  - 
Cash and Bank Balances  5,392,174    1,760,183 

In terms of our report a�ached
As per our report of even date a�ached

For  Suresh K Aggarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN 021129N 

Suresh Kumar Aggarwal
Proprietor
M.No. 090064

Place : Chandigarh
Date : June 30, 2020 
UDIN : 20090064AAAABC9551 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 
                                                                                                                                                                                                  of J T L Infra Limited

Rakesh Garg
Director

DIN: 00184081 

 Madan Mohan Singla 
                                                            Managing Director 

                                                                                                                                                                DIN: 00156668

Mohinder Singh
Company Secretary

PAN: BELPS5287P

Dhruv Singla 
    Chief Financial Officer 

    PAN: CGBPS9330L 
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For  Suresh K Aggarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN 021129N 

Suresh Kumar Aggarwal
Proprietor
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Place : Chandigarh
Date : June 30, 2020 
UDIN : 20090064AAAABC9551 
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020
 (Amount in Rs.) 
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A. Equity Share Capital     

 Par�culars      No. of Shares In Rs.

Equity shares of Rs. 10/-  each Issued, Subscribed and fully paid up 

As at April 01, 2018        10,007,430   100,074,300 

Increase/(decrease) during the year      -     -   

As at March 31, 2019       10,007,430   100,074,300 

Increase/(decrease) during the year      600,000   6,000,000 

As at March 31, 2020       10,607,430   106,074,300 
     
B. Other Equity     

 Par�culars                                   Reserve and Surplus  Money received  Total other
     Capital Securi�es Retained against share   equity
      Reserve Premium Earnings warrants 

Balance as at April 1, 2018    1,320,012   1,228,369   132,767,837   -     135,316,218 

Profit for the year     -     -     145,012,740   -     145,012,740 

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit Plans   -     -     -     -     -   

Money received against share warrants   -     -     -     60,800,000   60,800,000 

Balance as at March 31, 2019    1,320,012   1,228,369   277,780,577   60,800,000   341,128,958 

Profit for the year     -     -     100,751,060   -     100,751,060 

Impact of the net defined benefit Plans    -     -     -     -     -   
on adop�on of Ind AS 19.

Money received against share warrants   27,900,000   97,200,000   -     (60,800,000)  64,300,000 

Balance as at March 31, 2020    29,220,012   98,428,369   378,531,637   -     506,180,018 
     
C) Descrip�on of the Purposes of Each Reserve Within Equity     

Reserve and Surplus:     

a)  Capital Reserve     
 Capital Reserve was created to address the inadequacy of capital funds in the event of addi�onal capital requirements.     
     
b)  Securi�es Premium     
 Securi�es premium is used to record premium received on issue of shares . This shall be u�lise in accordance with the provisions of  

the Companies Act 2013.     
     
c)  Retained Earnings     
 Retained earnings are the profits that the company has earned �ll date, less any transfer to general reserve, dividends or other 

distribu�on or the distribu�ons paid to the shareholders.     
     
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN EQUITY AS AT MARCH 31, 2020     

As per our report of even date a�ached
For  Suresh K Aggarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants

 FRN 021129N

Suresh Kumar Aggarwal
Proprietor
M.No. 090064

Place : Chandigarh
Date : June 30, 2020

  UDIN : 20090064AAAABC9551

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 
                                                                                                                                                                                                  of J T L Infra Limited

Rakesh Garg
Director

DIN: 00184081 

 Madan Mohan Singla 
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Mohinder Singh
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    Chief Financial Officer 
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 4  NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS   
 Par�culars    As at               As at 
      31-Mar-2020  31-Mar-2019
 Investments in Mutual Funds/Shares   178,416    178,416 
 Total      178,416    178,416 
 Aggregate amount of quoted investments   178,416    178,416 
 Market value of quoted investments   178,416    178,416 
    
 5  OTHERS NON-CURRENT ASSETS   
 Par�culars    As at  As at  
      31-Mar-2020  31-Mar-2019
 (Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)   
 Security Deposits    9,971,462    3,237,981 
 Total      9,971,462    3,237,981 
    
 6  INVENTORIES   
 Par�culars    As at As at
      31-Mar-2020 31-Mar-2019
 Raw Materials     240,053,681   111,543,537 
 Finished Goods    152,804,411    94,154,456 
 Consumables     21,988,473    12,981,566 
 Scrape & Wastage    5,292,147    1,972,120 
 Total      420,138,712    220,651,679 
    
 7  LOANS   
 Par�culars    As at   As at
      31-Mar-2020   31-Mar-2019
 Loan receivables considered good- secured   -      -   
 Loan receivables considered good- unsecured   229,759    2,061,818 
 Loan receivables which have significant increase in credit risk and -      -   
 Loan receivables- credit impaired   -      -   
 Total      229,759    2,061,818 
    
    8  TRADE RECEIVABLES
 Par�culars    As at  As at
      31-Mar-2020  31-Mar-2019
 Trade Receivables considered good - secured   -     -   
 Trade Receivables considered good - unsecured 507,156,777   556,843,222 
 Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk -     -   
 Trade receivables - credit impaired   -     -   
 Total     507,156,777   556,843,222 
    
 9  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS   
 Par�culars    As at  As at 
      31-Mar-2020  31-Mar-2019
 Cash in Hand     5,367,121    1,708,170 
 Balance with Banks in Current Accounts   25,053    52,013 
 Total      5,392,174    1,760,183
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 10  BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS   
  Par�culars    As at As at
      31-Mar-2020  31-Mar-2019
 Other Bank balances   
  Deposits with remaining maturity for less than 12 months 23,288,734   19,572,537 
 Total      23,288,734   19,572,537 
    
    11  OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
  Par�culars    As at As at
      31-Mar-2020  31-Mar-2019
 Interest Accrued on Term Deposits   323,807    179,510 
 Total      323,807    179,510 
    
    12  CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET)
  Par�culars    As at As at
      31-Mar-2020  31-Mar-2019
 Income Tax Recoverable    332,733   332,733 
 Total      332,733   332,733 
    
    13  OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
  Par�culars    As at As at
      31-Mar-2020  31-Mar-2019
 Advance to Suppliers    96,444,023   37,733,669 
 Advance for Capital Goods   4,281,036    -   
 Prepaid Expenses    277,306   271,302 
 Balance with Govt. Authori�es    
  GST Receivables    85,920,021    29,701,446 
  Others Receivables    56,302    -   
 Others Cheque Pending For Realisa�on   11,400,000   11,523,657 
 Total      198,378,688    79,230,074

 14  EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL    
 Par�culars    31-Mar-20  31-Mar-19
 Authorised Share Capital    
 17,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each (as on  31�� March, 2019 - 17,000,000  170,000,000   170,000,000
 Equity Shares @ 10 each)    
 Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares    
 10,607,430 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each (as on 31�� March, 2019 - 10,007,430  106,074,300   100,074,300
 Equity Shares @ 10 each)   
       106,074,300   100,074,300 

a) The company has single class of shares referred to as equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 each. Each holder of equity shares is 

en�tled to one vote per share. The dividend proposed, if any, by the Board of Directors, is subject to approval of the shareholders in 

the ensuing Annual General Mee�ng except in case of Interim Dividend. In the event of liquida�on of the company, the equity 

shareholders are eligible to receive the surplus assets remaining a�er se�lement of preferen�al amounts in propor�on to their 

shareholding.
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 4  NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS   
 Par�culars    As at               As at 
      31-Mar-2020  31-Mar-2019
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      31-Mar-2020  31-Mar-2019
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 Raw Materials     240,053,681   111,543,537 
 Finished Goods    152,804,411    94,154,456 
 Consumables     21,988,473    12,981,566 
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 7  LOANS   
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      31-Mar-2020   31-Mar-2019
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B) RECONCILIATION OF THE NUMBER OF SHARES
      31-Mar-20   31-Mar-19       
      No. of Shares  No. of Shares      
      held       held
Outstanding at the beginning of the year                10,007,430             10,007,430 
Add : Shares issued during the year                      600,000                    -   
Outstanding at the end of the year            10,607,430  10,007,430

C) SHARES HELD BY EACH SHAREHOLDER HOLDING MORE THAN 5% SHARES     
NAME OF THE SHAREHOLDER           31-Mar-20       31-Mar-19 
       Number     %  Number  % 
Vijay Kumar Singla    1,467,600  13.84% 1,467,600  13.84%
Madan Mohan Singla    1,439,700  13.57% 1,439,700  13.57%
Rakesh Garg     1,568,700  14.79% 1,418,700  13.37%
Jagan Industries Pvt Ltd    1,000,000  9.43% 1,000,000  9.43%
Mithan Lal Singla     596,700  5.63% 596,700  5.63%

D) DETAILS OF LAST FIVE YEARS SHARE TRANSACTIONS       
Par�culars    2019-20  2018-19   2017-18   2016-17    2015-16    2014-15 
Share Issue as Bonus  Nil  Nil   Nil   Nil   Nil   Nil 
Preferencial Allotment  600,000  Nil   Nil   Nil   Nil   Nil 
Share forfeited    Nil  Nil   Nil   Nil   Nil   Nil 

 15  OTHER EQUITY    
Par�culars    31-Mar-20  31-Mar-19
Reserve & Surplus    
Capital Reserve      29,220,012   1,320,012 
Securi�es Premium    98,428,369   1,228,369 
Retained Earnings (Surplus/(deficit))  378,531,637   277,780,577 
Money received against share warrants  -     60,800,000      
Total      506,180,018   341,128,958 
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16  NON-CURRENT BORROWINGS   
Par�culars       As at                                                      As at
      31-Mar-2020  31-Mar-2019
 Secured   
 Vehicle Loans from Banks and NBFC   2,156,299   3,326,731 
 Less :- Current Maturi�es (refer note-22)   1,323,697   1,200,334 
 Total    832,602   2,126,397 
(Vehicle loans secured against Hypotheca�on of respec�ve vehicles.)   
17  NON-CURRENT PROVISIONS   
Par�culars    As at As at
      31-Mar-2020  31-Mar-2019
Provisions for Employee Benefits :-   
 - Provision for Gratuity    3,817,437   3,315,145 
 Total    3,817,437   3,315,145 

18 TAXATION (INCLUDING DEFERRED TAXES)    (Amount is Rs.) 
   Par�culars   Year ended  Year ended 
       31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
  A.  Component of Income Tax Expenses    
  I. Tax expense recognised to Statement of Profit & Loss    
  a) Current Tax    
  -  Current year    32,163,637  53,034,535 
  -  Adjustment/(credits) related to previous years (net) -    -   
  Total (a)     32,163,637  53,034,535 
  b) Deferred Tax    
   - Rela�ng to origina�on & reversal of temporary differences 3,417,672  7,880,260 
   - Rela�ng to change in tax rate   -    
  Total (b)     3,417,672  7,880,260 
  Income tax expense reported in the Statement of Profit & Loss (a+b) 35,581,309  60,914,795 
  II. Tax on other Income/ Expenses    
  Deferred Tax    
  first �me adop�on of defined benefit plans- (Gain)/loss -    -   
  Total    -    -   
     
B.  Effec�ve tax Reconcilia�on    
  Numerical reconcilia�on of tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the latest statutory enacted tax rate in India to 

income tax expense reported is as follows:
   Par�culars   For the year ended For the year ended 
       31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
 Accoun�ng Profit before income tax  136,332,369  205,927,536 
 Enacted tax rates    25.17% 29.12%
 Tax on accoun�ng profit at above rate  34,312,131  59,966,098 
 Adjustments in respect of Current Income tax of Previous years -    -   
 Non-deduc�ble/(deduc�ble) expenses for Tax purposes    
  Dona�on     5,285  355,992 
  Other deduc�ons   -    (174,720)
  Interest on TDS   1,263,892  767,425 
  Difference due to capital gain tax rate @22.042% -    -   
 Income tax expense reported  35,581,308  60,914,795
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19  OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES   
   Par�culars  As at As at
      31-Mar-2020  31-Mar-2019
 Other Advances from Buyers   2,431,025   11,376,326 
 Total    2,431,025   11,376,326 
20  CURRENT BORROWINGS   
   Par�culars  As at As at
      31-Mar-2020  31-Mar-2019
 Working Capital Cash Credit   453,365,562   297,487,137 
 Packing Credit / Post Shipment loans secured   126,068,797   1,399,176 
 Loan from others    -     50,000,000 
 Total     579,434,359   348,886,313 
Working capital facili�es are secured on 1st charges basis by:   
a) Hypotheca�on of all goods  (i. e.  Raw Material,  Stock in process,  Finished goods),  book debts,  all movable assets and  
proper�es  stored or to be stored at Company's godown or in transit."   
b) Equatbale mortgage of :   
 (I) Company's land at Gholumajra, Derabssi, Punjab   
 (ii) Residen�al property at Panchkula, Haryana belonging the one of the director of the comoany and his rela�ve.   
 (iii) Land at Mo�a Khan, Mandi Govindgarh belonging to the Director's Partnership firm   
 (iv) Company's commercial building at SCO 18-19, Sector -28 C, Chandigarch    
 (v) Factory Land & Building sitatuated at Mangaon, Dis�. Raigad, Maharashtra   
c) Personal Guarntees of the all directors and co-owners of the property mortgaged to the bank.   
    
 21  TRADE PAYABLES   
   Par�culars  As at As at
      31-Mar-2020  31-Mar-2019
 Total Outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and small entreprises  -      -   
 Total Outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro Enterprises & Small Entreprises* 111,732,516   60,147,163 
 Total     111,732,516   60,147,163 
    
*Trade Payables include credit availed by the Company from banks for payment to suppliers for raw materials purchased by the 
Company. The arrangements are interest-bearing and are payable within one year   
    
    22  OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
   Par�culars  As at As at
      31-Mar-2020  31-Mar-2019
 Current Maturi�es of Long Term Borrowings   1,323,697   1,200,334 
 Salary & Wages Payable    2,882,043   2,698,316 
 Other Payables     3,416,923   4,575,246 
 Creditors for Capital Goods   7,177,340   5,152,651 
 Total    14,800,003   13,626,547 
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    22  OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
   Par�culars  As at As at
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 Current Maturi�es of Long Term Borrowings   1,323,697   1,200,334 
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23  OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES   
   Par�culars  As at As at
      31-Mar-2020  31-Mar-2019
 TDS Payables     501,582   706,498 
 GST Payables     216,179   -   
 EPF Payable     392,073   56,196 
 Cheque Issued But Not Cleared  2,814,782   123,933,108 
 Advances from Customers    28,889,312   16,004,311 
 Total     32,813,928   140,700,113 
24  CURRENT PROVISIONS   
   Par�culars  As at As at
      31-Mar-2020  31-Mar-2019
 Provisions for employee benefits :    
 Provision for Gratuity     172,887   59,348 
 Total     172,887   59,348 
25  REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS     
  Par�culars    Year ended Year ended
      31-Mar-2020   31-Mar-2019 
 Sale of Products     2,299,286,813    3,218,616,244  
 Other Opera�ng Revenue     
 Job Work Income    -      -    
 Total      2,299,286,813  3,218,616,244  
      
  Par�culars   Qty. (in tons) Amount   Qty. (in tons)  Amount  
 Galvanised Pipes   29,146.91  1,495,016,209  40380.373  2,170,343,936 
 Solar Structure    4,850.17  310,635,956 7480.252  530,301,091
 Others      493,634,648   517,971,217 
      
26  OTHER INCOME     
 Par�culars     Year ended    Year ended
       31-Mar-2020   31-Mar-2019 
 Interest Income earned on-      
 Fixed Deposits with banks 1,476,915     851,432  
 Others  69,062    142,762  
 Other Non-Opera�ng Income  -      -    
 Brokerage, Commission and Discount 18,480,912    333,855  
 Gain on sale of Short Term Investments    -      6,449  
 Security deposited forfeited  -      6,849,149  
 Profit on foreign currency transac�on and transla�on 5,786,623     
 Others  1,664,102     
 Total   27,477,614    8,183,647   
      
 27  COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED     
 Par�culars     Year ended   Year ended
       31-Mar-2020   31-Mar-2019 
 Opening Stock      124,525,103   121,802,440  
 Add :- Purchases     2,171,207,003    2,762,791,505  
 Add: Direct Expenses     61,571,362    105,645,373  
 Less :- Closing Stock     262,042,154    124,525,103  
 Total       2,095,261,314    2,865,714,215 
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 28  CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, STOCK-IN-TRADE AND WORK-IN-PROGRESS     
   Par�culars  Year ended Year ended
      31-Mar-2020 31-Mar-2019 
 Opening stock of inventory     
 Finished Goods    96,126,576  67,097,532   
 Closing stock of inventory     
 Finished Goods    158,096,558    96,126,576  
 Work-in-Progress    -      -    
 Total      (61,969,982)   (29,029,044) 
      
 29  EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES     
   Par�culars  Year ended Year ended
      31-Mar-2020   31-Mar-2019 
 Salary & wages     20,698,668    7,539,059  
 Directors Remunera�on    5,400,000    5,400,000  
 PF and ESI Contribu�on    692,118    687,390  
 Staff Welfare expenses    1,281,180    590,211  
 Other Benefits     4,008,309    5,250,325  
 Total      32,080,275  19,466,985  
 
30  FINANCE COSTS     
   Par�culars  Year ended Year ended
      31-Mar-2020   31-Mar-2019 
 Interest on:-     
 Working Capital Loans    24,928,185    19,641,426  
 Vehicle Loans     243,046    265,381  
 Unsecured Loan    4,466,764    -    
 Interest on Income Tax    2,905,973    2,635,387  
 Loss on foreign currency transac�on and transla�on  -      4,430,926  
 Bank Charges     4,270,376    3,320,337  
 Other Borrowing Costs    3,676,048    1,383,845  
 Total      40,490,392    31,677,302  

31  DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE     
   Par�culars  Year ended Year ended
      31-Mar-2020   31-Mar-2019 
 Deprecia�on on Tangible Assets   14,832,360    7,360,000  
 Total      14,832,360    7,360,000
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 Par�culars     Year ended   Year ended
       31-Mar-2020   31-Mar-2019 
 Opening Stock      124,525,103   121,802,440  
 Add :- Purchases     2,171,207,003    2,762,791,505  
 Add: Direct Expenses     61,571,362    105,645,373  
 Less :- Closing Stock     262,042,154    124,525,103  
 Total       2,095,261,314    2,865,714,215 
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 28  CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, STOCK-IN-TRADE AND WORK-IN-PROGRESS     
   Par�culars  Year ended Year ended
      31-Mar-2020 31-Mar-2019 
 Opening stock of inventory     
 Finished Goods    96,126,576  67,097,532   
 Closing stock of inventory     
 Finished Goods    158,096,558    96,126,576  
 Work-in-Progress    -      -    
 Total      (61,969,982)   (29,029,044) 
      
 29  EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES     
   Par�culars  Year ended Year ended
      31-Mar-2020   31-Mar-2019 
 Salary & wages     20,698,668    7,539,059  
 Directors Remunera�on    5,400,000    5,400,000  
 PF and ESI Contribu�on    692,118    687,390  
 Staff Welfare expenses    1,281,180    590,211  
 Other Benefits     4,008,309    5,250,325  
 Total      32,080,275  19,466,985  
 
30  FINANCE COSTS     
   Par�culars  Year ended Year ended
      31-Mar-2020   31-Mar-2019 
 Interest on:-     
 Working Capital Loans    24,928,185    19,641,426  
 Vehicle Loans     243,046    265,381  
 Unsecured Loan    4,466,764    -    
 Interest on Income Tax    2,905,973    2,635,387  
 Loss on foreign currency transac�on and transla�on  -      4,430,926  
 Bank Charges     4,270,376    3,320,337  
 Other Borrowing Costs    3,676,048    1,383,845  
 Total      40,490,392    31,677,302  

31  DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE     
   Par�culars  Year ended Year ended
      31-Mar-2020   31-Mar-2019 
 Deprecia�on on Tangible Assets   14,832,360    7,360,000  
 Total      14,832,360    7,360,000
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   32 OTHER EXPENSES
 Par�culars   Year ended  Y  ear ended
     31-Mar-2020 31-Mar-2019
Auditors Remunera�on                         100,000                  100,000 
Adver�sement & Publicity                          212,675             81,695 
Service Charges                     12,592,918           11,387,607 
Clearing, Forwarding & Freight                   40,312,624         97,783,957 
Discount Allowed                      2,483,253         2,168,739 
Computer Expenses                            38,040                 75,638 
Office Expenses                          676,239               239,963 
Business Promo�on Expenses                          762,870                662,168 
Insurance Charges                          407,481               514,847 
CSR Exp                                       -    1,200,000 
Misc. Expenses                          528,887                 116,473 
Dona�on                             21,000  22,500 
Postage Expenses                          110,266              64,614 
Prin�ng & Sta�onary                          175,862                   258,944 
Fee & Taxes                       5,257,582              4,338,316 
Repairs & Maintenance                      1,111,628           1,680,804 
Telephone & Internet Charges                          279,150                   385,849 
Tour & Travelling Exp.                      1,721,812              3,523,169 
Vehicle Running & Maintenance                      2,584,702             1,077,614 
Rent Expenses                          360,710   -   
Total    69,737,699               125,682,897
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33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company’s ac�vi�es expose it to a variety of financial risks namely market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s 
primary risk management focus is to minimize poten�al adverse effects of market risk on its financial performance. The Company’s 
risk management assessment and policies and processes are established to iden�fy and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to 
set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor such risks and compliance with the same.

Risk assessment and management policies and processes are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market condi�ons and The 
Company’s ac�vi�es. The Board of Directors and the Audit Commi�ee is responsible for overseeing The Company’s risk assessment 
and management policies and processes.

The Company’s financial risk management policy is set by the management. Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair 
values or future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of a financial instrument. The value of a financial instrument 
may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, equity prices and other market changes 
that affect market risk sensi�ve instruments. The Company manages market risk which evaluates and exercises independent 
control over the en�re process of market risk management. The management recommends risk management objec�ves and 
policies, which are approved by Senior Management and the Audit Commi�ee.

(A) CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to The Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its 
contractual obliga�ons, and arises principally from The Company’s receivables from customers. Credit risk arises from cash held 
with banks as well as credit exposure to clients, including outstanding accounts receivable. The maximum exposure to credit risk is 
equal to the carrying value of the financial assets. The objec�ve of managing counterparty credit risk is to prevent losses in financial 
assets. The Company assesses the credit quality of the counterpar�es, taking into account their financial posi�on, past experience 
and other factors. The Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its expected credit losses in respect of 
trade and other receivables. The management uses a simplified approach for the purpose of computa�on of expected credit loss 
for trade receivables.

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteris�cs of each customer. The demographics of 
the customer, including the default risk of the industry and country, in which the customer operates, also has an influence on credit 
risk assessment. Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits, con�nuously monitoring the credit 
worthiness of customers to which The Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business and through regular 
monitoring of conduct of accounts. The Company also holds security deposits for outstanding trade receivables which mi�gate the 
credit risk to some extent.

An impairment analysis is performed at each repor�ng date on an individual basis for major customers. The history of trade 
receivables shows a negligible provision for bad and doub�ul debts. The management believes that no further provision is 
necessary in respect of trade receivables based on historical trends of these customers. Further, The Company's exposure to 
customers is diversified and no single customer has significant contribu�on to trade receivable balances.
In respect of Financial guarantees provided by The Company to banks & financial ins�tu�ons, the maximum exposure which The 
Company is exposed to is the maximum amount which The Company would have to pay if the guarantee is called upon. Based on 
the expecta�on at the end of the repor�ng period, The Company considers that it is more likely than not that such an amount will 
not be payable under the guarantees provided.

(B) MARKET RISK

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 
prices. Market prices comprise two types of risk: interest rate risk and other price risks, such as equity price risk and commodity 
risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits and investments. Interest rate risk is the 
risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. This is 
based on the financial assets and financial liabili�es held as at March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019.

The sensi�vity analysis excludes the impact of movements in market variables on the carrying value of post-employment benefit 
obliga�ons provisions and on the non-financial assets and liabili�es. The sensi�vity of the relevant Statement of Profit and Loss 
item is the effect of the assumed changes in the respec�ve market risks. The Company’s ac�vi�es expose it to various financial risks 
mainly interest rates. 
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   32 OTHER EXPENSES
 Par�culars   Year ended  Y  ear ended
     31-Mar-2020 31-Mar-2019
Auditors Remunera�on                         100,000                  100,000 
Adver�sement & Publicity                          212,675             81,695 
Service Charges                     12,592,918           11,387,607 
Clearing, Forwarding & Freight                   40,312,624         97,783,957 
Discount Allowed                      2,483,253         2,168,739 
Computer Expenses                            38,040                 75,638 
Office Expenses                          676,239               239,963 
Business Promo�on Expenses                          762,870                662,168 
Insurance Charges                          407,481               514,847 
CSR Exp                                       -    1,200,000 
Misc. Expenses                          528,887                 116,473 
Dona�on                             21,000  22,500 
Postage Expenses                          110,266              64,614 
Prin�ng & Sta�onary                          175,862                   258,944 
Fee & Taxes                       5,257,582              4,338,316 
Repairs & Maintenance                      1,111,628           1,680,804 
Telephone & Internet Charges                          279,150                   385,849 
Tour & Travelling Exp.                      1,721,812              3,523,169 
Vehicle Running & Maintenance                      2,584,702             1,077,614 
Rent Expenses                          360,710   -   
Total    69,737,699               125,682,897

www.jtlinfra.com

ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20

33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company’s ac�vi�es expose it to a variety of financial risks namely market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s 
primary risk management focus is to minimize poten�al adverse effects of market risk on its financial performance. The Company’s 
risk management assessment and policies and processes are established to iden�fy and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to 
set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor such risks and compliance with the same.

Risk assessment and management policies and processes are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market condi�ons and The 
Company’s ac�vi�es. The Board of Directors and the Audit Commi�ee is responsible for overseeing The Company’s risk assessment 
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The Company’s financial risk management policy is set by the management. Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair 
values or future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of a financial instrument. The value of a financial instrument 
may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, equity prices and other market changes 
that affect market risk sensi�ve instruments. The Company manages market risk which evaluates and exercises independent 
control over the en�re process of market risk management. The management recommends risk management objec�ves and 
policies, which are approved by Senior Management and the Audit Commi�ee.

(A) CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to The Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its 
contractual obliga�ons, and arises principally from The Company’s receivables from customers. Credit risk arises from cash held 
with banks as well as credit exposure to clients, including outstanding accounts receivable. The maximum exposure to credit risk is 
equal to the carrying value of the financial assets. The objec�ve of managing counterparty credit risk is to prevent losses in financial 
assets. The Company assesses the credit quality of the counterpar�es, taking into account their financial posi�on, past experience 
and other factors. The Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its expected credit losses in respect of 
trade and other receivables. The management uses a simplified approach for the purpose of computa�on of expected credit loss 
for trade receivables.

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteris�cs of each customer. The demographics of 
the customer, including the default risk of the industry and country, in which the customer operates, also has an influence on credit 
risk assessment. Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits, con�nuously monitoring the credit 
worthiness of customers to which The Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business and through regular 
monitoring of conduct of accounts. The Company also holds security deposits for outstanding trade receivables which mi�gate the 
credit risk to some extent.

An impairment analysis is performed at each repor�ng date on an individual basis for major customers. The history of trade 
receivables shows a negligible provision for bad and doub�ul debts. The management believes that no further provision is 
necessary in respect of trade receivables based on historical trends of these customers. Further, The Company's exposure to 
customers is diversified and no single customer has significant contribu�on to trade receivable balances.
In respect of Financial guarantees provided by The Company to banks & financial ins�tu�ons, the maximum exposure which The 
Company is exposed to is the maximum amount which The Company would have to pay if the guarantee is called upon. Based on 
the expecta�on at the end of the repor�ng period, The Company considers that it is more likely than not that such an amount will 
not be payable under the guarantees provided.

(B) MARKET RISK

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 
prices. Market prices comprise two types of risk: interest rate risk and other price risks, such as equity price risk and commodity 
risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits and investments. Interest rate risk is the 
risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. This is 
based on the financial assets and financial liabili�es held as at March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019.

The sensi�vity analysis excludes the impact of movements in market variables on the carrying value of post-employment benefit 
obliga�ons provisions and on the non-financial assets and liabili�es. The sensi�vity of the relevant Statement of Profit and Loss 
item is the effect of the assumed changes in the respec�ve market risks. The Company’s ac�vi�es expose it to various financial risks 
mainly interest rates. 
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(C)LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obliga�ons as they become due. The Company 
manages its liquidity risk by ensuring, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabili�es when due.
Ul�mate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, which has established an appropriate 
liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Company's short-term, medium-term and long-term funding and 
liquidity management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facili�es and 
commi�ed borrowing facili�es, by con�nuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles 
of financial assets and liabili�es and by monitoring rolling forecasts of its liquidity requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash to 
meet opera�onal needs while maintaining sufficient headroom on its undrawn commi�ed borrowing facili�es at all �mes so that 
the Company does not breach borrowing limits or covenants (where applicable) on any of its borrowing facili�es.
The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturi�es of financial liabili�es including es�mated interest payments 
based on contractual undiscounted payments.

Par�culars   Carrying Amount On Demand Less than 1 year  1 to 5 years    Total

As at March 31, 2020       

Borrowings   581,590,658    -    580,758,056    832,602    581,590,658 

Other Financial Liabilites  13,476,306    -    13,476,306    -      13,476,306 

Trade Payables   111,732,516    -    111,732,516    -      111,732,516 

Total     706,799,480    -    705,966,878    832,602    706,799,480 

As at March 31, 2019       

Borrowings   352,213,044    -    350,086,647    2,126,397    352,213,044 

Other Financial Liabilites  12,426,213    -    12,426,213    -      12,426,213 

Trade Payables   60,147,163    -    60,147,163    -      60,147,163 

Total     424,786,420    -    422,660,023    2,126,397    424,786,420

(Amount in Rs.)

(D) COMPETITION AND PRICE RISK       

The Company faces compe��on from local compe�tors. Nevertheless, it believes that it has compe��ve advantage in terms of high 
quality products and by con�nuously upgrading its exper�se and range of products to meet the needs of its customers.       

(E) INTEREST RATE RISK       

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s 
long-term debt obliga�ons with floa�ng interest rates.       

The Company’s investments in term deposits (i.e., margin money) with banks are for short dura�ons, and therefore do not expose 
The Company to significant interest rates risk.       

(F) CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND OBJECTIVES       

“The Company’s objec�ve while managing capital is to safeguard its ability to con�nue as a going concern (so that it is enabled to 
provide returns and create value for its shareholders, and benefits for other stakeholders), support business stability and growth, 
ensure adherence to the covenants and restric�ons imposed by lenders and / or relevant laws and regula�ons, and maintain an 
op�mal and efficient capital structure so as to reduce the cost of capital and to maximise shareholders value. In order to maintain or 
adjust the capital structure, The Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue 
new shares, obtain new borrowings or sell assets to reduce debt, etc. The Company manages its capital structure and makes 
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic condi�ons or its business requirements and the requirements of the financial 
covenants. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ra�o, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. Net debt is 
calculated as interest bearing loans and borrowings less cash and cash equivalents."
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Par�culars        As at          As at 
         March 31, 2020      March 31, 2019
Debt         581,590,658   352,213,044 
Less: Cash and Cash Equivalents       28,680,908   21,332,720
Net Debt         552,909,750   330,880,324 
Total Equity         612,254,318   441,203,258 
Total Capital including Debt       1,165,164,068   772,083,582 
Gearing Ra�o        47.45%    42.86%

THE GEARING RATIO AT THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD WAS AS FOLLOWS:

In order to achieve this overall objec�ve, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets 
financial covenants a�ached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in 
mee�ng the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches of 
the financial covenants of any interest bearing loans and borrowing for reported periods.       

(G) CHANGES IN LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES       

"With effect from 01.04.2017, the Company adopted the amendments to Ind AS 7 - Statement of cash flows. The amendments 
require en��es to provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabili�es arising from 
financing ac�vi�es, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes. To the extent necessary to sa�sfy this 
requirement, an en�ty discloses the following changes in liabili�es arising from financing ac�vi�es:• Changes from financing cash 
flows

•  Changes arising from obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries or other businesses

•  The effect of changes in foreign exchange rates

•  Changes in fair values

•  Other changes

Paragraph 44C of Ind AS 7 states that liabili�es arising from financing ac�vi�es are liabili�es for which cash flows were, or future 
cash flows will be, classified in the statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing ac�vi�es. In addi�on, the disclosure 
requirement in paragraph 44A also applies to changes in financial assets (for example, assets that hedge liabili�es arising from 
financing ac�vi�es) if cash flows from those financial assets were, or future cash flows will be, included in cash flows from financing 
ac�vi�es."      

The Company disclosed informa�on about its interest-bearing loans and borrowings. There are no obliga�ons under finance lease 
and hire purchase contracts.   

The amendments suggest that the disclosure requirement may be met by providing a reconcilia�on between the opening and 
closing balances in the statement of financial posi�on for liabili�es arising from financing ac�vi�es. The Company decided to 
provide informa�on in a reconcilia�on format. The major changes in the Company’s liabili�es arising from financing ac�vi�es are 
due to financing cash flows and accrual of financial liabili�es. The Company did not acquire any liabili�es arising from financing 
ac�vi�es during business combina�ons effected in the current period or compara�ve period. 
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Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obliga�ons as they become due. The Company 
manages its liquidity risk by ensuring, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabili�es when due.
Ul�mate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, which has established an appropriate 
liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Company's short-term, medium-term and long-term funding and 
liquidity management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facili�es and 
commi�ed borrowing facili�es, by con�nuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles 
of financial assets and liabili�es and by monitoring rolling forecasts of its liquidity requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash to 
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The Company’s investments in term deposits (i.e., margin money) with banks are for short dura�ons, and therefore do not expose 
The Company to significant interest rates risk.       
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Total Capital including Debt       1,165,164,068   772,083,582 
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I. Current interest bearing   348,886,313    230,548,046    -      -     -     579,434,359 
loans and borrowings 
(excluding items listed below)  
ii. Current maturi�es of   1,200,334    (1,200,334)   -      -    1,323,697   1,323,697 
term borrowings Long  
iii. Non-current interest-  2,126,397    29,902    -      -    (1,323,697)  832,602 
bearing loans and borrowings 
(excluding items listed below) 
iv. Interest accrued on   -      (34,104,163)   -      -    34,104,163   -   
borrowings     
Total liabili�es from  352,213,044    195,273,451    -      -    34,104,163  581,590,658  
financing ac�vi�es  

01.04.2019
(opening balance 
of current year)  

Cash Flows
Non-cash changes

Foreign exchange 
movement

Fair value 
changes

Others
31.03.2020  

(closing balance of 
current year)

I. Current interest bearing   211,884,145 137,002,168  -        -    -     348,886,313 
loans and borrowings 
(excluding items listed below)               
ii. Current maturi�es of Long  841,674 (841,674)  -              - 1,200,334 1,200,334
term borrowings                         
iii. Non-current interest-  1,582,811  1,743,920    -   -   (1,200,334) 2,126,397
bearing loans and borrowings 
(excluding items listed below)                     
iv. Interest accrued on  -     (22,542,194)   -  -         22,542,194   - 
borrowings                                                                                                                    
Total liabili�es from financing  214,308,630 115,362,220   -  -           22,542,194  352,213,044 
ac�vi�es            

01.04.2018  
(opening balance 
of compara�ve 

period)

Cash Flows
Non-cash changes

Foreign exchange 
movement

Fair value 
changes

Others
31.03.2019  

(closing balance of 
compara�ve period)

The ‘Other’ column includes the effect of reclassifica�on of non-current por�on of interest-bearing loans and borrowings to 
current due to the passage of �me, and the effect of accrued but not yet paid interest on interest bearing loans and borrowings. 
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34 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT    
The carrying value of financial instruments by categories is as follows:    
 
   Par�culars As at March 31, 2020  As at March 31, 2019 
     Carrying Amount Fair Value Carrying Amount Fair Value
 Financial assets    
 Investments    178,416  178,416   178,416   178,416 
 Loans & Advances   229,759  229,759   2,061,818   2,061,818 
 Trade Receivables   507,156,777  507,156,777   556,843,222   556,843,222 
 Cash and cash equivalents 5,392,174  5,392,174   1,760,183   1,760,183 
 Bank Balances other than cash   23,288,734  23,288,734   19,572,537   19,572,537 
 & cash equivalents 
 Other Financial Assets   323,807  323,807   179,510   179,510 
 Total    536,569,667  536,569,667   580,595,686   580,595,686 
 Financial Liabili�es    
 Borrowings    580,266,961  580,266,961   351,012,710   351,012,710 
 Other Financial Liabili�es - Current 14,800,003  14,800,003   13,626,547   13,626,547 
 Trade and other payables 111,732,516  111,732,516   60,147,163   60,147,163 
 Total    706,799,480  706,799,480   424,786,420   424,786,420 

Notes:-

1 Financial instruments carried at amor�sed cost such as trade receivables, loans and advances, other financial assets, 
borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabili�es are considered to be same as their fair values, due to short term 
nature.

2 For financial assets & liabili�es that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values.

3 Investments : where most recent informa�on to measure fair value is insufficient and where the fair value of these investments 
cannot be reliably measured, or if there is a wide range of possible fair value measurements, cost has been considered as the 
best es�mate of fair value.
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I. Current interest bearing   348,886,313    230,548,046    -      -     -     579,434,359 
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financing ac�vi�es  

01.04.2019
(opening balance 
of current year)  

Cash Flows
Non-cash changes

Foreign exchange 
movement

Fair value 
changes

Others
31.03.2020  

(closing balance of 
current year)
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iii. Non-current interest-  1,582,811  1,743,920    -   -   (1,200,334) 2,126,397
bearing loans and borrowings 
(excluding items listed below)                     
iv. Interest accrued on  -     (22,542,194)   -  -         22,542,194   - 
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current due to the passage of �me, and the effect of accrued but not yet paid interest on interest bearing loans and borrowings. 
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35 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS     
      
    (  Amount in Rs.)1 EXPENSE RECOGNISED FOR DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN
   Par�culars   Year ended  Year ended
      March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
   Company's contribu�on to provident fund 348,067   227,501 
   Total   348,067  227,501 
  
    (  Amount in Rs.)2 MOVEMENT IN DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
   Par�culars   Year ended  Year ended
      March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
   "Present value of obliga�on as at the beginning of the period" 3,374,493   2,206,984 
   Current service cost  1,154,487   1,126,937 
   Interest cost   258,149   172,145 
   Benefits paid   -     -   
   Remeasurements - actuarial loss/ (gain) (796,805)  (131,573)
   "Present value of obliga�on as at the  End of the period" 3,990,324   3,374,493 
        
     (Amount in Rs.)3 MOVEMENT IN PLAN ASSETS - GRATUITY 
   Par�culars   Year Ended Year Ended
      March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
    Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year  -      -   
    Acquisi�ons / Transfer in/ Transfer out   -     -   
    Expected return on plan assets   -     -   
    Employer contribu�ons   -     -   
   Benefits paid   -     -   
   Actuarial gain/ (loss)  -     -   
    Fair value of plan assets at end of year   -     -   
    Present value of obliga�on   -     -   
    Net funded status of plan   -     -   
    Actual return on plan assets   -     -   
      
     (Amount in Rs.) 4 RECOGNISED IN PROFIT AND LOSS 
   Par�culars   Defined Benefit Plan-Gratuity  
       Year ended   Year ended 
       March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019
   Employee Benefit Expenses :    
   Current service cost  1,126,937  1,126,937 
   Past service cost    -    -   
   Finance costs  :    
   Interest cost   258,149  172,145 
   Interest income    -    -   
   Net impact on profit (before tax)  1,385,086  1,299,082 

  5 RECOGNISED IN OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME    (Amount in Rs.)  
   Par�culars   Defined Benefit Plan- Gratuity  
       Year ended   Year ended 
       March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019
   Remeasurement - Acturial loss/(gain)    
   For the year ended  -     - 

www.jtlinfra.com

ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20

  6 THE PRINCIPAL ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS USED FOR ESTIMATING THE COMPANY’S DEFINED BENEFIT  
OBLIGATIONS ARE SET OUT BELOW:    

  
  Weighted average actuarial assump�ons  As at As at
       March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
     FINANCIAL/ECONOMIC ASSUMPTIONS 
  Discount rate (per annum)  6.92% 7.65%
  Salary escala�on rate (per annum)  5.50% 5.50%
      DEMOGRAPHIC ASSUMPTIONS
  Re�rement age   60 years 60 years
  Mortality table   100% of IALM  100% of IALM
      (2012-14) (2006-08)
  WITHDRAWAL RATES    
  Ages (years)    
  Up to 30 Years   5.00% 5.00%
  From 31 to 44 years   3.00% 3.00%
  Above 44 years   2.00% 2.00%

Notes:-

(I)  The actuarial valua�on of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obliga�on were carried out as at March 31, 
2020. The present value of the defined benefit obliga�on and the related current service cost and past service cost, were 
measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

(ii)  Discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government securi�es as at the Balance Sheet date for the 
es�mated term of the obliga�ons.

(iii) The salary escala�on rate is arrived a�er taking into considera�on the infla�on, seniority, promo�on and other relevant 
factors on long term basis.

  7 SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS    
  The sensi�vity of the overall plan obliga�ons to changes in the key assump�ons are:    
  Par�culars   As at As at
       March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
a) Impact of the change in discount rate    
Present Value of Obliga�on at the end of the period 3,990,324  3,374,493 
(a) Impact due to increase of  0.50%  (209,585) (202,453)
(b) Impact due to decrease of  0.50 %  228,891  222,134 
     
b) Impact of the change in salary increase    
Present Value of Obliga�on at the end of the period 3,990,324  3,374,493 
(a) Impact due to increase of  0.50%  230,971  225,762 
(b) Impact due to decrease of  0.50 %  (213,248) (207,321)
     
  8 MATURITY PROFILE OF DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATION    (Amount in Rs.)
  Par�culars   As at As at
       March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019
  Weighted average dura�on of the defined benefit obliga�on    
  Expected benefit payments within next-    
  0 to 1 Year    172,887   59,348 
  1 to 2 Year    82,719   40,345 
  2 to 3 Year    358,209   46,939 
  3 to 4 Year    156,686   138,106 
  4 to 5 Year    146,353   118,352 
  5 to 6 Year    138,495   120,245 
  6 Year onwards    2,934,975   2,851,158
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  3 to 4 Year    156,686   138,106 
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     (Amount in Rs.) 9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PROVISION
   Par�culars   Year Ended Year Ended
       March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
   Gratuity   3,990,324  3,374,493 
   Total   3,990,324  3,374,493 
     
  10  CURRENT AND NON CURRENT PROVISION FOR GRATUITY     (Amount in Rs.)
   Par�culars   Defined Benefit Plan- Gratuity  
       As at  As at 
       March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
   Current provision  172,887  59,348 
   Non current provision  3,817,437  3,315,145 
   Total provision   3,990,324  3,374,493 

36  CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (TO THE EXTENT NOT PROVIDED FOR)       
       (Amount in Rs.)
   Par�culars   As at  As at
      March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
  a)  Guarantees issued by the Company's bankers on behalf of the Company 13,629,906  29,956,482
       
  b)  Disputed Excise duty, Custom Duty and service tax cenvat credit -  - 
       
  c)  Income tax demands against which company has preferred appeals 16,470,570  13,675,740
       

The income tax & sales tax liabili�es have been provided based on the return filled with the authori�es. The addi�onal liabili�es , if 
any arising at the �ming of finaliza�on of assessment year will be provided in the year of comple�on of assessment proceedings.      

It is not possible to predict the outcome of the pending li�ga�ons with accuracy, the Company believes, based on legal opinions 
received, that it has meritorious defenses to the claims. The management believe the pending ac�ons will not require ou�low of 
resources embodying economic benefits and will not have a material adverse effect upon the results of the opera�ons, cash flows 
or financial condi�on of the Company.
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37 SEGMENT INFORMATION      

The Company’s business opera�ons predominantly relates to manufacture of single product i.e. ERW pipes for selling worldwide. 
In view of this there may be product as primary segment and geography as secondary segment. All the machines, building, other 
infrastructure, materials and consumables are used commonly/interchangeably and it is not possible and prac�cal to allocate 
revenue, profit/loss, assets or liabili�es to any par�cular size, customer market etc. nor the specified parameters are applicable to 
any par�cular size, customer, market etc. dis�nguishing it as a reportable item under specified headings. However revenue from 
export (outside India) and home (within India) is given under geographical segment as under.     
  
   (Amount in Rs.)       INFORMATION ABOUT REPORTABLE SEGMENT
  Par�culars   Year ended  Year ended
      March 31, 2020   March 31, 2019 
  External revenue in the above reportable business segment 2,299,286,813  3,218,616,244 
       
       INFORMATION ABOUT GEOGRAPHICAL AREAS
  a. Revenue from external customers  (Amount in Rs.)      
  Par�culars   Year ended  Year ended
      March 31, 2020   March 31, 2019 
  Within India   1,837,839,121  2,759,263,004 
  Outside India  461,447,692  459,353,240 
  Total   2,299,286,813  3,218,616,244 
  
  b. Non current assets (other than financial instruments and tax assets)  (Amount in Rs.)      
  Par�culars   As at  As at
      March 31, 2020   March 31, 2019
  Within India   246,726,457  198,066,712 
  Outside India  -    -   
  Total   246,726,457  198,066,712 
       
  c. Informa�on about major customer :    
   There are no major customers contribu�ng to more than 10% of the total revenue.    
       
38 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE:      
  (i) Names of related par�es and nature of rela�onships:     
  a) Key managerial personnel:     
   i)  Mr. Madan Mohan Singla (Managing Director)   
   ii)  Mr. Vijay Singla  (Whole �me Director)   
   iii)  Mr. Mithan Lal Singla  (Non Execu�ve Director)   
   iv)  Mr. Rakesh Garg (Whole �me Director)   
   v)  Mr. Dhruv Singla (Chief Financial Officer)   
   vi)  Mr. Mohinder Singh (Company Secretary)   
       
  b) Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by key managerial personnel:    
   i)  Chetan Industries Limited    
   ii)  Jagan Industries Private Limited
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  (ii) Transac�ons with related par�es during the year :   (Amount in Rs.)      
  
  Nature of Transac�ons  Nature of Rela�onship   Year ended  Year ended
      March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 
   Sales of goods and services      
   Chetan Industries Limited  Enterprises  -      -   
     owned or 
     significantly 
  Jagan Industries Private Limited influenced by  387,747,580  20,416,309
     Key Managerial 
     Personnel  
    Purchase of goods and services      
   Chetan Industries Limited  Enterprises  18,811,771  93,703,052
     owned or 
     significantly 
  Jagan Industries Private Limited influenced by  3,342,993  57,584,108
      Key Managerial   
     Personnel    
   Compensa�on to  Key Management Personnel      
      - Short-term employee benefits  Key Management  6,530,000  6,450,000 
  - Post-employment benefits  Personnel  -      -   
  - Other long-term benefits   -      -   
  - Termina�on benefits   -      -   
  - Share-based payment   -      -   
      
As the future liability for gratuity is provided on an actuarial basis for the company as a whole, the amount pertaining to 
individual is not ascertainable and therefore not included above. 
     
          (Amount in Rs.)      
  Balance outstanding   Nature of  As at   As at 
     Rela�onship March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
  Compensa�on to  Key Management Personnel     
   Madan Mohan Singla  Key Management   -      -   
   Vijay Singla    Personnel -      -   
   Rakesh Garg    -      -   
   Dhruv Singla    -      -   
   Mohinder Singh    49,995  
           
   Chetan Industries Limited  Enterprises owned  -      -   
     or significantly 
  Jagan Industries Private Limited influenced by Key  -      -
     Managerial 
     Personnel  
  Trade Receivables      
   Chetan Industries Limited  Enterprises owned 
     or significantly -      -   
     influenced 
  Jagan Industries Private Limited by Key Managerial  -      -
     Personnel 
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39 EARNINGS PER SHARE      
The following is a reconcilia�on of the equity shares used in the computa�on of basic and diluted earnings per equity share:      
  Par�culars   Year ended  Year ended
      March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
  Issued Equity Shares   10,607,430  10,007,430 
  Weighted average shares outstanding - Basic and Diluted (A) 10,156,610  10,007,430 
       
Net profit available to equity holders of the Company used in the basic and diluted earnings per share was determined as follows:      
  Par�culars   Year ended  Year ended 
      March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
  Profit/(Loss) a�er tax   100,751,060  145,012,741 
  Profit/(Loss) a�er tax for EPS (B)  100,751,060  145,012,741 
  Basic Earnings per share (B/A)  9.92  14.49 
  Diluted Earnings per share (B/A)  9.92  14.49 

40 DETAILS OF DUES TO MICRO SMALL & MEDIUM ENTERPRISES DEVELOPMENT (MSMED) ACT, 2006      
  Par�culars   As at  As at 
      March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
  (a)  The principal amount & the interest due thereon  remaining unpaid at the end 
   of the year      
       Principal Amount  -    -   
       Interest Due thereon  -    -   
  (b)  Payments made to suppliers beyond the appointed day during the year      
       Principal Amount  -    -   
       Interest Due thereon  -    -   
  (c)  The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making 
   payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the 
   year) but without adding the interest specified under Micro Small and 
   Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 -    -   
  (d)  The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the 
   year; and   -    -   
  (e)  The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the 
   succeeding years, un�l such date when the interest dues as above are 
   actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as 
   a deduc�ble expenditure under sec�on 23 of the Micro Small and Medium 
   Enterprise Development Act, 2006.  -    -   

42 IN LIGHT OF SECTION 135 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013, THE COMPANY HAS INCURRED EXPENSES ON CORPORATE     
  SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) AGGREGATING (PREVIOUS YEAR RS. 1,200,000).      
  Disclosure in respect of CSR expenditure is as follows:      
  Par�culars   Year ended  Year ended
      March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019
  a) Gross amount required to be spent by The Company during  the year 2,335,812  1,204,592 
  b)  Amount spent during the year on the following:       
   1. Construc�on/acquisi�on of asset      
   2. On purposes other than 1 above  *Nil    1,200,000

* To crub the outspread of COVID-19 pandemic, certain safety and restric�ve measures were adopted by the Company in its plants and offices 
from the very beginning of the March 2020, therea�er, complete lockdown was announced by the Governemnt from 23th March, 2020, and amid 
all this amount to be spent under CSR ac�vi�es could not be assessed and spend before the closure of the financial year 2019-20, for more details 
refer Board report Annexure 4.   

 * The informa�on has been given in respect of such vendor to the extent they could be iden�fied as Micro and Small Enterprises as per MSMED 
Act, 2006 on the basis of informa�on available with The Company and in cases of confirma�on from vendors, interest for delayed payments has 
not been provided.
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  (ii) Transac�ons with related par�es during the year :   (Amount in Rs.)      
  
  Nature of Transac�ons  Nature of Rela�onship   Year ended  Year ended
      March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 
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     significantly 
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     Key Managerial 
     Personnel  
    Purchase of goods and services      
   Chetan Industries Limited  Enterprises  18,811,771  93,703,052
     owned or 
     significantly 
  Jagan Industries Private Limited influenced by  3,342,993  57,584,108
      Key Managerial   
     Personnel    
   Compensa�on to  Key Management Personnel      
      - Short-term employee benefits  Key Management  6,530,000  6,450,000 
  - Post-employment benefits  Personnel  -      -   
  - Other long-term benefits   -      -   
  - Termina�on benefits   -      -   
  - Share-based payment   -      -   
      
As the future liability for gratuity is provided on an actuarial basis for the company as a whole, the amount pertaining to 
individual is not ascertainable and therefore not included above. 
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  a) Gross amount required to be spent by The Company during  the year 2,335,812  1,204,592 
  b)  Amount spent during the year on the following:       
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   2. On purposes other than 1 above  *Nil    1,200,000

* To crub the outspread of COVID-19 pandemic, certain safety and restric�ve measures were adopted by the Company in its plants and offices 
from the very beginning of the March 2020, therea�er, complete lockdown was announced by the Governemnt from 23th March, 2020, and amid 
all this amount to be spent under CSR ac�vi�es could not be assessed and spend before the closure of the financial year 2019-20, for more details 
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 * The informa�on has been given in respect of such vendor to the extent they could be iden�fied as Micro and Small Enterprises as per MSMED 
Act, 2006 on the basis of informa�on available with The Company and in cases of confirma�on from vendors, interest for delayed payments has 
not been provided.
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43 AUDITORS REMUNERATION (EXCLUDING TAX):      
 Par�culars   Year ended  Year ended 
      March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
 As Audit fees(including limited review)  70,000  70,000 
 For Tax audit fees   30,000  30,000 
 For Cer�fica�on & other services  -    -   
 Out of pocket expenses   -    -   
 Total    100,000  100,000

44 PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT MADE/SOLD DURING THE YEAR AS MANDATED BY THE PROVISIONS OF THE SECTION  
  186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:      
  (a)  The company has not given any loan or provided any Guarantee during the Financial year March 31, 2020 under Sec�on 

186 of the Companies Act, 2013    
  (b)  The company has not made any investment during the Financial year March 31, 2020 under Sec�on 186 of the 

Companies Act, 2013    
    
45 USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS      
  The prepara�on of financial statements in conformity with the recogni�on and measurement principles of Ind AS requires 

management to make es�mates and assump�ons that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabili�es and disclosure of 
con�ngent liabili�es at the date of the financial statements and the results of opera�ons during the repor�ng period end. 
Although these es�mates are based upon management’s best knowledge of current events and ac�ons, historical experience 
and other factors, including expecta�ons of future events that are believed to be reasonable, actual results could differ from 
these es�mates. The es�mates and underlying assump�ons are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accoun�ng 
es�mates are recognised in the period in which the es�mate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period 
of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. 

     
        KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
  The following are the key assump�ons concerning the future, and other key sources of es�ma�on uncertainty at the end of 

the repor�ng period that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabili�es within the next financial year :

       
  (i)  Fair value measurements of financial instruments:      
  In es�ma�ng the fair value of a financial asset or a financial liability, the Company uses market-observable data to the extent it 

is available. Where ac�ve market quotes are not available, the management applies valua�on techniques to determine the 
fair value of financial instruments. This involves developing es�mates, assump�ons and judgements consistent with how 
market par�cipants would price the instrument.      

  
  (ii)  Actuarial Valua�on:      
  The determina�on of Company’s liability towards defined benefit obliga�on viz. gratuity and other long-term employee 

benefit obliga�on  is made through independent actuarial valua�on including determina�on of amounts to be recognised in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss and in other comprehensive income. Such valua�on depend upon assump�ons determined 
a�er taking into account infla�on, seniority, promo�on and other relevant factors such as supply and demand factors in the 
employment market. Informa�on about such valua�on is provided in notes to the financial statements.

      
  (iii)  Claims, Provisions and Con�ngent Liabili�es:      
  The Company has ongoing li�ga�ons with various regulatory authori�es and third par�es. Where an ou�low of funds is 

believed to be probable and a reliable es�mate of the outcome of the dispute can be made based on management’s 
assessment of specific circumstances of each dispute and relevant external advice, management provides for its best es�mate 
of the liability. Such accruals are by nature complex and can take number of years to resolve and can involve es�ma�on 
uncertainty. These es�mates could change substan�ally over �me as new facts emerge and each dispute progresses. 
Informa�on about such li�ga�ons is provided in notes to the financial statements.
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  (iv)  Useful lives of property, plant and equipment:      
  As described in the significant accoun�ng policies, the Company determines and also reviews the es�mated useful lives of 

property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at the end of each repor�ng period. Such lives are dependent upon an 
assessment of both the technical life of the assets and also their likely economic life, based on various internal and external 
factors including rela�ve efficiency and opera�ng costs. Accordingly, depreciable lives are reviewed annually using the best 
informa�on available to the Management.

      
  (v)  Es�ma�on of uncertain�es rela�ng to the global health pandemic from COVID-19  (COVID-19):      
  The COVID-19 pandemic is an evolving human tragedy declared a global pandemic by the World Health Organisa�on with 

adverse impact on economy and business. Supply Chain disrup�ons in India as a result of the outbreak started with restric�ons 
on movement of goods, closure of borders etc., in several states followed by a na�onwide lockdown from the 25th of March 
2020 announced by the Indian government, to stem the spread of COVID-19. Due to this, the opera�ons of the Company’s 
manufacturing  loca�ons got temporarily disrupted. In light of these circumstances, the Company has considered the possible 
effects that may result from COVID-19 on the carrying amounts of financials assets, inventory, receivables, property plant and 
equipment, Intangibles etc., as well as liabili�es accrued. In developing the assump�ons rela�ng to the possible future 
uncertain�es in the economic condi�ons because of this pandemic, the Company has used internal and external informa�on 
such as financial strength of partners, investment profile, future volume es�mates from the business etc. Having reviewed the 
underlying data and based on current es�mates the Company expects the carrying amount of these assets will be recovered 
and there is no significant impact on liabili�es accrued. The impact of COVID-19 on the Company’s  financial statements may 
differ from that es�mated as at the date of approval of these  financial statements and the Company will con�nue to closely 
monitor any material changes to future economic condi�ons.      

       
46 Previous year’s figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary, to conform to current year’s classifica�on /  

disclosure.

47 Approval of Financial Statements
  The Standalone Financial Statements were approved by the Board of Directors on June 30, 2020.

In terms of our report a�ached

For  Suresh K Aggarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN 021129N 

Suresh Kumar Aggarwal
Proprietor
M.No. 090064
Place : Chandigarh
Date :  30th June, 2020

   UDIN : 20090064AAAABC9551

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 
                                                                                                                                                                                                  of J T L Infra Limited

Rakesh Garg
Director

DIN: 00184081 

 Madan Mohan Singla 
                                                            Managing Director 

                                                                                                                                                                DIN: 00156668

Mohinder Singh
Company Secretary

PAN: BELPS5287P

Dhruv Singla 
    Chief Financial Officer 

    PAN: CGBPS9330L 
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No�ce is hereby given that Twenty Ninth ('29th') Annual 

General Mee�ng of the members of J T L Infra Limited 

('Company') will be held on Wednesday, 30th September, 2020 

at 09.30 A.M. through Video Conferencing ('VC')/Other Audio 

Visual Means ('OAVM') facility, to transact following business:-

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

Item No. 1:

Adop�on of Audited Financial Statements

To receive, consider and adopt the Financial Statements of the 

Company for the year ended 31st March, 2020 including the 

audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020, the Statement of 

Profit and Loss with Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on 

that date and the reports of the Board of Directors ('the Board') 

and Auditors' thereon.

Item No. 2:

Appointment of Director re�ring by rota�on

To appoint a direct in place of Shri Madan MohanSingla(DIN: 

00156668), who re�res by rota�on and being eligible, offers 

himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

Item No.3: 

To re-appointment of Shri Madan Mohan Singla (DIN: 

00156668) as a Managing Director of the Company

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without 

modifica�on, the following resolu�on as a Special Resolu�on:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of SEBI (Lis�ng 

Obliga�ons & Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 and 

Sec�ons , 196, 197 and 203 read with Schedule V and Ar�cle of 

Associa�on of the Company as amended from �me to �me and 

all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and 

the Companies (Appointment & Remunera�on of Managerial 

Personnel) Rules, 2014 (Including any statutory modifica�on or 

reenactment(s) thereof for the �me being in force), and  based 

on the recommenda�on of Nomina�on and Remunera�on 

Commi�ee and subject to such sanc�ons as may be necessary, 

the consent of the members be and is hereby accorded, to 

approve the terms of re-appointment and remunera�on of Mr. 

Madan Mohan Singla (DIN: 00156668) as the Managing 

Director of the Company, for a period of five years with effect 

from 30th May, 2020 to 29th May, 2025 (both days inclusive) on 

payment of monthly remunera�on of between the range of Rs. 

1,50,000 to 5,00,000 per month along with such benefits and 

on such terms and condi�ons as set out in the explanatory 

statement a�ached to this no�ce and the Board of Directors be 

and is hereby authorized to alter and vary such terms and 

condi�ons of appointment and remunera�on so as to not 

exceed the limits specified in Schedule V to the Companies Act, 

2013, as may be agreed to by the Board of Directors and Mr 

Madan Mohan Singla.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of no profit or the profit 

of the company is inadequate, during the currency of tenure of 

managerial personnel, the company may pay remunera�on to 

the managerial remunera�on not exceeding the limit under 

sec�on II of the Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 subject 

to the minimum remunera�on as prescribed above including 

any statutory modifica�ons or re-enactment thereof from �me 

to �me as prescribed by the Government.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the 

Company (including its commi�ee thereof) and / or Company 

Secretary of the Company, be and are hereby authorized to do 

all such acts, deeds, ma�ers and things as may be considered 

necessary, desirable or expedient to give effect to this 

resolu�on.

Item No.4: 

To re-appointment of Mr. Rakesh Garg, (DIN: 00184081) as a 

Whole Time Director 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without 

modifica�on, the following resolu�on as a Special Resolu�on:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of sec 196, 197, 

198, 203, Schedule V and any other applicable provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remunera�on of Managerial Personnel) 

Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modifica�on or re-

enactment thereof), Ar�cles of Associa�on of the Company, 

and  based on the recommenda�on of Nomina�on and 

Remunera�on Commi�ee and subject to such sanc�ons as may 

be necessarythe approval of the members of the company be 

NOTICE
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and is hereby accorded for the re appointment of Mr. Rakesh 

Garg (DIN: 00184081), as the Whole Time Director of the 

Company for a term of five consecu�ve years with effect from 

30th May, 2020 to 29th May, 2025 (both days inclusive) on 

payment of monthly remunera�on of between the range of Rs. 

1,50,000 to 5,00,000 per month subject to such periodical 

increase and on such other terms and condi�ons as applicable 

to the other employees of the Company, and the Board of 

Directors be and is hereby authorized to alter and vary such 

terms and condi�ons of appointment and remunera�on so as 

to not exceed the limits specified in Schedule V to the 

Companies Act, 2013, as may be agreed to by the Board of 

Directors and Mr. Rakesh Garg.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of no profit or the profit 

of the company is inadequate, during the currency of tenure of 

managerial personnel, the company may pay remunera�on to 

the managerial remunera�on not exceeding the limit under 

sec�on II of the Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 subject 

to the minimum remunera�on as pres-cribed above including 

any statutory modifica�ons or re-enactment thereof from 

�me to �me as prescribed by the Government.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the 

Company (including its commi�ee thereof) and / or Company 

Secretary of the Company, be and are hereby authorized to do 

all such acts, deeds, ma�ers and things as may be considered 

necessary, desirable or expedient to give effect to this 

resolu�on.

Item No: 5

Appointment of Mr. Sukhdev Raj Sharma as an Independent 

Director (DIN:02135083) of the Company

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolu�on 

as an Ordinary Resolu�on:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sec�ons 149, 

150, 152 and any other applicable provisions of the Companies 

Act, 2013 ("the Act") and the Companies (Appointment and 

Qualifica�on of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 

modifica�on(s) or re-enactment thereof for the �me being in 

force) read with Schedule IV to the Act and Regula�on 16(1)(b) 

of the Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Lis�ng 

Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 

("Lis�ng Regula�ons"), Mr. Sukhdev Raj Sharma (DIN: 

02135083) who has been appointed as an Addi�onal Director 

of the Company by the Board of Directors with effect from 

w.e.f. 30th June, 2020 in terms of Sec�on 161(1) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and Ar�cles of Associa�on of the 

Company and whose term of office expires at the Annual 

General Mee�ng and who has submi�ed a declara�on that he 

meets the criteria for independence as provided in the Act and 

Lis�ng Regula�ons, be and is hereby appointed as an 

Independent Non-Execu�ve Director of the Company for a 

consecu�ve period of 5 years w.e.f from 30th June, 2020 to 

29th June, 2025 (both days inclusive).

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the 

Company (including its commi�ee thereof) and / or Company 

Secretary of the Company, be and are hereby authorized to do 

all such acts, deeds, ma�ers and things as may be considered 

necessary, desirable or expedient to give effect to this 

resolu�on.

Item No: 6

Ra�fica�on of Remunera�on of Cost Auditor of the Company

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without 

modifica�on, the following resolu�on as an Ordinary 

Resolu�on:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of sec�on 148 

and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 

2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 

2014 and Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 

(including any statutory modifica�on(s) or re-enactment(s) 

thereof, for the �me being in force), the Company hereby 

ra�fies the remunera�on of an amount, not exceeding Rs. 

40,000/-(Rupees forty thousand only) plus taxes and 

reimbursement of out of pocket expenses at actual, if any, 

incurred in connec�on with the audit payable to M/s 

Balwinder & Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm Registra�on 

Number:000201) who were appointed by the Board of 

Directors as Cost Auditors of the Company to conduct cost 

audit rela�ng to cost records of the Company under the 

Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2015 for the 

financial year ending 31st March, 2021.



No�ce is hereby given that Twenty Ninth ('29th') Annual 

General Mee�ng of the members of J T L Infra Limited 

('Company') will be held on Wednesday, 30th September, 2020 

at 09.30 A.M. through Video Conferencing ('VC')/Other Audio 

Visual Means ('OAVM') facility, to transact following business:-

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

Item No. 1:

Adop�on of Audited Financial Statements

To receive, consider and adopt the Financial Statements of the 

Company for the year ended 31st March, 2020 including the 

audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020, the Statement of 

Profit and Loss with Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on 

that date and the reports of the Board of Directors ('the Board') 

and Auditors' thereon.

Item No. 2:

Appointment of Director re�ring by rota�on

To appoint a direct in place of Shri Madan MohanSingla(DIN: 

00156668), who re�res by rota�on and being eligible, offers 

himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

Item No.3: 

To re-appointment of Shri Madan Mohan Singla (DIN: 

00156668) as a Managing Director of the Company

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without 

modifica�on, the following resolu�on as a Special Resolu�on:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of SEBI (Lis�ng 

Obliga�ons & Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 and 

Sec�ons , 196, 197 and 203 read with Schedule V and Ar�cle of 

Associa�on of the Company as amended from �me to �me and 

all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and 

the Companies (Appointment & Remunera�on of Managerial 

Personnel) Rules, 2014 (Including any statutory modifica�on or 

reenactment(s) thereof for the �me being in force), and  based 

on the recommenda�on of Nomina�on and Remunera�on 

Commi�ee and subject to such sanc�ons as may be necessary, 

the consent of the members be and is hereby accorded, to 

approve the terms of re-appointment and remunera�on of Mr. 

Madan Mohan Singla (DIN: 00156668) as the Managing 

Director of the Company, for a period of five years with effect 

from 30th May, 2020 to 29th May, 2025 (both days inclusive) on 

payment of monthly remunera�on of between the range of Rs. 

1,50,000 to 5,00,000 per month along with such benefits and 

on such terms and condi�ons as set out in the explanatory 

statement a�ached to this no�ce and the Board of Directors be 

and is hereby authorized to alter and vary such terms and 

condi�ons of appointment and remunera�on so as to not 

exceed the limits specified in Schedule V to the Companies Act, 

2013, as may be agreed to by the Board of Directors and Mr 

Madan Mohan Singla.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of no profit or the profit 

of the company is inadequate, during the currency of tenure of 

managerial personnel, the company may pay remunera�on to 

the managerial remunera�on not exceeding the limit under 

sec�on II of the Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 subject 

to the minimum remunera�on as prescribed above including 

any statutory modifica�ons or re-enactment thereof from �me 

to �me as prescribed by the Government.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the 

Company (including its commi�ee thereof) and / or Company 

Secretary of the Company, be and are hereby authorized to do 

all such acts, deeds, ma�ers and things as may be considered 

necessary, desirable or expedient to give effect to this 

resolu�on.

Item No.4: 

To re-appointment of Mr. Rakesh Garg, (DIN: 00184081) as a 

Whole Time Director 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without 

modifica�on, the following resolu�on as a Special Resolu�on:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of sec 196, 197, 

198, 203, Schedule V and any other applicable provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remunera�on of Managerial Personnel) 

Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modifica�on or re-

enactment thereof), Ar�cles of Associa�on of the Company, 

and  based on the recommenda�on of Nomina�on and 

Remunera�on Commi�ee and subject to such sanc�ons as may 

be necessarythe approval of the members of the company be 
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and is hereby accorded for the re appointment of Mr. Rakesh 

Garg (DIN: 00184081), as the Whole Time Director of the 

Company for a term of five consecu�ve years with effect from 

30th May, 2020 to 29th May, 2025 (both days inclusive) on 

payment of monthly remunera�on of between the range of Rs. 

1,50,000 to 5,00,000 per month subject to such periodical 

increase and on such other terms and condi�ons as applicable 

to the other employees of the Company, and the Board of 

Directors be and is hereby authorized to alter and vary such 

terms and condi�ons of appointment and remunera�on so as 

to not exceed the limits specified in Schedule V to the 

Companies Act, 2013, as may be agreed to by the Board of 

Directors and Mr. Rakesh Garg.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of no profit or the profit 

of the company is inadequate, during the currency of tenure of 

managerial personnel, the company may pay remunera�on to 

the managerial remunera�on not exceeding the limit under 

sec�on II of the Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 subject 

to the minimum remunera�on as pres-cribed above including 

any statutory modifica�ons or re-enactment thereof from 

�me to �me as prescribed by the Government.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the 

Company (including its commi�ee thereof) and / or Company 

Secretary of the Company, be and are hereby authorized to do 

all such acts, deeds, ma�ers and things as may be considered 

necessary, desirable or expedient to give effect to this 

resolu�on.

Item No: 5

Appointment of Mr. Sukhdev Raj Sharma as an Independent 

Director (DIN:02135083) of the Company

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolu�on 

as an Ordinary Resolu�on:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sec�ons 149, 

150, 152 and any other applicable provisions of the Companies 

Act, 2013 ("the Act") and the Companies (Appointment and 

Qualifica�on of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 

modifica�on(s) or re-enactment thereof for the �me being in 

force) read with Schedule IV to the Act and Regula�on 16(1)(b) 

of the Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Lis�ng 

Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 

("Lis�ng Regula�ons"), Mr. Sukhdev Raj Sharma (DIN: 

02135083) who has been appointed as an Addi�onal Director 

of the Company by the Board of Directors with effect from 

w.e.f. 30th June, 2020 in terms of Sec�on 161(1) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and Ar�cles of Associa�on of the 

Company and whose term of office expires at the Annual 

General Mee�ng and who has submi�ed a declara�on that he 

meets the criteria for independence as provided in the Act and 

Lis�ng Regula�ons, be and is hereby appointed as an 

Independent Non-Execu�ve Director of the Company for a 

consecu�ve period of 5 years w.e.f from 30th June, 2020 to 

29th June, 2025 (both days inclusive).

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the 

Company (including its commi�ee thereof) and / or Company 

Secretary of the Company, be and are hereby authorized to do 

all such acts, deeds, ma�ers and things as may be considered 

necessary, desirable or expedient to give effect to this 

resolu�on.

Item No: 6

Ra�fica�on of Remunera�on of Cost Auditor of the Company

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without 

modifica�on, the following resolu�on as an Ordinary 

Resolu�on:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of sec�on 148 

and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 

2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 

2014 and Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 

(including any statutory modifica�on(s) or re-enactment(s) 

thereof, for the �me being in force), the Company hereby 

ra�fies the remunera�on of an amount, not exceeding Rs. 

40,000/-(Rupees forty thousand only) plus taxes and 

reimbursement of out of pocket expenses at actual, if any, 

incurred in connec�on with the audit payable to M/s 

Balwinder & Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm Registra�on 

Number:000201) who were appointed by the Board of 

Directors as Cost Auditors of the Company to conduct cost 

audit rela�ng to cost records of the Company under the 

Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2015 for the 

financial year ending 31st March, 2021.
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Place: Chandigarh 

Date: August 29, 2020

By order of the Board of Directors

for JTL Infra Limited

Mohinder Singh

Company Secretary

ACS-21857

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the 

Company (including its commi�ee thereof) and / or Company 

Secretary of the Company, be and are hereby authorized to do 

all such acts, deeds, ma�ers and things as may be considered 

necessary, desirable or expedient to give effect to this 

resolu�on."

Item No: 7

Members approval for Related Party Transac�ons under 

sec�on 188 of the Companies Act, 2013

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without 

modifica�on(s), the following Resolu�on as an Ordinary 

Resolu�on:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Sec�on 188 and other 

applicable provisions if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, in 

terms of the Rule 15 of the Companies (Mee�ngs of Board and 

its Powers) Rule 2014 and also Regula�on 23 of Securi�es and 

Exchange Board of India (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 and subject to such other 

Regula�ons, Guidelines and Laws (including any statutory 

modifica�ons or re-enactment thereof for the �me being in 

force) and subject to all applicable approvals, permissions and 

such condi�ons as may be prescribed by any of the concerned 

authori�es while gran�ng such approvals, consent of the 

members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the 

Board of Directors of the Company and for entering into any 

contracts and/ or arrangements in terms of Sec�on 188 (1) (a) 

to 188 (1)(g) of Companies Act, 2013with a related party(s) (as 

detailed in the Statement annexed to the No�ce) within the 

meaning of Sec�on 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

Regula�on 2(1)(zb) of the SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons up to a 

maximum aggregate value of Rs. 220 crore at arm's length 

basis and in the ordinary course of business, for the Financial 

Year 2020-21.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby 

authorized to do and perform all such acts, deeds, ma�ers and 

things, as may be necessary, including finalizing the terms and 

condi�ons, methods and modes in respect thereof and 

finalizing and execu�ng necessary documents, including 

contracts, schemes, agreements and such other documents, 

file applica�ons and make representa�ons in respect thereof 

and seek approval from relevant authori�es, including 

Governmental authori�es in this regard and deal with any 

ma�ers, take necessary steps as the Board may in its absolute 

discre�on deem necessary, desirable or expedient to give 

effect to this resolu�on and to se�le any ques�on that may 

arise in this regard and incidental thereto, without being 

required to seek any further consent or approval of the 

Members or otherwise to the end and intent that the 

Members shall be deemed to have given their approval thereto 

expressly by the authority of this resolu�on.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby 

authorized to delegate all or any of the powers herein 

conferred to any Director(s) or Chief Financial Officer or 

Company Secretary or to any other Officer(s)/Authorized 

Representa�ve(s) of the Company to do all such acts and take 

such steps as may be considered necessary or expedient to 

give effect to the aforesaid resolu�on(s)."
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NOTES:

1. In view of the con�nuing Covid-19 pandemic, the Ministry 

of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") has vide its circular dated 

May 5,2020 read with circulars dated April 8,2020 and 

April13,2020 (collec�vely referred to as "MCA Circulars") 

permi�ed the holding of the Annual General Mee�ng 

("AGM") through Video Conferencing ("VC")/ Other Audio 

Visual Means ("OAVM"), without the physical presence of 

the Members at a common venue. In compliance with the 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act"), SEBI 

(Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regula�ons, 2015 ("SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons") and MCA 

Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being held through 

VC / OAVM. The AGM shall be deemed to be held at the 

Registered Office of the Company.

2. Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars 

through VC / OAVM, physical a�endance of Members has 

been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for 

appointment of proxies by the Members will not be 

available for the AGM and hence the Proxy Form and 

A�endance Slip are not annexed to in this No�ce.

3. As per Regula�on 40 of SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons, as 

amended, securi�es of listed companies can be 

transferred only in dematerialized form with effect from, 

April 1, 2019, except in case of request received for 

transmission or transposi�on of securi�es. In view of this 

and to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares 

and for ease of por�olio management, members holding 

shares in physical form are requested to consider 

conver�ng their holdings to dematerialized form. 

Members can contact the Company or Company's 

Registrars and Transfer Agents, Beetal Financial & 

Computer Services Pvt Ltd for assistance in this regard.

4. Corporate Members are required to send a cer�fied copy 

o f  t h e  B o a r d  R e s o l u � o n  t h r o u g h  e m a i l  o n 

finance@jagan.in, pursuant to Sec�on 113 of the 

Companies Act, 2013, authorizing their represen-ta�ves 

to a�end the AGM through VC / OAVM on its behalf and to 

vote through remote e-vo�ng on their behalf at the 

Annual General Mee�ng or any adjournment thereof.

5. A brief resume of each of the directors proposed to be 

appointed / re-appointed, nature of their exper�se in 

specific func�onal areas, names of companies in which 

they hold directorships and memberships / chairmanships 

of Board Commi�ees, shareholding and rela�onships 

between Directors inter se and Key Managerial Personnel 

as s�pulated under Regula�on 36 of the SEBI (Lis�ng 

Obliga�ons and Disclosures Requirements) Regula�ons, 

2015, and Clause 1.2.5 of Secretarial Standards-2 on 

General Mee�ngs, are provided in details of Directors 

seeking Appointment/ Reappointment at the Annual 

General Mee�ng is annexed herewith as Annexure A.

6. The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has 

mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number 

(PAN) by every par�cipant in securi�es market. Members 

holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, 

requested to submit their PAN to the Depository 

Par�cipants with whom they maintain their demat 

accounts. Members holding shares in physical form should 

submit their PAN to the Registrar and Transfer Agent / 

Company.

7. In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and SEBI 

Circular dated May 12, 2020, No�ce of the AGM along 

with the Annual Report 2019-20 is being sent only through 

electronic mode to all those members whose e-mail IDs 

are registered with the Company/ Depository 

Par�cipant(s) for communica�on purposes.  Members are 

requested to support Green ini�a�ve by registering/ 

upda�ng their e-mail addresses with the Depository 

Par�cipant.

8. Members may also note that the No�ce of the 29th 

Annual General Mee�ng and the Annual Report for FY 

2019-20 will be available on the Company's website 

www.jtlinfra.com for their download and also on the 

website of Central Depository Services (India) Limited viz. 

www.evo�ngindia.comand website of the Stock Exchange 

i .e .  BSE L imited atwww.bseindia.com For  any 

communica�on, the shareholders may send a request to 

the Company's investor e-mail id: finance@jagan.in.

9. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 
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Place: Chandigarh 

Date: August 29, 2020

By order of the Board of Directors

for JTL Infra Limited

Mohinder Singh

Company Secretary

ACS-21857

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the 

Company (including its commi�ee thereof) and / or Company 

Secretary of the Company, be and are hereby authorized to do 

all such acts, deeds, ma�ers and things as may be considered 

necessary, desirable or expedient to give effect to this 

resolu�on."

Item No: 7

Members approval for Related Party Transac�ons under 

sec�on 188 of the Companies Act, 2013

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without 

modifica�on(s), the following Resolu�on as an Ordinary 

Resolu�on:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Sec�on 188 and other 

applicable provisions if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, in 

terms of the Rule 15 of the Companies (Mee�ngs of Board and 

its Powers) Rule 2014 and also Regula�on 23 of Securi�es and 

Exchange Board of India (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 and subject to such other 

Regula�ons, Guidelines and Laws (including any statutory 

modifica�ons or re-enactment thereof for the �me being in 

force) and subject to all applicable approvals, permissions and 

such condi�ons as may be prescribed by any of the concerned 

authori�es while gran�ng such approvals, consent of the 

members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the 

Board of Directors of the Company and for entering into any 

contracts and/ or arrangements in terms of Sec�on 188 (1) (a) 

to 188 (1)(g) of Companies Act, 2013with a related party(s) (as 

detailed in the Statement annexed to the No�ce) within the 

meaning of Sec�on 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

Regula�on 2(1)(zb) of the SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons up to a 

maximum aggregate value of Rs. 220 crore at arm's length 

basis and in the ordinary course of business, for the Financial 

Year 2020-21.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby 

authorized to do and perform all such acts, deeds, ma�ers and 

things, as may be necessary, including finalizing the terms and 

condi�ons, methods and modes in respect thereof and 

finalizing and execu�ng necessary documents, including 

contracts, schemes, agreements and such other documents, 

file applica�ons and make representa�ons in respect thereof 

and seek approval from relevant authori�es, including 

Governmental authori�es in this regard and deal with any 

ma�ers, take necessary steps as the Board may in its absolute 

discre�on deem necessary, desirable or expedient to give 

effect to this resolu�on and to se�le any ques�on that may 

arise in this regard and incidental thereto, without being 

required to seek any further consent or approval of the 

Members or otherwise to the end and intent that the 

Members shall be deemed to have given their approval thereto 

expressly by the authority of this resolu�on.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby 

authorized to delegate all or any of the powers herein 

conferred to any Director(s) or Chief Financial Officer or 

Company Secretary or to any other Officer(s)/Authorized 

Representa�ve(s) of the Company to do all such acts and take 

such steps as may be considered necessary or expedient to 

give effect to the aforesaid resolu�on(s)."
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NOTES:

1. In view of the con�nuing Covid-19 pandemic, the Ministry 

of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") has vide its circular dated 

May 5,2020 read with circulars dated April 8,2020 and 

April13,2020 (collec�vely referred to as "MCA Circulars") 

permi�ed the holding of the Annual General Mee�ng 

("AGM") through Video Conferencing ("VC")/ Other Audio 

Visual Means ("OAVM"), without the physical presence of 

the Members at a common venue. In compliance with the 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act"), SEBI 

(Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regula�ons, 2015 ("SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons") and MCA 

Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being held through 

VC / OAVM. The AGM shall be deemed to be held at the 

Registered Office of the Company.

2. Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars 

through VC / OAVM, physical a�endance of Members has 

been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for 

appointment of proxies by the Members will not be 

available for the AGM and hence the Proxy Form and 

A�endance Slip are not annexed to in this No�ce.

3. As per Regula�on 40 of SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons, as 

amended, securi�es of listed companies can be 

transferred only in dematerialized form with effect from, 

April 1, 2019, except in case of request received for 

transmission or transposi�on of securi�es. In view of this 

and to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares 

and for ease of por�olio management, members holding 

shares in physical form are requested to consider 

conver�ng their holdings to dematerialized form. 

Members can contact the Company or Company's 

Registrars and Transfer Agents, Beetal Financial & 

Computer Services Pvt Ltd for assistance in this regard.

4. Corporate Members are required to send a cer�fied copy 

o f  t h e  B o a r d  R e s o l u � o n  t h r o u g h  e m a i l  o n 

finance@jagan.in, pursuant to Sec�on 113 of the 

Companies Act, 2013, authorizing their represen-ta�ves 

to a�end the AGM through VC / OAVM on its behalf and to 

vote through remote e-vo�ng on their behalf at the 

Annual General Mee�ng or any adjournment thereof.

5. A brief resume of each of the directors proposed to be 

appointed / re-appointed, nature of their exper�se in 

specific func�onal areas, names of companies in which 

they hold directorships and memberships / chairmanships 

of Board Commi�ees, shareholding and rela�onships 

between Directors inter se and Key Managerial Personnel 

as s�pulated under Regula�on 36 of the SEBI (Lis�ng 

Obliga�ons and Disclosures Requirements) Regula�ons, 

2015, and Clause 1.2.5 of Secretarial Standards-2 on 

General Mee�ngs, are provided in details of Directors 

seeking Appointment/ Reappointment at the Annual 

General Mee�ng is annexed herewith as Annexure A.

6. The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has 

mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number 

(PAN) by every par�cipant in securi�es market. Members 

holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, 

requested to submit their PAN to the Depository 

Par�cipants with whom they maintain their demat 

accounts. Members holding shares in physical form should 

submit their PAN to the Registrar and Transfer Agent / 

Company.

7. In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and SEBI 

Circular dated May 12, 2020, No�ce of the AGM along 

with the Annual Report 2019-20 is being sent only through 

electronic mode to all those members whose e-mail IDs 

are registered with the Company/ Depository 

Par�cipant(s) for communica�on purposes.  Members are 

requested to support Green ini�a�ve by registering/ 

upda�ng their e-mail addresses with the Depository 

Par�cipant.

8. Members may also note that the No�ce of the 29th 

Annual General Mee�ng and the Annual Report for FY 

2019-20 will be available on the Company's website 

www.jtlinfra.com for their download and also on the 

website of Central Depository Services (India) Limited viz. 

www.evo�ngindia.comand website of the Stock Exchange 

i .e .  BSE L imited atwww.bseindia.com For  any 

communica�on, the shareholders may send a request to 

the Company's investor e-mail id: finance@jagan.in.

9. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 
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and their Shareholdings, maintained under Sec�on 170 of 

the Act, the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in 

which Directors are interested under Sec�on 189 of the 

Act and any other documents referred to in the 

accompanying No�ce, shall be made available for 

inspec�on in accordance with the applicable statutory 

requirements based on the requests received by the 

Company at finance@jagan.in.

10. Pursuant to Regula�on 42 of SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons & 

Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015, Register of 

Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company 

will remain closed from Thursday, 24th September, 2020 

to Wednesday, 30th September, 2020 (both days 

inclusive) for the purpose of the AGM.

11. In case of joint holders, only such joint holder who is 

named first in the order of names will be en�tled to vote.

12. To comply with the provision of Sec�on 88 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies 

(Management and Administra�on) Rules, 2014, the 

Company is required to update its database by 

incorpora�ng members' designated E-mail IDs in its 

records. Members are requested to submit their E-mail 

IDs vide the-mail upda�on form enclosed with this Annual 

Report. The same could be done by filling up and signing at 

the appropriate place in the said form and by returning the 

le�er through email on finance@jagan.in. Thee-mail ID 

provided shall be updated subject to successful 

verifica�on of your signature(s)asper record available 

with the RTA of the Company.

13. Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM, the Route 

Map is not annexed in this No�ce.

14. Members desirous of ge�ng any informa�on about the 

accounts and opera�ons of the Company are requested to 

address their queries to the Company Secretary and 

Compliance Officer through email on finance@jagan.in at 

least seven days in advance of the mee�ng so that the 

informa�on required may be made readily available at the 

mee�ng.

15. Members a�ending the AGM through VC / OAVM shall be 

counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under 

Sec�on 103 of the Act.

16. The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has 

mandated the submission of PAN by every par�cipant in 

securi�es market.  Members holding shares in 

dematerialized form are therefore requested to submit 

their PAN to the Depository Par�cipant(s) with whom they 

are maintaining their dematerialized accounts. Members 

holding shares in physical form can write to the Registrar 

and Share Transfer Agent with their PAN details.

17. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to 

no�fy/send their email address and any change in their 

communica�on address to the Company's Registrar and 

Share Transfer Agent.

18. VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS

 In compliance with provisions of Sec�on 108 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies 

(Management and Administra�on) Rules, 2014, as 

amended from �me to �me and Regula�on 44 of 

Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Lis�ng Obliga�ons 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 and 

Secretarial Standards-2 issued by ICSI, the Company is 

pleased to provide to Members facility to exercise their 

Right to vote through remote e-vo�ng pla�orm as well as 

venue e-vo�ng on the date of the Annual General Mee�ng 

on all there solu�ons set forth in the No�ce convening the 

29th Annual General Mee�ng of the Company. The 

Company has engaged services of Central Depository 

Services (India) Limited ("CDSL"), as the authorized agency 

to provide thee-vo�ng facility. Resolu�ons passed by the 

Members through e-vo�ng is/are deemed to have been 

passed, as if they have been passed at the AGM.

 The Members a�ending the mee�ng, who have not cast 

their vote through remote e-vo�ng shall be able to 

exercise their vo�ng rights in the mee�ng. The members 

who have casted their vote by remote e-vo�ng prior to the 

AGM may also a�end/ par�cipate in the AGM through VC/ 

OAVM but shall not be en�tled to cast their vote again.

 Once an e-vote on a resolu�on is casted by a Member, 
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such Member is not permi�ed to change it subsequently. 

In terms of requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

the relevant Rules, the Company has fixed 23rd 

September, 2020 as the 'Cut-off Date'. The remote e-

vo�ng /vo�ng rights of the shareholders/ beneficial 

owners shall be reckoned on the equity shares held by 

them as on the Cut-off Date i.e. 23rd September, 2020 

only. The e-vo�ng module shall be disabled by CSDL for 

vo�ng therea�er. Those Members, who will be present in 

the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not cast their 

vote on the Resolu�ons through remote e-vo�ng shall be 

able to exercise their vo�ng rights in the mee�ng.

 The company has appointed M/s. M.R. Chechi & 

Associates Company Secretaries, Chandigarh as the 

Scru�nizer for conduc�ng the remote e-vo�ng and the 

vo�ng process at the Annual General Mee�ng in a fair and 

transparent manner.

 The Scru�nizer shall, immediately a�er the conclusion of 

vo�ng at the AGM, first count the votes cast during the 

AGM, therea�er unblock the votes cast through remote e-

vo�ng and shall make not later than 48 hours of 

conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated Scru�nizer's 

Report of the total votes cast in favor or against, if any, to 

the Chairman or a person authorized by him in wri�ng, 

who shall countersign the same.

 The result declared along with the report of the 

Scru�nizer shall be placed on the Company's Website 

www.jt l infra.comand on the website of  CDSL, 

immediately a�er the declara�on of result by the 

Chairman of the Mee�ng or a person authorized by him in 

wri�ng. The result shall also be immediately forwarded to 

the BSE Limited.

The instruc�ons to members for vo�ng electronically are as 

under: -

I. The vo�ng period begins on 27th September, 2020 (09:00 

a.m.) and ends on 29th September, 2020 (05:00p.m.). 

During this period shareholders' of the Company, holding 

shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as 

on the cut-off date (record date) may cast their vote 

electronically. The e-vo�ng module shall be disabled by 

CDSL for vo�ng therea�er.

II. The Members who have cast their vote by remote e-vo�ng 

prior to the AGM may also a�end/ par�cipate in the AGM 

through VC / OAVM but shall not be en�tled to cast their 

vote again.

III. The shareholders should logon to the e-vo�ng website - 

www.evo�ngindia.com.

IV. Click on Shareholders/Members

V. Now enter the User ID

 1. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,

 2. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client 

ID,

 3. Members holding shares in Physical Form should 

enter Folio Number registered with the Company.

VI. Next enter the Image Verifica�on as displayed and Click on 

Login.

VII. If members are holding shares in demat form and had 

logged on to www.evo�ngindia.com and voted on an 

earlier vo�ng of any company, then their exis�ng 

password is to be used.
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and their Shareholdings, maintained under Sec�on 170 of 

the Act, the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in 

which Directors are interested under Sec�on 189 of the 

Act and any other documents referred to in the 

accompanying No�ce, shall be made available for 

inspec�on in accordance with the applicable statutory 

requirements based on the requests received by the 

Company at finance@jagan.in.

10. Pursuant to Regula�on 42 of SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons & 

Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015, Register of 

Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company 

will remain closed from Thursday, 24th September, 2020 

to Wednesday, 30th September, 2020 (both days 

inclusive) for the purpose of the AGM.

11. In case of joint holders, only such joint holder who is 

named first in the order of names will be en�tled to vote.

12. To comply with the provision of Sec�on 88 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies 

(Management and Administra�on) Rules, 2014, the 

Company is required to update its database by 

incorpora�ng members' designated E-mail IDs in its 

records. Members are requested to submit their E-mail 

IDs vide the-mail upda�on form enclosed with this Annual 

Report. The same could be done by filling up and signing at 

the appropriate place in the said form and by returning the 

le�er through email on finance@jagan.in. Thee-mail ID 

provided shall be updated subject to successful 

verifica�on of your signature(s)asper record available 

with the RTA of the Company.

13. Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM, the Route 

Map is not annexed in this No�ce.

14. Members desirous of ge�ng any informa�on about the 

accounts and opera�ons of the Company are requested to 

address their queries to the Company Secretary and 

Compliance Officer through email on finance@jagan.in at 

least seven days in advance of the mee�ng so that the 

informa�on required may be made readily available at the 

mee�ng.

15. Members a�ending the AGM through VC / OAVM shall be 

counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under 

Sec�on 103 of the Act.

16. The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has 

mandated the submission of PAN by every par�cipant in 

securi�es market.  Members holding shares in 

dematerialized form are therefore requested to submit 

their PAN to the Depository Par�cipant(s) with whom they 

are maintaining their dematerialized accounts. Members 

holding shares in physical form can write to the Registrar 

and Share Transfer Agent with their PAN details.

17. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to 

no�fy/send their email address and any change in their 

communica�on address to the Company's Registrar and 

Share Transfer Agent.

18. VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS

 In compliance with provisions of Sec�on 108 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies 

(Management and Administra�on) Rules, 2014, as 

amended from �me to �me and Regula�on 44 of 

Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Lis�ng Obliga�ons 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 and 

Secretarial Standards-2 issued by ICSI, the Company is 

pleased to provide to Members facility to exercise their 

Right to vote through remote e-vo�ng pla�orm as well as 

venue e-vo�ng on the date of the Annual General Mee�ng 

on all there solu�ons set forth in the No�ce convening the 

29th Annual General Mee�ng of the Company. The 

Company has engaged services of Central Depository 

Services (India) Limited ("CDSL"), as the authorized agency 

to provide thee-vo�ng facility. Resolu�ons passed by the 

Members through e-vo�ng is/are deemed to have been 

passed, as if they have been passed at the AGM.

 The Members a�ending the mee�ng, who have not cast 

their vote through remote e-vo�ng shall be able to 

exercise their vo�ng rights in the mee�ng. The members 

who have casted their vote by remote e-vo�ng prior to the 

AGM may also a�end/ par�cipate in the AGM through VC/ 

OAVM but shall not be en�tled to cast their vote again.

 Once an e-vote on a resolu�on is casted by a Member, 
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such Member is not permi�ed to change it subsequently. 

In terms of requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

the relevant Rules, the Company has fixed 23rd 

September, 2020 as the 'Cut-off Date'. The remote e-

vo�ng /vo�ng rights of the shareholders/ beneficial 

owners shall be reckoned on the equity shares held by 

them as on the Cut-off Date i.e. 23rd September, 2020 

only. The e-vo�ng module shall be disabled by CSDL for 

vo�ng therea�er. Those Members, who will be present in 

the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not cast their 

vote on the Resolu�ons through remote e-vo�ng shall be 

able to exercise their vo�ng rights in the mee�ng.

 The company has appointed M/s. M.R. Chechi & 

Associates Company Secretaries, Chandigarh as the 

Scru�nizer for conduc�ng the remote e-vo�ng and the 

vo�ng process at the Annual General Mee�ng in a fair and 

transparent manner.

 The Scru�nizer shall, immediately a�er the conclusion of 

vo�ng at the AGM, first count the votes cast during the 

AGM, therea�er unblock the votes cast through remote e-

vo�ng and shall make not later than 48 hours of 

conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated Scru�nizer's 

Report of the total votes cast in favor or against, if any, to 

the Chairman or a person authorized by him in wri�ng, 

who shall countersign the same.

 The result declared along with the report of the 

Scru�nizer shall be placed on the Company's Website 

www.jt l infra.comand on the website of  CDSL, 

immediately a�er the declara�on of result by the 

Chairman of the Mee�ng or a person authorized by him in 

wri�ng. The result shall also be immediately forwarded to 

the BSE Limited.

The instruc�ons to members for vo�ng electronically are as 

under: -

I. The vo�ng period begins on 27th September, 2020 (09:00 

a.m.) and ends on 29th September, 2020 (05:00p.m.). 

During this period shareholders' of the Company, holding 

shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as 

on the cut-off date (record date) may cast their vote 

electronically. The e-vo�ng module shall be disabled by 

CDSL for vo�ng therea�er.

II. The Members who have cast their vote by remote e-vo�ng 

prior to the AGM may also a�end/ par�cipate in the AGM 

through VC / OAVM but shall not be en�tled to cast their 

vote again.

III. The shareholders should logon to the e-vo�ng website - 

www.evo�ngindia.com.

IV. Click on Shareholders/Members

V. Now enter the User ID

 1. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,

 2. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client 

ID,

 3. Members holding shares in Physical Form should 

enter Folio Number registered with the Company.

VI. Next enter the Image Verifica�on as displayed and Click on 

Login.

VII. If members are holding shares in demat form and had 

logged on to www.evo�ngindia.com and voted on an 

earlier vo�ng of any company, then their exis�ng 

password is to be used.
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VIII. If the member is a first �me user then follow the steps given below:

  For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form

PAN  Enter the 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for both demat

   shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

  • Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/ Depository Par�cipant are requested     

   to use the sequence number sent by Company/RTA or contact Company/RTA.

Dividend Bank  Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your demat account

Details OR Date  or in the company records in order to login.

of Birth (DOB) 
  • If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company please enter the member Id / folio 

number in the Dividend Bank details field as men�oned in instruc�on(v).

IX. A�er entering these details appropriately, click on 

"SUBMIT" tab.

X. Members holding shares in physical form will then reach 

directly the Company selec�on screen. However, 

members holding shares in demat form will now reach 

'Password Crea�on' menu wherein they are required to 

mandatorily enter their login password in the new 

password field. Kindly note that this password is to be 

also used by the demat holders for vo�ng for resolu�ons 

of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, 

provided that company opts for e-vo�ng through CDSL 

pla�orm. It is strongly recommended not to share your 

password with any other person and take utmost care to 

keep your password confiden�al.

XI. For Members holding shares in physical form, the details 

can be used only for e-vo�ng on the resolu�ons 

contained in this No�ce.

XII. If members are holding shares in DEMAT form and 

logged on to and casted vote earlier for EVSN 

(www.evo�ngindia.com) of any company then the 

exis�ng log in id and password are to be used.

XIII. Click on the EVSN for "J T L Infra Limited".

XIV. On the vo�ng page, member will see "RESOLUTION 

DESCRIPTION" and against the same the op�on "YES/ 

NO" for vo�ng. Select the op�on YES or NO as desired. 

The op�on YES implies that member assents to the 

Resolu�on and op�on NO implies that member dissents 

to the Resolu�on.

XV. Click on the "RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" if you wish to view 

the en�re Resolu�on details.

XVI. A�er selec�ng the resolu�on, the member have decided 

to vote on, click on "SUBMIT". A confirma�on box will be 

displayed. If member wishes to confirm his vote, click 

on"OK", else to change his vote, click on "CANCEL" and 

accordingly modify the vote.

XVII. Once the member "CONFIRM" his vote on the 

resolu�on, he will not be allowed to modify his vote.

XVIII. Members can also take out print of the vo�ng done by 

them by clicking on "Click here to print" op�on on the 

Vo�ng page.

XIX. If Demat account holder has forgo�en the login 

password, then Enter the User ID and the image 

verifica�on code and click on Forgot Password & enter 

the details as prompted by the system.

XX. Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL's 

mobile app m-Vo�ng available for android based 

mobiles. The m-Vo�ng app can be downloaded from 

Google Play Store, I Phone and Windows phone users 

can download the app from the App Store and the 
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Windows Phone Store respec�vely. Please follow the 

instruc�ons as prompted by the mobile app while vo�ng 

on your mobile.

XXI. Note for Non - Individual Shareholders and Custodians

 • Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than 

Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are required 

to log on to www.evo�ngindia. comand register 

themselves as Corporates.

 • A scanned copy of the Registra�on Form bearing the 

stamp and sign of the en�ty should be emailed 

tohelpdesk.evo�ng@cdslindia.com.

 • A�er receiving the login details a Compliance User 

should be created using the admin login and 

password. The Compliance User would be able to link 

the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

 • The list of accounts linked in the login should be 

mailed to helpdesk.evo�ng@cdslindia.com and on 

approval of the accounts they would be able to cast 

their vote.

 • A scanned copy of the Board Resolu�on and Power of 

A�orney (POA) which they have issued in favor of the 

Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in 

the system for the scru�nizer to verify the same.

XXII. In case members have any queries or issues regarding e-

vo�ng, they may refer the Frequently Asked Ques�ons 

( " FA Q s " )  a n d  e - v o � n g  m a n u a l  ava i l a b l e  a t 

www.evo�ngindia.com, under help sec�on or write an 

email to helpdesk.evo�ng@cdslindia.com.

XXIII. Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and 

become member of the Company a�er dispatch of the 

no�ce and holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e. 

Wednesday, 23rd September, 2020, may obtain the login 

I D  a n d  p a s s w o r d  b y  s e n d i n g  a  r e q u e s t  a t 

helpdesk.evo�ng@cdslindia.com. 

Process for those shareholders whose email addresses are 

not registered with the depositories for obtaining login 

creden�als for e-vo�ng for the resolu�ons proposed in this 

no�ce:

1. For Physical shareholders-please provide necessary 

details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy 

of the share cer�ficate (front and back), PAN (self a�ested 

scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self a�ested 

scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to Company/RTA 

email id.

2. For Demat shareholders -, please provide Demat account 

details (CDSL-16 digit beneficiary ID or NSDL-16 digit DPID 

+ CLID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated 

Account statement, PAN (self-a�ested scanned copy of 

PAN card), AADHAR (self-a�ested scanned copy of Aadhar 

Card) to Company/RTA email id.

Instruc�ons for shareholders for a�ending the AGM through 

VC / OAVM are as under:

1. Shareholder will be provided with a facility to a�end the 

AGM through VC/OAVM through the CDSL e-Vo�ng 

system. Shareholders may access the same at 

h�ps://www.evo�ngindia.com under shareholders/ 

members login by using the remote e-vo�ng creden�als. 

The link for VC/OAVM will be available in shareholder/ 

members login where the EVSN of Company will be 

displayed.

2. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Mee�ng through 

Laptops/IPads for be�er experience.

3. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and 

use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance 

during the mee�ng.

4. Please note that Par�cipants Connec�ng from Mobile 

Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connec�ng via 

Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to 

Fluctua�on in their respec�ve network. It is therefore 

recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connec�on to 

mi�gate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask 

ques�ons during the mee�ng may register themselves as 

a speaker by sending their request in advance at least 3 

days prior to mee�ng men�oning their name, demat 

account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at 

company's email Id-finance@jagan.in. The shareholders 
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VIII. If the member is a first �me user then follow the steps given below:

  For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form

PAN  Enter the 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for both demat

   shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

  • Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/ Depository Par�cipant are requested     

   to use the sequence number sent by Company/RTA or contact Company/RTA.

Dividend Bank  Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your demat account

Details OR Date  or in the company records in order to login.

of Birth (DOB) 
  • If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company please enter the member Id / folio 

number in the Dividend Bank details field as men�oned in instruc�on(v).

IX. A�er entering these details appropriately, click on 

"SUBMIT" tab.

X. Members holding shares in physical form will then reach 

directly the Company selec�on screen. However, 

members holding shares in demat form will now reach 

'Password Crea�on' menu wherein they are required to 

mandatorily enter their login password in the new 

password field. Kindly note that this password is to be 

also used by the demat holders for vo�ng for resolu�ons 

of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, 

provided that company opts for e-vo�ng through CDSL 

pla�orm. It is strongly recommended not to share your 

password with any other person and take utmost care to 

keep your password confiden�al.

XI. For Members holding shares in physical form, the details 

can be used only for e-vo�ng on the resolu�ons 

contained in this No�ce.

XII. If members are holding shares in DEMAT form and 

logged on to and casted vote earlier for EVSN 

(www.evo�ngindia.com) of any company then the 

exis�ng log in id and password are to be used.

XIII. Click on the EVSN for "J T L Infra Limited".

XIV. On the vo�ng page, member will see "RESOLUTION 

DESCRIPTION" and against the same the op�on "YES/ 

NO" for vo�ng. Select the op�on YES or NO as desired. 

The op�on YES implies that member assents to the 

Resolu�on and op�on NO implies that member dissents 

to the Resolu�on.

XV. Click on the "RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" if you wish to view 

the en�re Resolu�on details.

XVI. A�er selec�ng the resolu�on, the member have decided 

to vote on, click on "SUBMIT". A confirma�on box will be 

displayed. If member wishes to confirm his vote, click 

on"OK", else to change his vote, click on "CANCEL" and 

accordingly modify the vote.

XVII. Once the member "CONFIRM" his vote on the 

resolu�on, he will not be allowed to modify his vote.

XVIII. Members can also take out print of the vo�ng done by 

them by clicking on "Click here to print" op�on on the 

Vo�ng page.

XIX. If Demat account holder has forgo�en the login 

password, then Enter the User ID and the image 

verifica�on code and click on Forgot Password & enter 

the details as prompted by the system.

XX. Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL's 

mobile app m-Vo�ng available for android based 

mobiles. The m-Vo�ng app can be downloaded from 

Google Play Store, I Phone and Windows phone users 

can download the app from the App Store and the 
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Windows Phone Store respec�vely. Please follow the 

instruc�ons as prompted by the mobile app while vo�ng 

on your mobile.

XXI. Note for Non - Individual Shareholders and Custodians

 • Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than 

Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are required 

to log on to www.evo�ngindia. comand register 

themselves as Corporates.

 • A scanned copy of the Registra�on Form bearing the 

stamp and sign of the en�ty should be emailed 

tohelpdesk.evo�ng@cdslindia.com.

 • A�er receiving the login details a Compliance User 

should be created using the admin login and 

password. The Compliance User would be able to link 

the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

 • The list of accounts linked in the login should be 

mailed to helpdesk.evo�ng@cdslindia.com and on 

approval of the accounts they would be able to cast 

their vote.

 • A scanned copy of the Board Resolu�on and Power of 

A�orney (POA) which they have issued in favor of the 

Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in 

the system for the scru�nizer to verify the same.

XXII. In case members have any queries or issues regarding e-

vo�ng, they may refer the Frequently Asked Ques�ons 

( " FA Q s " )  a n d  e - v o � n g  m a n u a l  ava i l a b l e  a t 

www.evo�ngindia.com, under help sec�on or write an 

email to helpdesk.evo�ng@cdslindia.com.

XXIII. Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and 

become member of the Company a�er dispatch of the 

no�ce and holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e. 

Wednesday, 23rd September, 2020, may obtain the login 

I D  a n d  p a s s w o r d  b y  s e n d i n g  a  r e q u e s t  a t 

helpdesk.evo�ng@cdslindia.com. 

Process for those shareholders whose email addresses are 

not registered with the depositories for obtaining login 

creden�als for e-vo�ng for the resolu�ons proposed in this 

no�ce:

1. For Physical shareholders-please provide necessary 

details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy 

of the share cer�ficate (front and back), PAN (self a�ested 

scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self a�ested 

scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to Company/RTA 

email id.

2. For Demat shareholders -, please provide Demat account 

details (CDSL-16 digit beneficiary ID or NSDL-16 digit DPID 

+ CLID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated 

Account statement, PAN (self-a�ested scanned copy of 

PAN card), AADHAR (self-a�ested scanned copy of Aadhar 

Card) to Company/RTA email id.

Instruc�ons for shareholders for a�ending the AGM through 

VC / OAVM are as under:

1. Shareholder will be provided with a facility to a�end the 

AGM through VC/OAVM through the CDSL e-Vo�ng 

system. Shareholders may access the same at 

h�ps://www.evo�ngindia.com under shareholders/ 

members login by using the remote e-vo�ng creden�als. 

The link for VC/OAVM will be available in shareholder/ 

members login where the EVSN of Company will be 

displayed.

2. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Mee�ng through 

Laptops/IPads for be�er experience.

3. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and 

use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance 

during the mee�ng.

4. Please note that Par�cipants Connec�ng from Mobile 

Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connec�ng via 

Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to 

Fluctua�on in their respec�ve network. It is therefore 

recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connec�on to 

mi�gate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask 

ques�ons during the mee�ng may register themselves as 

a speaker by sending their request in advance at least 3 

days prior to mee�ng men�oning their name, demat 

account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at 

company's email Id-finance@jagan.in. The shareholders 
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who do not wish to speak during the AGM but have 

queries may send their queries in advance 3 days prior to 

mee�ng men�oning their name, demat account number / 

f o l i o  n u m b e r,  e m a i l  i d ,  m o b i l e  n u m b e r  a t 

finance@jagan.in. These queries will be replied to by the 

company suitably by email.

6. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as 

a speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask 

ques�ons during the mee�ng.

The instruc�ons for shareholders for e-vo�ng on the day of 

the AGM are as under: -

1. The procedure for e-Vo�ng on the day of the AGM is 

same as the instruc�ons men�oned above for Remote e-

vo�ng.

2. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM 

through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote 

on the Resolu�ons through remote e-Vo�ng and are 

otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to 

vote through e-Vo�ng system available during the AGM.

3. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-

vo�ng available during the AGM and if the same 

shareholders have not par�cipated in the mee�ng 

through VC/OAVM facility , then the votes cast by such 

shareholders shall be considered invalid as the facility of 

e-vo�ng during the mee�ng is available only to the 

shareholders a�ending the mee�ng.

4. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Vo�ng 

will be eligible to a�end the AGM. However, they will not 

be eligible to vote at the AGM.

Place: Chandigarh 

Date: August 29, 2020

By order of the Board of Directors

for JTL Infra Limited

Mohinder Singh

Company Secretary

ACS-21857
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Item No. 3

Based on the recommenda�on of the Nomina�on and 

Remunera�on Commi�ee, the Board of Directors of your 

Company in its mee�ng held on 13th May, 2020,  re appointed 

Mr. Madan Mohan Singla as Managing Director, not liable to 

re�re by rota�on, for a period of five years effec�ve from 30th 

May,  2020 , subject to approval of the Shareholders. 

The Board, while appoin�ng Mr. Madan Mohan Singla 

(promoter of the Company) as Managing Director of the 

Company, considered his rich experience of over 30 years in 

various steel industry segments, Shri Singla steers the 

Company with a clear vision of growth in context with the 

changing market scenario. At the helm of the Company, Mr. 

Singla epitomizes the depth of acumen of tubes and pipes 

industry and astute business sense. He is known for his 

business finance and strategic abili�es. Under his leadership, 

the Company grew exponen�ally gaining na�onal and 

interna�onal recogni�on.

The Board of Directors recommends appointment Mr. Madan 

Mohan Singla as Managing Director of the Company. Mr. 

Madan Mohan Singla has given his consent to act as Managing 

Director of the Company and brief profile and other details of 

him is provided as part of this no�ce as Annexure A.

The main terms and condi�ons rela�ng to the appointment 

and remunera�on of Mr. Madan Mohan Singla as Managing 

Director of the Company are as follows: 

(1) Period: 

 For a period of 5 years i.e., from 30th May, 2020 to 29th 

May, 2025 (both days inclusive)

(2) Nature of Du�es: 

 The Managing Director shall devote her whole �me and 

a�en�on to the business of the Company and perform 

such du�es as may be entrusted to him by the Board from 

�me to �me and separately communicated to him and 

exercise such powers as may be assigned to him, subject to 

superintendence, control and direc�ons of the Board in 

connec�on with and in the best interests of the business of 

the Company.

(3) Other Terms of Appointment :

 a. The Managing Director, so long as he func�ons as 

such, undertakes not to become interested or 

otherwise concerned, directly or through his spouse 

and/or children, in any selling agency of the 

Company. 

 b. The terms and condi�ons of the re-appointment of 

the Managing Director and/or this Agreement may 

be altered and varied from �me to �me by the Board 

as it may, in its discre�on deem fit, irrespec�ve of the 

limits s�pulated under Schedule V to the Act or any 

amendments made herea�er in this regard in such 

manner as may be agreed to between the Board and 

the Whole Time Director, subject to such approvals as 

may be required. 

 c. All Personnel Policies of the Company and the related 

rules which are applicable to other employees of the 

Company shall also be applicable to the Managing 

Director unless specifically provided otherwise.

 d. The appointment may be terminated earlier, without 

any cause, by either Party by giving to the other Party 

six months' no�ce of such termina�on or the 

Company paying six months' remunera�on which 

shall be limited to provision of Salary, Benefits, 

Perquisites, Allowances and any pro-rated Bonus/ 

Performance Linked Incen�ve/Commission (paid at 

the discre�on of the Board), in lieu of such no�ce.

 Further, the employment of the Managing Director may be 

terminated by the Company without no�ce or payment in 

lieu of no�ce, if she is found guilty of any gross negligence, 

default or misconduct in connec�on with or affec�ng the 

business of the Company or in the event of any serious or 

repeated or con�nuing breach (a�er prior warning) or 

non-observance by him of any of the s�pula�ons, 

instruc�ons of the Board or in the event the Board 

expresses its loss of confidence in the Managing Director.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES 

ACT, 2013 AND REGULATION 36(3) OF THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND 

DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015 REGARDING ORDINARY 

AND SPECIAL BUSINESSES
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who do not wish to speak during the AGM but have 

queries may send their queries in advance 3 days prior to 

mee�ng men�oning their name, demat account number / 

f o l i o  n u m b e r,  e m a i l  i d ,  m o b i l e  n u m b e r  a t 

finance@jagan.in. These queries will be replied to by the 

company suitably by email.

6. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as 

a speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask 

ques�ons during the mee�ng.

The instruc�ons for shareholders for e-vo�ng on the day of 

the AGM are as under: -

1. The procedure for e-Vo�ng on the day of the AGM is 

same as the instruc�ons men�oned above for Remote e-

vo�ng.

2. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM 

through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote 

on the Resolu�ons through remote e-Vo�ng and are 

otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to 

vote through e-Vo�ng system available during the AGM.

3. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-

vo�ng available during the AGM and if the same 

shareholders have not par�cipated in the mee�ng 

through VC/OAVM facility , then the votes cast by such 

shareholders shall be considered invalid as the facility of 

e-vo�ng during the mee�ng is available only to the 

shareholders a�ending the mee�ng.

4. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Vo�ng 

will be eligible to a�end the AGM. However, they will not 

be eligible to vote at the AGM.

Place: Chandigarh 

Date: August 29, 2020

By order of the Board of Directors

for JTL Infra Limited

Mohinder Singh

Company Secretary

ACS-21857
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Item No. 3

Based on the recommenda�on of the Nomina�on and 

Remunera�on Commi�ee, the Board of Directors of your 

Company in its mee�ng held on 13th May, 2020,  re appointed 

Mr. Madan Mohan Singla as Managing Director, not liable to 

re�re by rota�on, for a period of five years effec�ve from 30th 

May,  2020 , subject to approval of the Shareholders. 

The Board, while appoin�ng Mr. Madan Mohan Singla 

(promoter of the Company) as Managing Director of the 

Company, considered his rich experience of over 30 years in 

various steel industry segments, Shri Singla steers the 

Company with a clear vision of growth in context with the 

changing market scenario. At the helm of the Company, Mr. 

Singla epitomizes the depth of acumen of tubes and pipes 

industry and astute business sense. He is known for his 

business finance and strategic abili�es. Under his leadership, 

the Company grew exponen�ally gaining na�onal and 

interna�onal recogni�on.

The Board of Directors recommends appointment Mr. Madan 

Mohan Singla as Managing Director of the Company. Mr. 

Madan Mohan Singla has given his consent to act as Managing 

Director of the Company and brief profile and other details of 

him is provided as part of this no�ce as Annexure A.

The main terms and condi�ons rela�ng to the appointment 

and remunera�on of Mr. Madan Mohan Singla as Managing 

Director of the Company are as follows: 

(1) Period: 

 For a period of 5 years i.e., from 30th May, 2020 to 29th 

May, 2025 (both days inclusive)

(2) Nature of Du�es: 

 The Managing Director shall devote her whole �me and 

a�en�on to the business of the Company and perform 

such du�es as may be entrusted to him by the Board from 

�me to �me and separately communicated to him and 

exercise such powers as may be assigned to him, subject to 

superintendence, control and direc�ons of the Board in 

connec�on with and in the best interests of the business of 

the Company.

(3) Other Terms of Appointment :

 a. The Managing Director, so long as he func�ons as 

such, undertakes not to become interested or 

otherwise concerned, directly or through his spouse 

and/or children, in any selling agency of the 

Company. 

 b. The terms and condi�ons of the re-appointment of 

the Managing Director and/or this Agreement may 

be altered and varied from �me to �me by the Board 

as it may, in its discre�on deem fit, irrespec�ve of the 

limits s�pulated under Schedule V to the Act or any 

amendments made herea�er in this regard in such 

manner as may be agreed to between the Board and 

the Whole Time Director, subject to such approvals as 

may be required. 

 c. All Personnel Policies of the Company and the related 

rules which are applicable to other employees of the 

Company shall also be applicable to the Managing 

Director unless specifically provided otherwise.

 d. The appointment may be terminated earlier, without 

any cause, by either Party by giving to the other Party 

six months' no�ce of such termina�on or the 

Company paying six months' remunera�on which 

shall be limited to provision of Salary, Benefits, 

Perquisites, Allowances and any pro-rated Bonus/ 

Performance Linked Incen�ve/Commission (paid at 

the discre�on of the Board), in lieu of such no�ce.

 Further, the employment of the Managing Director may be 

terminated by the Company without no�ce or payment in 

lieu of no�ce, if she is found guilty of any gross negligence, 

default or misconduct in connec�on with or affec�ng the 

business of the Company or in the event of any serious or 

repeated or con�nuing breach (a�er prior warning) or 

non-observance by him of any of the s�pula�ons, 

instruc�ons of the Board or in the event the Board 

expresses its loss of confidence in the Managing Director.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES 

ACT, 2013 AND REGULATION 36(3) OF THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND 

DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015 REGARDING ORDINARY 

AND SPECIAL BUSINESSES
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 e. The terms and condi�ons of appointment of 

Managing Director also include clauses pertaining to 

adherence to the Company's Code of Conduct, 

protec�on and use of intellectual property, non-

compe��on, non-solicita�on post termina�on of 

agreement and maintenance of confiden�ality etc. 

(4) Remunera�on : Salary, benefits, perquisites and 

allowances Details of benefits, perquisites and 

allowances, as per the Company policy with periodic 

increment as may be mutually agreed between the Board 

and Mr. Madan Mohan Singla. Based on the recommen-

da�ons of the Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee 

('NRC') but subject to maximum ceiling of Rs. 5 lacs per 

month.

(5) Minimum Remunera�on: Notwithstanding anything to 

the contrary herein contained where in any financial year 

during the tenure of Mr. Madan Mohan Singla, the 

Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the 

Company will pay him remunera�on by way of salary, 

benefits and perquisites and allowances, bonus etc. as 

approved by the Board. 

The profile and specific areas of exper�se of Mr. Madan Mohan 

Singla are provided as Annexure A to this No�ce. 

In compliance with the provisions of Sec�on 196, 197, 203 and 

other applicable provisions of the Act, read with Schedule V to 

the Act as amended, and based on the recommenda�on of the 

Board and the Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee, 

approval of the Members is sought for the appointment and 

remunera�on of Mr. Madan Mohan Singla as Managing 

Director as set out above. The Board recommends the 

Resolu�on set forth in Item No. 3 for the approval of Members.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the 

Company and/or their rela�ves except Mr. Madan Mohan 

Singla, to whom the resolu�on relates, is concerned or 

interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolu�on set out at 

Item No. 3 of the No�ce, except to the extent of their 

shareholding, if any.

Item No. 4

Based on the recommenda�on of the Nomina�on and 

Remunera�on Commi�ee, the Board of Directors of your 

Company in its mee�ng held on 13th May, 2020,  appointed 

Mr. Rakesh Garg as Whole Time Director not liable to re�re by 

rota�on, for a period of five years effec�ve from 30th May,  

2020 , subject to approval of the Shareholders. 

The Board of Directors recommends appointment Mr. Rakesh 

Garg as Whole Time Director of the Company. 

Mr. Rakesh Garg has given his consent to act as Whole Time 

Director of the Company and brief profile and other details of 

him is provided as part of this no�ce as Annexure A.

The main terms and condi�ons rela�ng to the appointment 

and remunera�on of Mr. Rakesh Garg as Whole Time Director 

of the Company are as follows: 

(1) Period: 

 For a period of 5 years i.e., from 30th May, 2020 to 29th 

May, 2025 (both days inclusive)

(2) Nature of Du�es: 

 The Whole Time Director shall devote her whole �me and 

a�en�on to the business of the Company and perform 

such du�es as may be entrusted to him by the Board from 

�me to �me and separately communicated to him and 

exercise such powers as may be assigned to him, subject to 

superintendence, control and direc�ons of the Board in 

connec�on with and in the best interests of the business 

of the Company.

(3) Other Terms of Appointment :

 a. The Whole Time Director, so long as he func�ons as 

such, undertakes not to become interested or 

otherwise concerned, directly or through his spouse 

and/or children, in any selling agency of the 

Company. 

 b. The terms and condi�ons of the re-appointment of 

the Whole Time Director and/or this Agreement may 

be altered and varied from �me to �me by the Board 

as it may, in its discre�on deem fit, irrespec�ve of the 

limits s�pulated under Schedule V to the Act or any 

amendments made herea�er in this regard in such 
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manner as may be agreed to between the Board and 

the Whole Time Director, subject to such approvals as 

may be required. 

 c. All Personnel Policies of the Company and the related 

rules which are applicable to other employees of the 

Company shall also be applicable to the Whole Time 

Director unless specifically provided otherwise.

 d. The appointment may be terminated earlier, without 

any cause, by either Party by giving to the other Party 

six months' no�ce of such termina�on or the 

Company paying six months' remunera�on which 

shall be limited to provision of Salary, Benefits, 

Perquisites, Allowances and any pro-rated Bonus/ 

Performance Linked Incen�ve/Commission (paid at 

the discre�on of the Board), in lieu of such no�ce.

 Further, the employment of the Whole Time Director may 

be terminated by the Company without no�ce or payment 

in lieu of no�ce, if she is found guilty of any gross 

negligence, default or misconduct in connec�on with or 

affec�ng the business of the Company or in the event of 

any serious or repeated or con�nuing breach (a�er prior 

warning) or non-observance by him of any of the 

s�pula�ons, instruc�ons of the Board or in the event the 

Board expresses its loss of confidence in the Whole Time 

Director.

 e. The terms and condi�ons of appointment of Whole 

Time Director also include clauses pertaining to 

adherence to the Company's Code of Conduct, 

protec�on and use of intellectual property, non-

compe��on, non-solicita�on post termina�on of 

agreement and maintenance of confiden�ality etc. 

(4) Remunera�on : Salary, benefits, perquisites and 

allowances Details of benefits, perquisites and 

allowances, as per the Company policy with periodic 

increment as may be mutually agreed between the Board 

and Mr. Rakesh Garg based on the recommenda�ons of 

the Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee ('NRC') but 

subject to maximum ceiling of Rs. 5 lacs per month.

(5)  Minimum Remunera�on: Not with standing anything to 

the contrary herein contained where in any financial year 

during the tenure of Mr. Rakesh Garg, the Company has no 

profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company will pay 

him remunera�on by way of salary, benefits and 

perquisites and allowances, bonus etc. as approved by the 

Board. 

 The profile and specific areas of exper�se of Mr. Rakesh 

Garg are provided as Annexure A to this No�ce. 

 In compliance with the provisions of Sec�on 196, 197, 203 

and other applicable provisions of the Act, read with 

Schedule V to the Act as amended, and based on the 

recommenda�on of the Board and the Nomina�on and 

Remunera�on Commi�ee, approval of the Members is 

sought for the appointment and remunera�on of Mr. 

Rakesh Garg as Whole Time Director as set out above. The 

Board recommends the Resolu�on set forth in Item No. 4 

for the approval of Members.

 None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the 

Company and/or their rela�ves except Mr. Rakesh Garg, to 

whom the resolu�on relates, is concerned or interested, 

financially or otherwise, in the resolu�on set out at Item 

No. 4 of the No�ce, except to the extent of their 

shareholding, if any.

Item No. 5

The Board of Directors of the Company, on the recommen-

da�on of the Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee, 

appointed Mr. Sukhdev Raj Sharma (DIN 02135083) as 

Addi�onal Independent Director of the Company with effect 

from 30th June, 2020 in accordance with Sec�on 161 of the 

Act. He holds office up to the date of the Annual General 

Mee�ng of the Company. The Company has received a no�ce 

in wri�ng under Sec�on 160 of the Act from a member 

proposing her candidature for the office of Non-Execu�ve 

Independent Director. 

The Board of Directors recommends appointment of Mr. 

Sukhdev Raj Sharma as Non-execu�ve Independent Director of 

the Company. Mr. Sukhdev Raj Sharma has given his consent 

and has submi�ed a declara�on that she meets the criteria for 

independence as provided in the Act and Lis�ng Regula�ons. 
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 e. The terms and condi�ons of appointment of 

Managing Director also include clauses pertaining to 

adherence to the Company's Code of Conduct, 

protec�on and use of intellectual property, non-

compe��on, non-solicita�on post termina�on of 

agreement and maintenance of confiden�ality etc. 

(4) Remunera�on : Salary, benefits, perquisites and 

allowances Details of benefits, perquisites and 

allowances, as per the Company policy with periodic 

increment as may be mutually agreed between the Board 

and Mr. Madan Mohan Singla. Based on the recommen-

da�ons of the Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee 

('NRC') but subject to maximum ceiling of Rs. 5 lacs per 

month.

(5) Minimum Remunera�on: Notwithstanding anything to 

the contrary herein contained where in any financial year 

during the tenure of Mr. Madan Mohan Singla, the 

Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the 

Company will pay him remunera�on by way of salary, 

benefits and perquisites and allowances, bonus etc. as 

approved by the Board. 

The profile and specific areas of exper�se of Mr. Madan Mohan 

Singla are provided as Annexure A to this No�ce. 

In compliance with the provisions of Sec�on 196, 197, 203 and 

other applicable provisions of the Act, read with Schedule V to 

the Act as amended, and based on the recommenda�on of the 

Board and the Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee, 

approval of the Members is sought for the appointment and 

remunera�on of Mr. Madan Mohan Singla as Managing 

Director as set out above. The Board recommends the 

Resolu�on set forth in Item No. 3 for the approval of Members.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the 

Company and/or their rela�ves except Mr. Madan Mohan 

Singla, to whom the resolu�on relates, is concerned or 

interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolu�on set out at 

Item No. 3 of the No�ce, except to the extent of their 

shareholding, if any.

Item No. 4

Based on the recommenda�on of the Nomina�on and 

Remunera�on Commi�ee, the Board of Directors of your 

Company in its mee�ng held on 13th May, 2020,  appointed 

Mr. Rakesh Garg as Whole Time Director not liable to re�re by 

rota�on, for a period of five years effec�ve from 30th May,  

2020 , subject to approval of the Shareholders. 

The Board of Directors recommends appointment Mr. Rakesh 

Garg as Whole Time Director of the Company. 

Mr. Rakesh Garg has given his consent to act as Whole Time 

Director of the Company and brief profile and other details of 

him is provided as part of this no�ce as Annexure A.

The main terms and condi�ons rela�ng to the appointment 

and remunera�on of Mr. Rakesh Garg as Whole Time Director 

of the Company are as follows: 

(1) Period: 

 For a period of 5 years i.e., from 30th May, 2020 to 29th 

May, 2025 (both days inclusive)

(2) Nature of Du�es: 

 The Whole Time Director shall devote her whole �me and 

a�en�on to the business of the Company and perform 

such du�es as may be entrusted to him by the Board from 

�me to �me and separately communicated to him and 

exercise such powers as may be assigned to him, subject to 

superintendence, control and direc�ons of the Board in 

connec�on with and in the best interests of the business 

of the Company.

(3) Other Terms of Appointment :

 a. The Whole Time Director, so long as he func�ons as 

such, undertakes not to become interested or 

otherwise concerned, directly or through his spouse 

and/or children, in any selling agency of the 

Company. 

 b. The terms and condi�ons of the re-appointment of 

the Whole Time Director and/or this Agreement may 

be altered and varied from �me to �me by the Board 

as it may, in its discre�on deem fit, irrespec�ve of the 

limits s�pulated under Schedule V to the Act or any 

amendments made herea�er in this regard in such 
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manner as may be agreed to between the Board and 

the Whole Time Director, subject to such approvals as 

may be required. 

 c. All Personnel Policies of the Company and the related 

rules which are applicable to other employees of the 

Company shall also be applicable to the Whole Time 

Director unless specifically provided otherwise.

 d. The appointment may be terminated earlier, without 

any cause, by either Party by giving to the other Party 

six months' no�ce of such termina�on or the 

Company paying six months' remunera�on which 

shall be limited to provision of Salary, Benefits, 

Perquisites, Allowances and any pro-rated Bonus/ 

Performance Linked Incen�ve/Commission (paid at 

the discre�on of the Board), in lieu of such no�ce.

 Further, the employment of the Whole Time Director may 

be terminated by the Company without no�ce or payment 

in lieu of no�ce, if she is found guilty of any gross 

negligence, default or misconduct in connec�on with or 

affec�ng the business of the Company or in the event of 

any serious or repeated or con�nuing breach (a�er prior 

warning) or non-observance by him of any of the 

s�pula�ons, instruc�ons of the Board or in the event the 

Board expresses its loss of confidence in the Whole Time 

Director.

 e. The terms and condi�ons of appointment of Whole 

Time Director also include clauses pertaining to 

adherence to the Company's Code of Conduct, 

protec�on and use of intellectual property, non-

compe��on, non-solicita�on post termina�on of 

agreement and maintenance of confiden�ality etc. 

(4) Remunera�on : Salary, benefits, perquisites and 

allowances Details of benefits, perquisites and 

allowances, as per the Company policy with periodic 

increment as may be mutually agreed between the Board 

and Mr. Rakesh Garg based on the recommenda�ons of 

the Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee ('NRC') but 

subject to maximum ceiling of Rs. 5 lacs per month.

(5)  Minimum Remunera�on: Not with standing anything to 

the contrary herein contained where in any financial year 

during the tenure of Mr. Rakesh Garg, the Company has no 

profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company will pay 

him remunera�on by way of salary, benefits and 

perquisites and allowances, bonus etc. as approved by the 

Board. 

 The profile and specific areas of exper�se of Mr. Rakesh 

Garg are provided as Annexure A to this No�ce. 

 In compliance with the provisions of Sec�on 196, 197, 203 

and other applicable provisions of the Act, read with 

Schedule V to the Act as amended, and based on the 

recommenda�on of the Board and the Nomina�on and 

Remunera�on Commi�ee, approval of the Members is 

sought for the appointment and remunera�on of Mr. 

Rakesh Garg as Whole Time Director as set out above. The 

Board recommends the Resolu�on set forth in Item No. 4 

for the approval of Members.

 None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the 

Company and/or their rela�ves except Mr. Rakesh Garg, to 

whom the resolu�on relates, is concerned or interested, 

financially or otherwise, in the resolu�on set out at Item 

No. 4 of the No�ce, except to the extent of their 

shareholding, if any.

Item No. 5

The Board of Directors of the Company, on the recommen-

da�on of the Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee, 

appointed Mr. Sukhdev Raj Sharma (DIN 02135083) as 

Addi�onal Independent Director of the Company with effect 

from 30th June, 2020 in accordance with Sec�on 161 of the 

Act. He holds office up to the date of the Annual General 

Mee�ng of the Company. The Company has received a no�ce 

in wri�ng under Sec�on 160 of the Act from a member 

proposing her candidature for the office of Non-Execu�ve 

Independent Director. 

The Board of Directors recommends appointment of Mr. 

Sukhdev Raj Sharma as Non-execu�ve Independent Director of 

the Company. Mr. Sukhdev Raj Sharma has given his consent 

and has submi�ed a declara�on that she meets the criteria for 

independence as provided in the Act and Lis�ng Regula�ons. 
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In term of Sec�on 149 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. 

Sukhdev Raj Sharma's tenure as an Independent Non-

Execu�ve Director of the Company shall be for a consecu�ve 

period of 5 years w.e.f from 30th June, 2020 to 29th June, 

2025. Brief profile and other details of Mr. Sukhdev Raj Sharma 

is provided as part of this no�ce as Annexure A.

The Board of Directors recommends resolu�on for approval of 

the members of the Company by way of passing an Ordinary 

Resolu�on. 

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the 

Company and/or their rela�ves except Mr. Sukhdev Raj 

Sharma, to whom the resolu�on relates, is concerned or 

interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolu�on set out at 

Item No. 5 of the No�ce, except to the extent of their 

shareholding, if any.

Item No. 6

Pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 148 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 ("the Act"), read with the Companies (Cost Records 

and Audit) Rules, 2014, your Company is required to have the 

audit of its cost records conducted by a cost accountant in 

prac�ce. 

The Board of Directors has, on the recommenda�on of Audit 

Commi�ee, approved the appointment and remunera�on of 

M/s. Balwinder & Associates, Cost Accountants, (Firm 

Registra�on Number: 000201) as cost auditor of the Company, 

for a remunera�on of Rs. 40,000/- (plus Good and Service Tax 

and out-of-pocket expenses) to conduct the audit of the cost 

records maintained by the Company for the financial year 

ending on 31st March, 2021. M/s. Balwinder & Associates, 

Cost Accountants have the necessary experience in the field of 

cost audit and have furnished a cer�ficate regarding their 

eligibility for appointment as Cost Auditors of the Company.

In accordance with the provisions of Sec�on 148 of the Act 

read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 

including any statutory modifica�on(s) or re-enactment(s) 

thereof and as amended from �me to �me), the remunera�on 

payable to the Cost Auditors has to be ra�fied by the 

shareholders of the Company. 

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolu�on set out at 

Item No. 6 of the No�ce for approval by the shareholders.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the 

Company and/or their rela�ves, is concerned or interested, 

financially or otherwise, in the resolu�on set out at Item No. 6 

of the No�ce, except to the extent of their shareholding, if any.

Item No. 7

To ensure uninterrupted opera�on, approval of the 

shareholders is being sought, to enter into related party 

transac�on(s) with related party(s) as defined under within the 

meaning of Sec�on 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

Regula�on 2(1)(zb) of the SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons, to enter 

into contracts/arrangements in terms of Sec�on 188 (1)(a) to 

188(1)(g) of Companies Act, 2013 for an amount of Rs. 220 

crore during Financial Year 2020-21. 

Background and Details of the Transac�on: 

Cost effec�ve and assured supply of goods/services, of desired 

quality, is a key requirement for the Company. The Company 

intends to procure material from related party(s) to have 

consistent control over quality of the supplies. This transac�on 

will not only help the Company to ensure business opera�ons 

smoothly but also ensure consistent flow of desired quality 

and quan�ty of tubes available for uninterrupted opera�ons 

and business ac�vi�es.

Approval being sought for Financial Year 2020-21 As per the 

requirements of Regula�on 23(4) of the SEBI (Lis�ng 

Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 

('SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons'), all material related party 

transac�ons shall require the approval of Members through a 

Resolu�on. Further, the explana�on to Regula�on 23(1) of the 

SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons states that a transac�on with a related 

party shall be considered material if the transac�on(s) to be 

entered into individually or taken together with previous 

transac�ons during the financial year, exceeds 10% of the 

annual consolidated turnover of the Company as per the last 

audited financial statements of the Company. The es�mated 

value of transac�on with related party(s) for Financial Year 

2020-21 will be Rs. 220 crore, which would breach the 

materiality threshold of 10% of the annual turnover of the 

Company as per last audited financial statements of FY 2019-
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20. Hence, to ensure uninterrupted opera�ons of the 

Company, it is proposed to secure shareholders' approval for 

the related party contracts/ arrangements to be entered into 

with related party(s) during Financial Year 2020-21, as 

men�oned in item no. 7 of the No�ce. For necessary 

informa�on as required under Rule 15 of Companies 

(Mee�ngs of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, members are 

requested to please refer AOC-2 and Note No. 38 of Audited 

Annual Accounts of the Company for the financial year ended 

31st March 2020.  

Detail(s) about Arm's Length Pricing/ Ordinary Course of 

Business

The related party contract/transac�on men�oned in this 

proposal meets the arm's length tes�ng criteria and also 

qualifies as contract under ordinary course of business.

The said transac�ons have been recommended by the Audit 

Commi�ee and Board of Directors of the Company for 

considera�on and approval by the Members. None of the 

Directors and/or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company 

and/or their respec�ve rela�ves are in anyway, except as 

men�oned above, is concerned or interested either directly or 

indirectly, in the Resolu�on men�oned at Item No. 7 of the 

No�ce. 

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolu�on set forth at 

Item No. 7 of the No�ce for approval of the Members.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the 

Company and/or their rela�ves is concerned or interested, 

financially or otherwise, in the resolu�on set out at Item No. 7 

of the No�ce, except to the extent of their shareholding, if any. 

Place: Chandigarh 

Date: August 29, 2020

By order of the Board of Directors

for JTL Infra Limited

Mohinder Singh

Company Secretary

ACS-21857
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into contracts/arrangements in terms of Sec�on 188 (1)(a) to 

188(1)(g) of Companies Act, 2013 for an amount of Rs. 220 

crore during Financial Year 2020-21. 

Background and Details of the Transac�on: 

Cost effec�ve and assured supply of goods/services, of desired 

quality, is a key requirement for the Company. The Company 

intends to procure material from related party(s) to have 

consistent control over quality of the supplies. This transac�on 

will not only help the Company to ensure business opera�ons 

smoothly but also ensure consistent flow of desired quality 

and quan�ty of tubes available for uninterrupted opera�ons 

and business ac�vi�es.

Approval being sought for Financial Year 2020-21 As per the 

requirements of Regula�on 23(4) of the SEBI (Lis�ng 

Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 

('SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons'), all material related party 

transac�ons shall require the approval of Members through a 

Resolu�on. Further, the explana�on to Regula�on 23(1) of the 

SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons states that a transac�on with a related 

party shall be considered material if the transac�on(s) to be 

entered into individually or taken together with previous 

transac�ons during the financial year, exceeds 10% of the 

annual consolidated turnover of the Company as per the last 

audited financial statements of the Company. The es�mated 

value of transac�on with related party(s) for Financial Year 

2020-21 will be Rs. 220 crore, which would breach the 

materiality threshold of 10% of the annual turnover of the 

Company as per last audited financial statements of FY 2019-
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20. Hence, to ensure uninterrupted opera�ons of the 

Company, it is proposed to secure shareholders' approval for 

the related party contracts/ arrangements to be entered into 

with related party(s) during Financial Year 2020-21, as 

men�oned in item no. 7 of the No�ce. For necessary 

informa�on as required under Rule 15 of Companies 

(Mee�ngs of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, members are 

requested to please refer AOC-2 and Note No. 38 of Audited 

Annual Accounts of the Company for the financial year ended 

31st March 2020.  

Detail(s) about Arm's Length Pricing/ Ordinary Course of 

Business

The related party contract/transac�on men�oned in this 

proposal meets the arm's length tes�ng criteria and also 

qualifies as contract under ordinary course of business.

The said transac�ons have been recommended by the Audit 

Commi�ee and Board of Directors of the Company for 

considera�on and approval by the Members. None of the 

Directors and/or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company 

and/or their respec�ve rela�ves are in anyway, except as 

men�oned above, is concerned or interested either directly or 

indirectly, in the Resolu�on men�oned at Item No. 7 of the 

No�ce. 

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolu�on set forth at 

Item No. 7 of the No�ce for approval of the Members.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the 

Company and/or their rela�ves is concerned or interested, 

financially or otherwise, in the resolu�on set out at Item No. 7 

of the No�ce, except to the extent of their shareholding, if any. 

Place: Chandigarh 

Date: August 29, 2020

By order of the Board of Directors

for JTL Infra Limited

Mohinder Singh

Company Secretary

ACS-21857
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Informa�on of Director seeking appointment/re-appointment under item no. 3 , 4 & 5 of 

the No�ce convening Annual General Mee�ng of the Company in terms of Regula�on 36 of 

the SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 read with 

Secretarial Standard on General Mee�ngs.

Madan Mohan Singla 14,39,700  Having rich experience of over 30   Chetan Industries Limited

   Graduate years in various steel industry   Mirage Infra Limited

    segments.. He is known for his   Jagan Indusries Private Limited

    business finance and strategic abili�es. 

Rakesh Garg 14,18,700 Graduate Having more than 20 years of  Chetan Industries Limited

    experience in the Steel Industries,  Himani Steel Private Limited

    he helps the Company in all cri�cal 

    situa�ons. Has rich experience in 

    various areas of business, technology, 

    opera�ons etc 

Sukhdev Raj Sharma NIL B. Tech, MBA Worked at top level posi�on in PNB and  Indian MSME Helpline Pvt. Ltd.

    having ample experience of  over 37 

    years in domes�c and overseas 

    financial sector

Name of Director
No. of

Share held

Qualifica�on 

(Rela�onship 

with other 

Directors)

 Nature of Exper�se

Name of Companies in 

which he/ she holds 

Directorship

Annexure A
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Mithan Lal Singla     
Non-Execu�ve Director

Mr. Madan Mohan Singla    
Managing Director

Mr. Vijay Singla       
Whole-Time Director
Ceased from Directorship as on 30.05.2020

Mr. Rakesh Garg      
Whole-Time Director

Ms. Preet Kamal Kaur Bha�a  
Independent Director

Mr. Bhupinder Nayyar   
Independent Director

Mr. Sukhdev Raj Sharma
Addi�onal Director,Independent Director
(Appointed w.e.f. June 30,2020)

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER   
Mr. Dhruv Singla

COMPANY SECRETARY 
Mr. Neeraj Kaushal (Resigned with effect from June 30, 2019)

Mr. Sridhar Pentela (Resigned with effect from August 28, 2019)

Mr. Mohinder Singh (Appointed with effect from August 29, 2019)

STATUTORY AUDITORS 
Suresh K. Aggarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants         
# 3230, 2nd Floor, Sector 35-D ,         
Chandigarh, 160035           

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS
S.V. Associates
Company Secretaries
# 1494, Sector 42-B
Chandigarh, 160036

REGISTRARS & SHARE TRANSFER AGENTS
Beetal Financial & Computer Services (P) Ltd.      
Beetal House, 3rd Floor, 99 Madangir,         
Behind Local Shopping Complex, 
Near Dada Harsukhdas Mandir, New Delhi, India

COST AUDITORS
M/s Balwinder & Associate, Cost Accountants

BANKERS
Oriental Bank of Commerce (PNB w.e.f. 01.04.2020)
Chandigarh, DeraBassi

PLANT SITE
1. Gholumajra, Derabassi,
 Ambala-Chandigarh Highway,
 Dis�. SAS Nagar, Punjab-India

2. Kotse Budruk, Taluka Mangaon, Dis�. Raigad, 
Maharashtra-India

STOCK EXCHANNGES WHERE THE COMPANY'S 
SECURITIES LISTED
BSE Limited
25th Floor, P.J. Towers, Dalal Street,  
Mumbai-400 001.

Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Ltd.
4th floor, Vibgyor tower, Opposite Trident Hotel, 
Bandra-Kurla Complex 
Mumbai-400 098.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

29th Annual General Mee�ng:

Date  : Wednesday, September 30, 2020

Time  : 09:30 A.M.

Deemed Venue : SCO 18-19, Sector 28-C, Chandigarh-160002

Mode of Mee�ng : Through Video Conferencing (VC)/Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM)
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